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Section 9 Performance Monitoring
The Bank monitors its performance in accordance with the regulations of the Office of the Prime Minister on 

State Enterprise Performance Assessment B.E. 2548 and related laws and regulations as follows :

1.	 The Board of Directors monitors  and reviews  the performance under the Memorandum of Understanding 

and financial and non-financial performance on a monthly, quarterly, and yearly basis by comparing actual performance  

with desired goals as well as providing useful suggestions for improving the Bank’s performane as follows :

	 (1)	 Monitoring financial operations such as profit and loss, financial position, liquidity, budget disbursement,  

debt repayment ablitity, etc., a total of 58 times.

	 (2)	 Tracking non-financial operations, such as performance based on core missions, performance according 

to the government policy, performance according to the Memorandum of Understanding, performance according 

to the strategic plan and action plan, etc., a total of 46 times.

2. 	 Senior manangement monthly monitors and reviews the performance according to the Memorandum 

of Understanding through the Management Morning Meeting to compare actual performance with desired goals, 

forcasts year-end performance, analyzes problems/obstacles in the operation and set guidelines for improvement.

3. 	 The Bank reports its performance according to the Memorandum of Understanding to the Ministry of 

Finance. The performance is reported twice a year (half year and the end of the year). 

4. 	 The Bank analyzes the observations of Performance Assessment Committee (PAC) to formulate guidelines 

for its improvement and reports to the PAC according to the period of the state enterprise assessment.

5. 	 The Bank prepares a Compliance Report to present to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors 

once a year.
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1.	 Significant legal and regulatory changes in 2020
	 and the Bank’s performance
	 The Bank monitored the legislation and official regulations, summarized significant matters, analyzes  

the impact and then proposed to the President for acknowledgment and consideration for assigning relevant  

departments to take actions (43 matters) with the following significant matters :

	 1.1)	 BOT Notification No. Sor Kor Sor. 2.1/2563 Re : Regulations on Supervision of Housing Loans and 

Other Loans Related to Housing Loans of Specialized Financial Institutions.

	 1.2)	 BOT Notification No. Sor Nor Chor. 2/2562 Re : Rugulations on Undertaking Electronic Fund Transfer 

Service Business.

	 1.3) 	Announcement of the State Audit Commission Re : Disclosure of expenditures of Government 

Agencies to the Media for Advertising or Public Relations B.E. 2562.

	 1.4)	 BOT Circular Letter No. For Gor Chor. (72) Wor. 277/2563 Re : guidelines for providing assistance to 

debtors affected by situations affecting the Thai economy.

	 1.5) 	BOT Circular Letter No. For Gor Chor (72) Wor. 358/2563 and For Nor Chor. (35) Wor. 359/2563  

Re : waiver of duty to report information and notice of action to the Bank of Thailand.

	 1.6)	 BOT Notificaition No. Sor Gor Sor. 2.4/2563 Re : Market conduct management.

	 1.7)	 BOT Notification No. Sor Gor Sor 2.9/2563 Re : Calculation of default  interest and the application 

of debt repayment proceeds.

	 1.8	 Notice of National Anti-Corruption Commission Re : Criteria for government officers to ethically 

accept property or other benefits  B.E. 2563.

	 1.9)	 Notification of the Office of Insurance Commission Re : Rules on methods for issuing and offering 

of insurance policies for sales and the operation of Life/Non-life insurance agents, insurance brokers and banks B.E. 

2563.		

	 1.10)	Regulations of the Anti-Money Laundering Committee on providing training for persons having the 

duty to report under Section 13 and Section 16 B.E. 2563.

	 The Bank already considered and assigned relevant departments or responsible persons to carry out all 

43 matters (regulations, announcements, and rules) by organizing a meeting to discuss with regulators or agencies 

that issue announcements or regulations in order for the Bank to proceed properly and completely. In 2020, due 

to COVID-19 pandemic, the BOT has issued measures for the Bank to provide assistance to customers affected by 

the COVID-19 , and measure to suspend operations in accordance with the Bank of Thailand’s regulations in some 

cases. The Bank has complied with the BOT measures, including operating in accordance with other announcements 

and regulations that are required to take actions during the epidemic situation as well.

Regulatory Compliance
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2.	 Monitoring / reviewing operations to ensure compliance with important rules
	 With the BOT’s supervision of financial institutions’ compliance, the BOT stipulates duties and responsibilities  

of the compliance unit to control and monitor operations according to the rules, tracks defects detected by 

conducting compliance testing: random compliance reviews as well as proposing improvement guidelines. The 

performance review is one of the operational plans of the compliance unit in accordance with the Bank’s strategy 

SO4 : Enhancing governance by integrating the 2017 - 2021 GRC process  (reviewed in 2020 - 2021) with an aim to 

assess and measure the performance of business units to ensure that they perform  tasks correctly and completely 

according to laws and procedures prescribed by the Bank. In 2020, the Bank conducted a review of its compliance 

which had high risks or affected the Bank in 8 matters as follows :

	 (1)	 Review of fair customer service (Market Conduct).

	 (2)	 Review of regulations on mortgage loans and other loans related to home equity loans (LTV).

	 (3) 	 Review of information technology risk governance rules.

	 (4) 	 Review of governance rules for the use of services from business facilitator.

	 (5)	 Review of knowledge and understanding of operations under the Personal Data Protection Act B.E. 2562.

	 (6)	 Review of the compliance with regulations on the BOT’s good governance of SFIs.

	 (7)	 Review of operations to comply with the Bank’s internal regulations for 2020.

	 (8)	 Operations in accordance with the Bank’s regulations regarding the reporting of transactions under  

			   the Anti-Corruption Commission regulations.

	 Overall review results showed that employees had knowledge and understanding of operations. The Bank, 

by the Compliance Department, had recommendations/ implementation guidelines to ensure the Bank’s proper 

operations.		

3.	 Compliance with laws /external regulations
	 (1)	 Publish laws/ official rules on the website of the compliance unit and enter information of laws/rules 

applicable to the Bank, including drafts and relevant laws/rules that will be applicable to the Bank in the INTRANET 

system; as well as preparing a checklist for officers to use in their operations.

	 (2)	 Follow up on summary of legal/ official regulatory analysis (43 issues).

	 (3)	 Compliance Monitoring and Testing.

	 (4)	 Supervise operations according to the internal operating rules.

4.	 Legal / Regulatory Operation Support
	 (1)	 Anti-money laundering performance optimization plan.

	 (2)	 Operation supervision.

	 (3)	 Compliance Platform project.

	 (4)	  Delivery of customer information to external agencies.
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5.	 Compliance personnel development	  

	 (1)	 Personnel development plan for compliance unit (Corporate Compliance Officer : CCO) , 33 issues.

	 (2)	 Personnel development plan in other departments by compliance unit for compliance with laws, 

rules and regulations (10 issues).

6.	 Other tasks assigned by the compliance unit
 	  (1)	 Corporate governance

		  1.1)	Corporate Governance plan

		  1.2)	5-year CG&CSR master plan (2017-2021) comprising 3 strategies, 7 projects, divided by  

performance on corporate governance for a period of 5 years (2017-2021) (reviewed in 2020-2021) as follows :

		  Strategy 1 : Upgrading the integrity and transparency of operations towards sustainable strategic 

goals (1 project)

		  Strategy 2 : Strengthening work systems/management processes to be efficient, transparent,  

verifiable, and prevent fraud (3 projects).

		  Strategy 3 : Promoting knowledge development and creating CG participation from all stakeholders 

to create corporate culture (3 projects).

	 As of December 31, 2020, the Bank completed 6 projects and one project is in progress, which is a survey 

project on satisfaction expectations and opinions on CG&CSR from stakeholders as well as employees’ behavior 

assessment in line with CG principles.				  

 	 (2)	 Anti-corruption 

		  The national anti-corruption strategy consists of the following six strategies :

		  Strategy 1 : Create a society which does not tolerate corruption, capable of distinguishing between  

			   individuals and public gains.

		  Strategy 2 : Promote political will to fight corruption.

		  Strategy 3 : Deter corruption in public policy.		

		  Strategy 4 : Develop proactive corruption prevention systems.

		  Strategy 5 : Reform corruption suppression mechanisms and processes.

		  Strategy 6 : Improve Thailand score on the Corruption Perceptions Index (CPI).

	 The Bank’s anti-corruption action plan in 2020 consists of 3 strategies (Strategic 1, 4, 5) totaling 16 plans/

projects/activities. The Bank monitors and reports performance to the President, Anti-Corruption Committee and 

CG&CSR Committee through NACC Smart E-Vision as well as submitting a performance report to the Anti-Corruption 

Operation Center, Office of the Ministry of Finance and the Office of the NACC every 6 months.
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	 (3)	 Internal Control : Operations in accordance with the Bank’s internal control plan as follows : 

		  (3.1) 	 Knowledge development on internal control.

		  (3.2) 	 Developing knowledge and understanding to apply internal control skills to work.

		  (3.3) 	 Control Self Assessment (CSA) development to support internal control assessment reports.

		  (3.4) 	 Reducing operational errors through internal control processes.

		  (3.5) 	 Compliance Platform project.

		  (3.6) 	 Project to improve 3 lines of defense: Credit process.	

		  (3.7) 	 Project to improve 3 lines of defense: NPL Re-entry system.

		  (3.8) 	 Fraud Management project, a notification system for credit fraud risk management.

		  (3.9) 	 Preparation of an annual internal control assessment report (organization level).

		  (3.10)	 Preparation of an annual internal control assessment report (departments/ offices/ regions/ 

			   center level).

		  (3.11) 	  Monitoring the Bank’s internal control performance.

7.	 Non-compliance remarks The Bank must report transactions to AMLO within the time specified  

by law. In the event that transactions cannot be reported within the specified period, the following actions are taken :

	 1)	 Notify the departments/regions/districts/branches to review the transaction report carefully as it 

must be complete, correct and strictly complied with the Anti-Money Laundering Act.

	 2)	 Develop a Compliance Dashboard for the department/regions/districts to use as a control point for 

reviewing transaction report data based on statistical data. The post-implementation satisfaction survey found that 

the number of non-compliances was significantly reduced. 

	 3)	 Prepare learning materials about anti-money laundering laws through e-Learning system in order 

that employees can work properly in accordance with laws and regulations.

8.	 Important laws/rules issued in 2021 
	 8.1	 BOT Regulations of SFIs phase 3 includes;

 		  1)	 Reverse Mortgage

		  2)	 Internet & Mobile Banking

		  3)	 Supervision of operational risks and internal controls (Guidelines on operational risk management,  

Business Continuity Management (BCM), Business Continuity Plan (BCP), regulatory compliance and internal audit 

operations.	  

		  4)	 Accounting and financial reporting standards related to financial instruments

		  5)	 Services & Insourcing

		  6)	 Lending/ Transactions with the Board and senior management
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	 8.2	 Laws/ rules of official agencies;

		  1)	 Secondary legislation according to the Personal Data Protection Act B.E. 2562.

		  2)	 Royal Decree / Announcements / Regulations issued under the Act relating to other banks.

9.	 Summary of the Bank’s regulatory compliance in 2020
	 The Bank’s regulatory compliance in 2020: The Bank monitored legislation/official regulations since the 

drafting process to anticipate the Bank’s impact and prepared for actions in advance, especially significant laws that 

can cause high risk and a broad impact. There was an integration between the 3 Lines of Defense units for effective 

management and control. The Bank monitored the operations that has not yet been fully implemented and prepared  

plans to support improvements in all cases including the development of information technology systems to 

support the Bank’s operations, executives and officers to be more efficient. Moreover, the Bank has complied with 

BOT’s regulations and other related regulations, such as the Personal Data Protection Act B.E. 2562, which has been 

effective on June 1, 2021. The Bank has still focused on monitoring/reviewing operations to be in accordance with 

the regulatory criteria in order for the Bank to perform properly and be at the same standards as other banks.
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Government Housing Bank has a policy on social and environmental responsibility  
in accordance with ISO 26000, a generally accepted international standard for social and 
environmental responsibility. Stakeholders’ participation is encouraged to formulate guidelines 
for managing impacts and concerns. In addition, the Bank focuses on operations concerning 
society, community and environment as well as creating a volunteer spirit for personnel to 
participate in social, community and environmental development.

In 2020, the bank has still committed to providing financial services to enable Thai people to have their own 

home along with the development of the Bank’s work system and operational processes to be in line with the 

Bank’s strategy on “Upgrading CSR” to respond to the needs and expectations of stakeholders as well as building 

credibility and trust in the Bank’s business practices that do not focus only on good performance, but also take into 

account the benefits and values to the community and society.

The Bank drives the implementation of social and environmental responsibility in a systematic and standardized 

way according to the CSR Model: “I AM” GHB consisting of CSR operations in 3 areas which are I–CSR in Process that 

focuses on the design, development and actual implementation of the operational process concerning the potential 

impacts on the community and society, A-CSR after process that focuses on the allocation of the bank’s resources 

to be used to support or create projects to improve the quality of life of people in communities and M-CSR in Mind 

that focuses on developing personnel to have a volunteer spirit to participate in promoting or supporting various 

activities of the community seriously, creating real values for the community.

The implementation of the CSR Model: “I AM” GHB in 2020 provides the following results :

I-CSR in Process
The Bank has always focused on a financial literacy development program. Participants who are interested  

in saving money for owning a home will develop in 3 phases. Phase 1: Development of financial literacy in  

saving methods, both saving for owning a house and saving for the future; preparation and analysis of income and  

expenditure accounts of all family members to reduce unnecessary expenses and save cost by growing their own 

vegetables instead of purchasing them; and learning how to access funding sources, especially housing loans. Phase 

2 : Creating savings disciplines by saving the same amount of money consistently or increasing it every month. Phase 

3 : Preparing for a home by educating them to understand the bank’s lending rules, the calculation of income 

criteria for installment payments as well as interest rate calculation, especially for “effective interest rate” which is 

completely different from the interest of informal loan.

In 2020, more than 40,000 people were interested in participating in the financial literacy development  

program. About 37,000 people who have already finished this development program opened deposit accounts 

with the Bank and approximately 13,500 of them made a deposit at for 3rd consecutive months. Morever, more 

than 22,500 people who have finished financial literacy development over the past years have been approved for 

loans in 2020 and 6,700 people in 2019. Therefore, the Bank’s financial literacy development is a good model of 

Social and Environmental Responsibility
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organizational development aiming to be a “Learning organization” as the development, review and improvement 

of processes, content implementation, including knowledge development have resulted in a concrete effectiveness.

In addition to financial literacy development, the bank has developed new products and services that  

focused on the potential impact on society and environment as well as responding to the needs and expectations 

of people who want to own a house. There were 7 products comprising 1. GHB House for Love 2. GHB Home We 

Don’t Leave Each Other 3. GHB Home for You 4. Loans for natural disaster victims 5. GHB with National Village and 

Urban Community Fund No. 16. GHB for Building and 7. Two-Gen housing loans, including one digital service which 

is a loan repayment service through the GHB All Application.

A-CSR after Process	

The bank operates its business with the expectation to have a good performance and high competitive 

advantage. At the same time, the Bank also attaches importance to social and environmental responsibility in line 

with generally accepted international standards. In 2020, the Bank supported, promoted, developed and provided 

assistance to people in 5 aspects as follows :

1. Residence : Project to build/repair houses for the poor elderly or poor disabled people, with 50 new 

houses and 200 houses repaired, totaling 250 houses in all regions. People who deserve an assistance were selected  

through a coordination with local government organizations and communities. Operations were controlled and 

progress was monitored by the Bank’s branch and district office responsible for the area. The bank’s total support 

for building/repairing houses totaled 4,337 units.

2. Education : Project to build/repair school buildings in 4 remote regions, totaling 4 places. In 2020, the project 

was executed under a join agreement between the Bank and the Border Patrol Police Headquaters to construct 4 

schools: Constructing a school building at Ban Nam Om Border Patrol Police School, Sa Kaeo province; constructing 

a canteen at Ban Panwan Border Patrol Police School, Chumphon province; constructing a school building at Border 

Patrol Police Study Center under the Royal Patronage, Mukdahan province; renovating a school building at Border 

Patrol Police School 905, Mae Hong Son province.

Education quality improvement project on teacher development: The Bank has organized the GH Bank’s 

activities to improve Border Patrol Police School teachers. In 2020, the Bank developed “1 Career, 1 Community” 

project for the Border Patrol Police School teachers, aiming at the teachers in Chachoengsao and Sa Kaeo provinces: 

11 schools and 22 teachers, by organizing training to develop knowledge and ability for careers development, teaching  

how to present products for higher added values, focusing on a wider market by selling through regular markets 

and online markets so that teachers could develop knowledge, competence and skills to be able to connecting 

teaching and learning with students’ real career opportunities. For student development, the Bank has set up “GHB 

Creating Smiles” project to open up the world for children. In 2020, this project was conducted in a form of Active 

Learning to develop English communication skills for Border Patrol Police School students, a total of 29 schools.

3. Social and Environment : “1 Career, 1 Community” project for sustainability. This project focused on 

the development of financial literacy, access to funding, knowledge of money saving, creating savings disciplines, 

preparation for having a home and recording of income and expenses of all family members. This program teached 

people to record the source of income and spending information as the more details they record, the more data will 

be analyzed to find ways to reduce expenses or to increase income. In 2020, the Bank supported the development 
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of charcoal briquettes production of the Wang Phong community, Pranburi district, Prachuap Khiri Khan province to 

improve the quality of charcoal obtained from burning coconut shells and pineapple stalk by grinding and sifting to 

have a fine and smooth mixture when forming which was different from briquettes or molded charcoal that were 

commonly available in the local area. This was to create added value for products and sell it for other uses such 

as absorbing odors in the refrigerator or wardrobe or used as fuel for cooking, grilling, etc.

In addition, in 2020, a newly developed project called “Bank on Bank” was initiated. It was a project to support  

the development of the quality of life of the Unserved group by setting up a “Bank on Bank” fund to allow members 

in a community borrow money from the fund for housing repairs. Community leaders selected a group of community 

members to borrow money from the fund. Each group comprised about 5-7 members. The repayment period was 

not more than 3 years with low interest rate. If the community repayed his debts continuously, the Bank would 

return interests to the community to use as needed. At the end of 2020, the Bank approved the communities to 

borrow money from the “Bank on Bank” fund, a total of 80 people from 4 communities in Prachuap Khiri Khan,  

Sa Kaeo and Phra Nakhon Si Ayutthaya provinces.

4. Religion, art and culture : The Bank organized an activity to express our loyalty on the occasion of the HM the 

King’s birthday on July 28, 2020. Blood donation by a cooperation between the Bank and the National Blood Center, 

the blood donations is done as often as every 3 months, a total of 4 times a year. In 2020, the National Blood Center 

received 370,750 cc of donated blood. For religion, the Bank organized 2020 Royal Kathin Robe Offering Ceremony  

at Wat Matchimawat, Bo Yang subdistrict, Mueang Songkhla district, Songkhla province and organized Kathin Robe 

Offering Ceremony at Wat PhoThong, Bo Phong subdistrict, Nakhon Luang district, Phra Nakhon Si Ayutthaya province.

5. Sports : Taekwondo Project, a project that the Bank has continuously supported after “1 State Enterprise, 

1 Sports Association” project according to the government policy started since 2006 and the “GHB Run 2020” event 

at the Bank’s head office to strengthen good relationships, love, and unity to encourage a good physical health 

among the Bank’s executives, employee, Business Facilitator (BF) and the media. Besides, the event’s participants 

could donate money to the Foundation for the Blind of Thailand under the royal patronage. Approximately 1,300 

people attended the event.

M-CSR in Mind
The Bank has succeeded in developing its personnel to have volunteering spirit or public mind by allocating 

personal time spent on activities or projects that benefits society or the community, both directly and indirectly.  

In 2019, the Bank set a goal to accumulate volunteer hours from nearly 5,000 personnel across the country, amounting 

to 22,000 hours. By the end of the year, there were more than 44,500 volunteer hours accumulated, or an average 

of 8.9 hours per person. Therefore, to challenge personnel to achieve a volunteer goal or people with a public 

mind, in 2020, the Bank raised the target of accumulating volunteer hours by leaps and bounds to at least 12 hours 

per person per year, representing the total of 60,000 hours. Although the beginning of 2020 there was a Covid-19 

pandemic, which limited our volunteer activities, with the adaptability and creativityof our personnel, at the end of 

2020, they could accumulated volunteer hours of 71,890 hours, or an average of 14.38 hours per person per year 

which was higher than the set target. Activities with the highest participation were the production of hygienic mask 

straps to distribute to medical personnel across the country under the project “Hundred Power to Million Power 

by GHB” followed by the preparation of face shield to prevent Covid-19, and the preparation of equipment (balls) 

to exercise hand muscles, blood donation, and cleaning of public places, etc.
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• Significant connected transactions
In addition to Note to Financial Statement Subject 8.23, transactions of connected persons or companies;  

the Bank’s connected transactions (Lending and obligations) to subsidiaries, associated companies and related 

companies or organizations can be displayed as follows :

	  Unit : Million Baht

Bank’s Separate financial statement

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2020

Co-Director or Senior 
management

Lending Obligations Bank’s
Shares 

(percent)

Lending Obligations Bank’s
Shares 

(percent)

Associate / Subsidiary companies

• SPV-SMC (7) Co., Ltd. - - - - - 48.00 -

• SPV-SMC (8) Co., Ltd. - - - - - 49.00 -

• SPV-SMC (9) Co., Ltd. - - - - - 49.00 -

Related companies / state enterprises
(Co-Director)

• Krungthai Card PCL. - - - - - -     Mr. Parinya Patanaphakdee

• Mass Rapid Transit Authority of Thailand - - - - - -
    Mr. Yuttana Yimgarund

• Dhanarak Asset Development Co., Ltd. - - - - - -

• National Housing Authority 1,826.27 - - 1,762.10 - -
    Ms. Patcharee Arayakul

• Public Pawnshop Office (Thailand) - - - - - -

• Thai Maritime Navigation Co., Ltd, 
  (Joint venture with private companies)

- - - - - -

    Mr. Thanin Pa-em

• Airport of Thailand PCL. - - - - - -

• National Housing Authority 1,826.27 - - 1,762.10 - -     Senior Colonel
    Dr. Jearanai Vongsaard

- - - - - - -     Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr

• Palangpatara Co, Ltd. - - - - - -
    Mr. Wichit Sangtongstit

• Thai Parcels Co., Ltd. - - - - - -

• Thai Smile Airways Co., Ltd. - - - - - -
    Mr. Pipat Khanthong

• TOT PCL. - - - - - -

• National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd. - - 15.00 - - 15.00     Mr. Chatchai Sirilai1

• Techno Medical PCL. - - - - - -     Ms. Ratana Anupasanant2

Remark	 1 Holding the position of President, first term until May 3, 2020 and second term from June 15, 2020.

	 2 Holding the position until March 31, 2020.

}

}
}

}
}

Connected Transactions
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• Pricing Policy for Connected Transaction
The Bank is a state enterprise under the supervision of the Ministry of Finance which may has business transactions 

with other state enterprises under the control of Thai government, both directly through government agencies  
or indirectly through associates or other organizations, therefore the Bank has set its fair prices and service conditions 
for government agencies according to traditional trading regulations. To prevent conflict of interest that may arise 
from connected transactions and to maximize values and its competitiveness, the Bank has set prices for trading 
transactions with related persons or companies as a general price according to the Bank’s public announcement,  
except for transactions that have conditions specified by regulatory agencies.

• Policies and Guidelines for Future Connected Transactions
Connected transactions in the future will possibly occur as general business operations. If the Bank considers 

that transactions will generate greatest benefit to the Bank, such transactions will be performed in compliance  
with regulatory agencies and the Bank’s practice rules. The Bank will adhere to the same practices as general customer  
transactions.

• Process for Connected Transactions Consideration
The Bank attaches importance to the prevention of conflicts of interest through connected transactions  

in order to ensure that connected transactions are in accordance with regulatory agencies’ regulations. Therefore, 
the Bank has complied with the regulations on conflict of interest prohibition, conflict of Interest policy, whereby 
relevant departments has examined stakeholders’ information and relationship in the COI database contained  
in the GHB System. The Audit Committee will review the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal control,  
good governance and risk management processes as well as considering connected transactions or transactions  
that may have conflict of interest and reported to the Board of Directors.

To prevent conflicts of interest, the Bank has established the Code of Conduct for the Board members  
and executives to manage and approve connected transactions as follows :

1)	 Board members, senior management, executives and officers must disclose transactions that may have conflict  
of interest or connected transactions. When appointed to perform any duties, they must perform a self-examination  
(Declare) in accordance with reports required by authorities and the Bank. In order to build trust to the general public  
on the Bank’s good corporate governance, all departments/offices/regions/centers have been assigned to  
review and examine the lists of shareholders every year. The Audit Committee is responsible for surveying the lists  
of stakeholders annually. The Audit Committee will review the effectiveness and efficiency of the internal control,  
good corporate governance and risk management processes as well as considering connected transactions or transactions  
that may have conflict of interest and report to the Board of Directors.

2)	 Board members, senior management, executives and officers who have a stake or may earn benefits  
from transactions being considered or approved must not participate in the consideration process or abstain from voting  
for such transactions.

3)	 Avoid involving in transactions related to oneself or related persons that may cause conflict of interest 
and do not act in any manner that is contrary to the Bank’s benefits or seek personal benefits or related persons.

4)	 Board members, senior management, executives and officers must approve any transaction. Transactions 
must be considered and approved with transparency, fairness, appropriateness and prudence by taking into account  
the sake of the Bank’s benefits to comply with laws, rules, regulations , official requirements, and the Bank’s requirements  

completely and accurately. 
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Administration
Manage Organization

GOVERNMENT HOUSING BANK
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The Bank’s Board of Directors has appointed the Risk Management Committee (According to the Government 

Housing Bank Board Order No. 19/2563) effective from April 24, 2020, consisting of

1. Ms. Patcharee Arayakul	 Chairman

2. Senior Colonel Dr. Jearanai Vongsaard	 Member

3. Mr. Eitti Ponguussara	 Member

4. The Bank’s President 	 Member

5. Executive Vice President, Risk Management Group 	 Secretary 	

6. Senior Vice President, Risk Management Department	 Assistant Secretary

The Risk Management Committee performed duties within the scope of duties and responsibilities stated in 

the Risk Management Committee Charter approved by the Board of Directors on March 23, 2020. In 2020, the Risk 

Management Committee held 14 meetings, and the Risk Management Committee’s performance was reported to 

the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors quarterly.

The Risk Management Committee focused on overseeing the risk management process and overall internal 

control to an acceptable risk level. The key points were summarized as follows :

1.	 Considered and reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank’s key policies to ensure that the 

policies were in line with international standards, the BOT’s Supervision Criteria, Ministry of Finance and government 

policies including taking into account the impact on the Bank’s image and reputation and could respond to the 

needs of the target people. Important policies were integrated good corporate governance policy, risk management 

policy, integrated governance risk and compliance policy, information technology security policy, internal control 

policy, credit policy credit review policy, business continuity management policy, etc. The risk management policy 

covered important risks such as strategic risks, credit risks, market risks, liquidity risks, operating and system risks and 

other risks affecting the Bank.

2.	 Considered and approved the annual work plan related to risk management and internal control,  

comprising a risk management plan, internal control plan, credit review plan, plans of the Anti-Corruption Center 

and the Center for Information Technology Security as well as following up on the performance on a quarterly basis.

3.	 Identified corporate risk management framework including Key Risk Indicators (KRI), Risk Appetite,  

Risk Tolerance, and Risk Limits to align with the Bank’s business plan and Basel ll, including the State Enterprise 

Assessment Model (SE-AM) performance assessment system of the State Enterprise Policy Office, Ministry of Finance 

to use as a guideline for the Bank’s risk management.

Report of the Risk Management Committee
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4.	 Supervised risk management according to relevant policies. Monitored all risks to be at an acceptable risk 

level as well as the Key Risk Index (KRI). Closely monitored significant risks that may arise from economic conditions, 

technology change, change in customer behaviors, government regulation changes and fierce business competition 

including COVID-19 pandemic, etc.

5.	 Monitored risks that had a significant impact on the Bank such as analyzing debtors on ability for debt 

repayment and possibility of becoming non-performing loans (NPLs) in order to prepare a plan for managing NPLs 

in a timely manner and at an acceptable risk level, etc.

6.	 Evaluated and monitored the Bank’s capital adequacy in accordance with the BOT’s guidelines and stress 

testing to ensure the Bank’s stability.

7.	 Supported the development of various risk management tools, such as the Portfolio View of Risk for 

analyzing risks affecting the Bank’s financial position, Daily Aging Dashboard for monitoring credit portfolio quality 

and NPL management, Statistic Repricing Gap for analyzing the impact of changes in interest rates (100 bps.) on 

estimated net interest income, Checklist tool for assessing risks of the Bank’s IT projects, etc. to ensure that the 

Bank achieves specified goals.

8.	 Reported to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors regularly on the status of risks and changes 

within a Risk Appetite to comply with policies and strategies set by the Board of Directors.

In addition, during the meeting of the Risk Management Committee, the Chairman and the Risk Management 

Committee gave remarks and useful recommendations for the Bank’s risk management in various issues of important 

regulatory agencies such as the BOT’s announcement on Interest and Fee Charge including new assessment criteria 

(SE-AM) on risk management and internal control of the State Enterprise Policy Office. Moreover, external factors 

that may affect the banking business are also taken into account, such as the COVID-19 pandemic, drought and 

economic conditions, etc., Especially for the epidemic situation, the Bank has managed risks that may affect the 

Bank, such as the number of non-performing loans that may increase by issuing various measures to help affected 

customers. In 2020, the Risk Management Committee gave comments and recommendations to reduce the Bank’s 

risks for Pre-Finance project for real estate entrepreneurs.

 					   

					     (Ms. Patcharee Arayakul)

 					      Chairman of the Risk Management Committee
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Risk management is a necessary and important management process for the organization to achieve its goals 

under a rapidly changing business environment including the volatility of unexpected situations such as the impact 

of emerging diseases (COVID-19), etc. Having an efficient and effective risk management system will reflect good 

management and transparency that can be verified which is a key factor for future success and enable the Bank to 

grow stably and sustainably.

Government Housing Bank, a state-owned specialized financial institution, recognizes the importance of 

corporate risk management in accordance with COSO 2017- Enterprise Risk Management Integration with Strategy 

and Performance and Core Business Enablers on risk management and internal control (RM&IC) by applying good 

practices as a framework for risk management to ensure that the Bank’s operations meet international standards and 

guidelines set by the Bank of Thailand in order for the Bank to have a good risk management system suitable for the 

nature of the business. The Bank have sufficient capital to cover risks. Personnel at all levels, including the Board of 

Directors, senior management and employees are involved in the management or control the risk to an appropriate 

or acceptable level to gain confidence and achieve the Bank’s mission, vision, strategy, objectives and goals.

Overview of Risk Management and risk operation strategy
The Bank recognizes the importance of risk management to achieve its goals, expectations of stakeholders 

under acceptable risk levels  in accordance with the principles of good corporate governance. Therefore, the Bank 

has a policy to manage risks in the same direction throughout the organization by adhering to principles of good 

practices in line with international standards according to the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 

Commission (COSO 2017), the BOT’s guidelines and risk management rules of the Ministry of Finance.  All departments 

are encouraged to participate in the Bank’s risk management as well as enhancing the dissemination of knowledge, 

understanding and raising awareness of risk management so that risk management is a part of the corporate culture.

Risk Management
The Bank has adopted the BOT’s risk assessment framework and the Statement Enterprise Assessment Model 

(SE-AM), the State Enterprise Policy Office, Ministry of Finance to use as a guideline for determining risk factors (Risk 

Factor), which must be considered all risks throughout the organization (Risk Universe). Internal and external factors 

such as strategic objectives, recommendations of regulatory agencies, rules, official requirements, the Bank’s master 

plans, economic conditions, politics, natural disasters, and epidemics are also analyzed to determine the Risk Cause 

of each risk factor.

 

Risk Management and Internal Control
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The Bank’s Risk Management in 2020.
In 2020, the Bank established a framework of key risk factors in accordance with the Bank of Thailand and 

covered all five risks, including :

1. Strategic Risk Risk that arises from formulation of strategic plan, business plan, and  
implementation of the plan that is inappropriate and inconsistent with internal 
factors and external environment that may affect the Bank’s income, capital 
fund or viability.

2. Credit Risk Probability that the Bank's counterparty fails to meet  its contractual obligations 
with the Bank; as well as the opportunity for counterparties to be downgraded  
credit risk ratings. This may affect the Bank’s  income and capital fund.

3. Market Risk Risk that may cause damage to financial institutions due to the change in the 
value of the position both in the statement of financial position and off the 
statement of financial position caused by the movements of interest rates, 
the price of instruments, exchange rates and commodity prices. Changes in 
interest rates and price of instruments may arise from general market risks 
and/or specific risks.

4. Liquidity Risk Risk that arises from the inability to pay debts or obligations upon maturity 
because assets cannot be converted into cash or fail to raise adequate capital  
to meet the Bank's demand in a timely manner, or can secure capital but 
capital charge is higher than an acceptable level. This may affect income and 
capital fund due to the change of internal and external factors including the 
inappropriateness of the asset and liability structure of the Bank.

5. Operational Risk Risk that arises from inadequate supervision or lack of corporate governance 
and control within the organization, which involves the Bank’s internal  
process, people and system, or from external events, and affects income 
and capital fund, including compliance risks.
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1. Strategic Risk Management 
In 2020, the Bank has adopted risk management principles in its organization management : 1) Establishing 

policies and manuals on the integration of good corporate governance; Integrated Governance Risk and Compliance 

(GRC) 2) Review of risk management policy and risk management manual to be used as a framework and guideline 

for risk management to be in the same direction 3) implementation of risk management principles in the process of 

formulating the 2021 strategic plan 4) Consulting with risk owner in the assessment of the Group and project risks as 

well as determining acceptable risk level (Risk Appetite) and risk tolerance level (Risk Tolerance) for each risk factor 

of the organization in accordance with strategic objectives, strategies, goals, and bring it into a risk management 

plan according to the process that is integrated with the strategic plan, etc. The Bank’s strategic risk management 

can be summarized as follows :

Policy •	 Review and improvement of risk management policy.
•	 Review and improvement of good corporate governance policy, risk management 
	 and regulatory compliance.

Process •	 Review and revise the strategic risk management manual.
•	 Review and revise the operations manual of the strategic business risk and 
	 external event.
•	 Review and revise a manual of integrated good corporate governance manual, 
	 risk management and regulatory compliance.
•	 Prepare a manual of the integrated good corporate governance. risk management 
	 and regulatory compliance

Risk Management Plan •	 Prepare an annual risk management plan and review during the year or 
	 when there are significant changes according to the BOT and COSO-ERM 2017 
	 guidelines.

Risk Management Tool •	 Key Risk Indicator (KRI), Risk Appetite, and Risk Tolerance for each risk factor 
	 under strategic risks.
•	 Creating a Portfolio View of Risk (Finance) to view the Bank’s key Financial 
	 Drivers trend.
•	 Initiating the analysis of Leading Indicators for each risk factor.

Monitoring / Performance Report •	 The Bank’s major risk reports are submitted to the Risk Management 
	 Sub-committee and the Risk Management Committee on a monthly basis.
•	 Report the performance according to the risk management plan to the Risk  
	 Management Sub-committee and the Risk Management Committee on a 
	 quarterly basis.
•	 The Bank’s major risk reports are submitted to the Audit Committee on a 
	 quarterly basis.
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2. Credit Risk Management
In 2020, major risk factors affecting customers’ debt repayment ability was the economic recession affected by 

the COVID-19 epidemic, the Bank therefore managed its credit risk through the following key tools : 1) credit policy 
review, classification policy, provisioning, and debt restructuring according to the current situation and the BOT’s rules 
2) Measures to help affected debtors, such as “Help Thai people to Build a Nation” measure by offering moratorium 
on both principal and interest payments 3) Preparation to enable the Bank to comply with regulatory requirements 
that affect its operations, such as preparation for compliance with Thai Financial Reporting Standard No. 9 (TFRS 9), 
etc. 4) The use of the Credit Scoring Model (A-Score) for credit consideration to ensure that an approval standard is 
consistent with good practices and meets the objectives of credit granting including Credit Scoring Model (B-Score) 
to be used in credit portfolio management 5) Development of tools for overall asset quality management (NPL, NPA 
and deficit) such as daily aging dashboard and NPL pre-forecasting by statistical method to formulate guidelines for 
NPL management. In addition, the Bank introduced the I-Collection, a debt collection system and I-Legal, a legal 
system and deficit system to increase the NPL efficiency and deficit debt management, including increasing the 
channel for debt reconciliation via GH Bank Smart NPL Mobile application 6) Monitoring the structure and expansion  
of the Bank’s credit portfolio, the credit portfolio concentration and the credit quality analysis at the portfolio 
level (Portfolio Analysis); and 7) The implementation pursuant to the BOT’s notifications such as the calculation 
of credit risk-weighted assets by the Standardized Approach (SA) method according to the Basel II and crisis testing 
to estimate capital adequacy. This was to ensure that the Bank has sufficient capital to cover the potential impact 
of credit risk-weighted assets in the future. From the above-mentioned actions, the bank’s NPL reduction was met 
with the target and at an acceptable risk level. The Bank’s credit risk management can be summarized as follows :

Policy •	 Review and revise risk management policy.
•	 Review credit policy.
•	 Classification, provisioning and debt restructuring policy.

Process •	 Review and revise the credit risk management manual.
•	 Review and revise the credit risk management operating manual.
•	 Prepare an annual risk management plan and review during the year or when 
	 there are significant changes according to the BOT and COSO-ERM 2017 guidelines.

Risk Management Tool •	 Key Risk Indicator (KRI), Risk Appetite, and Risk Tolerance for each risk factor under  
	 strategic risks.
•	 Credit Scoring Model (Application Scoring, Behavior Score).
•	 Early Warning System such as Daily Aging Report, Leading Indicators.
•	 Calculation of provision for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) in accordance with TFRS 9.

Monitoring / Performance Report •	 The Bank’s major risk reports are submitted to the Risk Management Sub-committee  
	 and the Risk Management Committee on a monthly basis as well as proposing to  
	 the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.
•	 Report the performance according to the risk management plan to the Risk  
	 Management Sub-committee and the Risk Management Committee on a quarterly  
	 basis.



A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0

Government Housing Bank180

3. Market Risk Management
Market risk refers to the risk that may cause damage to financial institutions due to the change in the asset 

value, liabilities and obligations which is caused by fluctuations in interest rates affecting the Bank’s profit target and 

a decrease in the equity market value. The bank manages market risks by the Asset-Liabilities Committee (ALCO) 

to control, supervise, and assess the damage possibility from risk factors; monitor and report important risks that 

may affect the Bank’s operations through various tools and risk measurement systems. In 2020,  the Bank’s market 

risk management performance was still within the Bank’s risk appetite. The Bank’s market risk management can be 

summarized as follows :

Policy •	 Review market risk management policy according to the BOT Notification   
	 No. Sor Kor Sor. 18/2562 Re: Regulations on Market Risk Supervision and Calculation   
	 of Market Risk-Weighted Assets of Specialized Financial Institutions.
•	 The Bank has transactions only for banking business purpose, not  speculative  
	 transactions.

Process •	 Determine market risk indicators such as Static Repricing Gap, Duration-Based  
	 Gap (EVE Approach) and determine the Risk Appetite and the Risk Tolerance.
•	 Annually review stress testing, market risks by covering interest rate risks.

Risk Management Tool •	 Executive Information System (EIS).
•	 Business Intelligence (ERP-Module BI).
•	 Asset Liability Management System (ALM) (in process).

Monitoring / Performance Report •	 Report on the impact of changes in interest rates (100 bps.) on estimated net  
	 interest income (Static Repricing Gap).
•	 Report on the impact of changes in interest rates (200 bps.) on capital fund  
	 (Duration-Based Gap)
•	 Report on risk assessment under Stress (Stress Testing), market risks and plans  
	 for financing and rebalancing assets and liabilities, etc.
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4. Liquidity Risk Management
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that arises from the inability to pay debts or obligations upon maturity because 

assets cannot be converted into cash or fail to raise adequate capital  to meet the Bank’s demand in a timely  

manner, or can secure capital but capital charge is higher than an acceptable level. This may affect income and 

capital fund due to the change of internal and external factors including the inappropriateness of the asset and 

liability structure of the Bank. The Asset-Liabilities Committee (ALCO) is responsible for controling, supervising and 

assessing the possibility of damage from risk factors. In 2020,  the Bank’s liquidity risk management performance was 

still within the Bank’s risk appetite. The Bank’s liquidity risk management can be summarized as follows :

Policy •	 Review liquidity risk management policy pursuant to the BOT’s Notification  
	 Re: Liquidity Risk Management of Specialized Financial Institutions, dated  
	 September 2, 2019.
•	 Ratio of liquid assets pursuant to the BOT Notification no. Sor Kor Sor. 21/2562  
	 Re: Regulations on Maintainance of Liquidity Assets of Specialized Financial 
	 Institutions.

Process •	 Determine liquidity risk indicators, Risk Appetite, Risk Tolerance and Risk Limits  
	 to monitor risks.
•	 Quarterly review stress testing and liquidity risks.

Risk Management Tool •	 Executive Information System (EIS)
•	 Asset Liability Management System (ALM) (in process)
•	 Liquidity risk ratios and indicators such as liquidity ratio, Liquidity Coverage Ratio  
	 (LCR) and Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSRF).

Monitoring / Performance Report •	 Follow up on a liquidity forecast report 30 days in advance.
•	 Report on Ratio and liquidity risk indicators, Contractual Liquidity Gap and  
	 Behavioural Liquidity Gap. 
•	 Report on financial resource concentration and results of stress tests on  
	 liquidity risks, etc.
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5. Operational Risk Management
Risk that arises from inadequate supervision or lack of corporate governance and control within the organization,  

which involves the Bank’s internal processes, people and system, or from external events, and affects incomes and 

capital fund, including compliance risk. The Bank manages operational risk under the framework of the BOT and 

COSO-ERM 2017. All the Bank’s departments are encouraged to participate in risk management according to the  

3 Lines of Defense mechanism consisting of First Line of Defense: Business Unit, Second Line of Defense: Supporting  

Units in charge of risk management and internal control, and Third Line of Defense: The Audit Department.  

In 2020, the Bank’s operational risk management performance was still within the Bank’s risk appetite. The Bank’s 

operational risk management can be summarized as follows :

Policy •	 Review risk management policy and business continuity management Policy.
•	 Prepare an annual operational risk management plan.
•	 Determine Key Risk Indicators (KRIs), Risk Appetite, and Risk Tolerance for each  
	 risk factor under operational risk.

Process •	 Review contingency plan and business continuity plan in accordance with  
	 ISO 22301 : 2019 standards and current situations such as the COVID-19 pandemic.

Monitoring / Performance Report •	 Report operational risks monthly.
•	 Report Loss Data monthly.

Development in 2020 •	 Receive a certificate of ISO 22301: 2019 Business Continuity Management System:  

	 Scope of money transfer and settlement of mobile application: GHB ALL

•	 Develop an Operational Risk Management System (ORMS) for recording and  

	 storing data on Risk and Control Self Assessment (RCSA), Key Risk Indicators (KRI)  

	 and Loss Event Reporting.

•	 Develop a program for calculating value equivalent to operational risk-weighted  

	 assets through the work system developed by the Bank.
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6. IT Risk Management
Information technology risk refers to the risk that arises from the use of information technology such as  

operating systems, application systems, database systems, computer hardware and communication network systems 

including  risks arising from cyber threats (cyber attacks).

In 2020, the Bank has continually focused on information technology risk management to be efficient in order 

to support the new business model and disruptive technology, unexpected situations, such as an emerging disease 

(COVID-19), etc., under the framework of regulatory principles of the BOT, such as the confidentiality of systems 

and data (Confidentiality); accuracy, reliability of systems and information (Integrity); and availability of information 

technology (Availability), which was based on data protection and customers’ benefits. The Bank has managed key 

information technology risks as follows  :

Policy •	 Prepare and review information technology risk management policies to keep up  
	 with the current situation.
•	 Prepare and review risk management manual and plan to cover information  
	 technology risk management, including cyber threats to manage risks to maintain the  
	 Bank’s risk appetite.

Process •	 Conduct a Cyber Resilience Assessment and formulate a risk management plan.
•	 Prepare, review and test IT-DRP contingency plans to cover critical banking systems  
	 including a cyber threat response plan to support in the event that critical systems  
	 are unable to provide services or in the event of a cyber threat so as not to affect the  
	 Bank’s customer service and major operations.
•	 Apply the 3-Line Of Defense principle in risk management. All relevant departments  
	 are involved in risk management to prevent and mitigate risks in providing digital 
	 services.
•	 Communicate knowledge and raise awareness of information technology security  
	 including new cyber threats to employees including stakeholders, such as regulators,  
	 partners regularly.

Risk Management Tool •	 Conduct Risk Control Self Assessment for information technology risk assessment.
•	 Prepare Key Risk Indicators (KRI) on information technology, report loss events on   
	 information technology.

Monitoring / Performance Report •	 Report information technology risks monthly.
•	 Report Loss Data on information technology monthly.

Development in 2020 •	 Consistently comply with information security standards and request for various  
	 standard certifications such as ISO/IEC 27001, ISO 22301: 2019.
•	 Develop a standard checklist for managing risks in the implementation of key 
	 information technology projects and assess the risk of sensitive information  
	 leakage, etc.
•	 Apply for a cyber insurance to prevent damage to an acceptable range.
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Risk Management Structure 
The Bank has established an appropriate risk management structure to support various risk management by 

allowing a risk management unit to work independently. All business units must take a key role in identifying, assessing 

and supervising operational risks for which they are responsible. The Bank has defined roles and responsibilities of 

the risk owner, risk management unit and the auditing unit involved in the Bank’s risk management in accordance 

with “3 Lines of Defense” principle : 1) Risk owner is responsible for Day-to-Day Risk Management 2) The Bank’s 

Board of Directors, Risk Management Committee and sub-committee and risk management unit are responsible for 

Risk oversight; and 3) The Audit Committee and audit unit are responsible for review and examination (Independent 

Assurance).

In addition, the Bank has appointed various committees to serve in policy determination, strategy and risk 

management, such as the Asset- Liability Committee (ALCO), Credit Committee, Marketing committee, Asset Quality 

Management Committee and Internal Control Supervision Committee, etc. (as shown in the diagram).

Executive Board The Board of Directors

Risk Management Committee

Risk Management Sub-committee

President

Risk Management

Audit Committee

CG&CSR Committee

Internal Control
Supervision Committee

Human Resource Committee
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Marketing Committee

Management Committee
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NPL Committee

Asset Quality Management Committee

Strategic Risk Credit Risk Market & Liquidity Risk

Operational and system risk monitoring in departments / offices / regions / centers

ORO

Reporting Line Communication Line Operation Risk OfficerORO

ORO ORO ORO ORO

Operational Risk

IT : IT Strategy and
Policy Committee
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Internal Control 
The Bank attaches great importance to internal control as its process is not a one-time event or situation. 

It is a process in normal operations at all levels that can change over time. Internal control is therefore a tool for 

preventing or reducing risks and damages that may occur from operations helping the Bank cope with changes in 

the business environment and business model effectively. The Board of Directors, executives and employees jointly 

set up an internal control process that covers all operational activities to achieve three objectives :

1.	 Operation : To have cost-effective and efficient resources management, including asset management to 

prevent or minimize errors, damage, leakage, or corruption.

2.	 Reporting : To have accurate, transparent, reliable financial and non-financial reports, and to help support 

executives’ decision-making in a timely manner.

3.	 Compliance : To strictly comply with laws, rules, regulations, external regulations including internal  

operating manual.

The Bank has assessed its internal control in accordance with Internal Control for Government Agencies, Ministry 

of Finance B.E. 2561 and The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of Treadway Committee Standards (2013) with 

all 5 elements and 17 principles through the Operational Risk Management System (ORMS) at both organizational 

and sub-department level. Due to COVID-19 pandemic, the Bank has used technology to benefit the organization, 

such as training through the Micro-Learning system to maintain the distance of employees to prevent the spread of 

the virus, developing Dashboard to track performance, supervising to prevent any non-compliance with rules and 

reducing corruption possibilities, etc. All units had management and supervision practices in accordance with the 

3 Lines of Defense. 
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At the meeting No. 15/2019 on October 24, 2019, the Bank’s Board of Directors appointed a representative 
from the Ministry of Social Development and Human Security (Ms. Patcharee Arayakul) to be a member of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Therefore, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises the 
Chairman : Dr. Kirida Bhaopijitr and two members : Mr. Thanin Pa-em and Mrs. Patcharee Arayakul and The Bank’s 
President as an Advisor of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has performed duties in compliance with the principles of 
good governance as stipulated in the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Charter by defining policies, criteria 
and methods for recruitment, appointment, promotion, remuneration and other benefits for Senior Vice President 
of departments/ offices/ regions (equivalent or higher level), Senior Executive Vice President or equivalent levels. 
Moreover, the Committee has considered remuneration and other benefits for the committee members before 
proposing to the Board of Directors for approval. The Committee has also determined performance evaluation 
guidelines and annual remuneration adjustment for committee members and Executive Vice President (equivalent 
and higher level) including the President and proposed to the Board of Directors for approval.

In 2020, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee held a total of 15 meetings. Each committee attended 
the meeting and considered important matters to present to the Board of Directors as follows :

1.	 Considered reviewing employee performance-based bonus payments, job rank 12-14.
2.	 Considered and screened the appointment of senior management and Senior Vice President of  

departments / offices / regions.
3.	 Considered the adjustment of business unit/group, job functions and manpower.
4.	 Considered performance benchmarks of senior management (equivalent or higher levels) in case of 

working less than 12 months.
5.	 Considered the framework for performance assessment of Senior Executive Vice President or equivalent 

level and Executive Vice President or equivalent level
6.	 Assessed performance of Senior Executive Vice President or equivalent level, Executive Vice President or 

equivalent level including the annual performance assessment of the President for annual salary increases.
7.	 Considered the selection of the Bank’s President to serve in Committee members.
8.	 Reviewed the nomination of the Bank’s Board of Directors’ policy. 
9.	 Considered and scrutinized the organizational restructuring to support Secondary Mortgage Corporations 

and the manpower projection for the years 2021-2025.
The Bank’s human resource management has been constantly improving and helping the Bank to effectively 

achieve its goals in accordance with the government policy in 2020. Meeting minutes and recommendations were 
reported to the Board of Directors quarterly. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has performed duties 
as assigned by the Board of Directors to the best of their ability with due care, prudence and transparency for the 
optimal benefits of the Bank and all stakeholders.

					     (Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr)
 					     Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Report of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
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1. 	 Human Resources Management Plan / Project
	 In order to transform the Bank to become a Digital Banking, the Bank has to prepare personnel to support 

its business operations by increasing the efficiency of human resource management operations to have a higher 
proportion of potential people (smart people) as targeted in 2020 equal to 8.50 percent. Therefore, the Bank has 
set up human resources management by applying the 5 R strategy consisting of

	 •	 Recruit : Recruiting smart and good people to join the organization.
	 •	 Re-train: Training personnel to have competent knowledge, ability, and skills that are competent enough  

			   to compete with external agencies.
	 •	 Re-allocate : Allocating manpower properly and having guidelines for managing and enhancing personnel  

			   knowledge.
	 •	 Re-attitude : Changing attitudes and behaviors to respond to business operations in the digital age.
	 •	 Re-structure : Restructuring the Bank and reducing organization’s redundancy to be flexible to keep  

			   up with the environment and situations.

To comply with 5 R strategy, the Bank has to prepare personnel under the key plans in each area as follows :

"5 R” strategy Project Project’s objective

1. Recruit 1.	 Project to recruit high  
	 potential personnel.

Increase the efficiency of the recruiting and selection 
system for high potential personnel to join the Bank, for 
example, in 2020, the Bank increased the efficiency of 
recruiting channels by creating the GHB Contest project, 
a project that selected talented students to join the Bank 
by the Bank’s financial product development concept 
contest.

2. Re - train 2.	 Human resources development  
	 project to create credit and  
	 finance expertise. (Up-Skill)

Develop credit and finance skills for branch officers to 
accommodate competition and changes.

3.	 Human resources development  
	 project to support digital  
	 transformation.

Develop knowledge/skills/proficiency for executives 
and employees to work more effectively, responding to  
Digital / Service / Process / Product of the Bank in the future.

3. Re - allocate  4.	 Branch classification and
	 manpower (S, M, L, XL) 
	 project

• 	Branch classification and manpower S, M, L, XL.
•	 Enhance knowledge for employees who perform  
	 financial tasks to be able to perform credit tasks  
	 effectively (Re-Skill).

4. Re - attitude 5.	 Project to enhance work
	 culture through GIVE+4

Enhance work culture through corporate values “GIVE+4” 
and “GHB 1 TEAM” by encouraging employees to change 
their attitudes and behaviors in response to business 
operations in the digital age by adding the Bank’s Core 
Value, from GIVE to GIVE+4, to enhance customer  
responsiveness by focusing on speed and professionalism, 
consisting of 1) (en)Courage to Change, 2) Commitment 
to Success (Achievement Oriented) 3) Expertise in the job 
(Professional) and 4) finish early / in time (Speed).

5. Re - structure 6.	 Project to review
	 organizational structure.

Review the organizational structure to restructure the 
organization into a Flat Organization model and adjust 
work processes to be more streamlined and efficient.

Human Resources Management
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2.  Number of the Bank employees on December 31, 2020

No. Department / Office / Region / Center Predident
Contract 
executive

Officer
Contract 
officer

Bank’s 
employees

Total

1 Bank 1 2 164 14 19 200

2 Office of the President 21 1 1 23

3 Secondary Mortgage Corporation  
Management Support Department

59 59

4 Debt Collection and Loan Management 
Department

18 18

5 IT Audit Department 21 1 2 24

6 Branch Audit Department 34 2 1 37

7 Head Office Internal Audit Department 18 1 19

8 Strategic Planning Department 17 1 1 19

9 Corporate Assessment Department 24 2 2 28

10 Reseach and Information Services
Department

22 3 1 26

11 Human Resource Department 53 6 58 117

12 Learning and Development Department 27 2 29

13 Corporate Communications Department 22 14 8 44

14 Corporate Social Responsibility Department 16 2 4 22

15 Risk Management Department 28 1 29

16 Credit Review Department 29 2 1 32

17 IT Security Center 6 2 8

18 Fraud Prevention Center 8 1 9

19 Bangkok Metropolitan Branch
Department 1

271 40 44 355

20 Bangkok Metropolitan Branch
Department 2

286 44 41 371

21 Metropolitan Support Department 164 31 24 219

22 North Branch (Uptown) Department 157 22 15 194

23 North Branch (Downtown) Department 98 19 14 131

24 Northeastern Branch (Uptown) Department 147 27 16 190

25 Northeastern Branch (Downtown)
Department

130 18 15 163

26 Eastern Branch Department 219 39 24 282

27 Central and South Branch (Uptown)
Department

177 25 23 225

28 Western South Branch (Downtown)
Department

182 25 27 234

29 IT Operating Department 67 6 7 80
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No. Department / Office / Region / Center Predident
Contract 
executive

Officer
Contract 
officer

Bank’s 
employees

Total

30 Digital Technology Department 8 1 9

31 IT Development Department 27 27

32 Digital Development Department 55 1 56

33 Planning and Management Technology 
Center

17 4 21

34 Loan Products Development  Department 20 1 4 25

35 Customer Relationship Department 23 1 72 96

36 Digital Services Banking Department 23 1 7 31

37 Deposit Products Development 
Department

12 1 2 15

38 Deposit and Alliances Department 26 2 2 30

39 Retail Credit Analysis Department 64 1 2 67

40 Project Loan Analysis Department 27 3 3 33

41 Government-Policy and Social-
Development Loans Department

21 2 7 30

42 Credit Support Department 48 1 9 58

43 Bangkok Metropolitan Debt Management 
Department

66 2 50 118

44 Regional Debt Management Department 258 64 77 399

45 Case Management Department 27 1 8 36

46 NPA Development Department 52 5 57

47 Legal Execution and Deficit Loan 
Department

59 1 7 67

48 Compliances Department 28 1 6 35

49 Legal Department 22 3 25

50 Office and Branch Administration 
Department

57 3 108 168

51 Procurement Department 40 1 12 53

52 Accounting Department 37 3 1 41

53 Cash Management Department 37 3 7 47

54 Treasury Department 14 4 18

55 Collateral Appraisal Department 74 1 14 89

56 Loan Documents Department 117 9 41 167

57 Real Estate Information Center 2 36 38

Total 1 2 3,746 457 837 5,043
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3.	 Employee Remuneration and Expenses

	 The Bank has a policy to determine the remuneration for employees based on economic conditions, cost 

of living, standard compensation of the same industry group, business conditions and the Bank’s performance which is 

still in accordance with the criteria for improving the incentive system for remuneration according to the performance  

appraisal system of state enterprises and the Bank’s regulations. In addition, the Bank has performance-based bonus 

system. For annual salary increase, the Bank sets a different salary increase rate (Money Model) according to employees’ 

 level of assessmen and bonuses are paid according to the assessment performance for the Bank’s executives.

	 In 2020, the Bank had expenses for its employees (including senior management) consisting of salaries, 

bonuses and welfare expenses such as contributions to provident fund, medical expenses, child support, child 

education assistance, costume costs totaling 4,368.13 million baht, Details are as follows :

					     Unit : Million Baht

Item 2018 2019 2020

Salary 2,092.23 2,390.44 2,549.71

Bonus 1,166.96 1,295.96 1,291.70

Welfare 490.90 503.52 526.72

Total 3,750.09 4,189.92 4,368.13

 4.	 Employee Training and Development Policy 

	 The bank has adjusted its human resource development to prepare personnel for current technological 

changes, competitions as well as the New Normal. Due to COVID-19 pandemic, the Bank has developed the policy 

to support important changes as follows :	

	 1)	 Review the Bank’s capability to be in line with the context of the Bank’s business operations,  

including Core Competency, Managerial Competency, Functional Competency and Digital Competency in accordance 

with personnel development to support Digital services and New Normal era.

	 2)	 Develop a Learning Management System (LMS) for personnel development management for flexibility,  

speed and convenience. It is also in compliance with social distancing guidelines in the COVID-19 situation and can 

be used in recruitment and selection of the Bank’s personnel.

	 3)	 Develop financial personnel with comprehensive knowledge and skills to be able to perform credit 

operations efficiently to support changes in restructuring and manpower (Re-Skill Program).

	 4)	 Develop personnel to enhance their expertise (Professional) in technology, audit and human resource 

management. The Bank has encouraged ane supported executives and employees to take various professional 

qualification tests with external institutions that are recognized nationally and internationally, such as Certified 

Professional Internal Auditor of Thailand, The Certified Internal Auditor, Certified Ethical Hacker, Comp TIA Security, 

HR professional certification, etc.
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	 5)	 Adjust the development approach based on Model 70 : 20 : 10 [70 : Learning from real work experience.  
(Experiential Learning) 20 : Learning from development from others (Coaching & Mentoring) 10 : Learning from training 
(Formal Learning)] with emphasis on self-learning and learning from experience through Digital Learning Platform 
in the form of E-Learning and Micro Learning to create digital learning skills for personnel until it becomes a digital 
culture in the Bank.

	 6)	 Develop high potential personnel. The Bank has a systematic and continuous development plan to 
accommodate key positions such as the Leadership Development project for executives at Senior Vice President of 
Department level, the High Potential Management project for executives at the level of Executive Vice President of 
Department/Head, the Smart Leader project, “GHB The Next” project for personnel (Level 4-10)  with graduate GPA 
not less than 3.00 and have an annual performance appraisal at a good level. In 2020, assessment and follow-up 
process was developed for those who were appointed as Senior Vice President of departments / offices / regions 
or equivalent levels in order to apply the assessment results for the potential development to be continuity and 
in line with the business direction. In addition, the Bank developed potential personnel according to conditions set 
by the Bank to support career growth and the development of the Bank’s next-generation leaders under the “Being 
Intelligence Leader” project for personnel (Level 9-10) to develop their potential, knowledge, skills in various aspects 
that are necessary for the Bank’s business.

	 In addition, the Bank also developed personnel in other areas related to official regulations by providing 
training courses such as anti-money laundering, Market Conduct Knowledge, Personal Data Protection Act B.E. 2562, 
Anti-Corruption, Anti-Bribery and Conflicts of Interest, Training course for obtaining and renewing a life insurance 
broker license and non-life insurance brokers, safety training, and awareness building of energy conservation, etc.

	 In 2020, the Bank developed its executives and employees through 108 in-house training courses and 
133 public training courses, both domestic and international training courses, provided by external institutions.  
The total number of courses was 241 courses, with an average of 33.76 hours of training for executives and  

employees per person/year.
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The Board of Directors has appointed the Audit Committee which consists of independent expert members. 

The Audit Committee that performed duties in 2020 are as follows :

	 1.	 According to the Bank’s Board of Director Order No. 16/2562 as of April 25, 2019, effective from  

April 25, 2019 to April 23, 2020, consisting of

		  Ms. Ratana	 Anupasanant	 Chairman of the Audit Committee

		  Mr. Thanin  	 Pa-em	 Member

		  Dr. Kirida 	 Bhaopichitr	 Member

	 2.	 According to the Bank’s Board of Director Order No. 18/2523 as of April 29, 2020, effective from  

April 24, 2020 to present, consisting of

		  Mr. Thanin  	 Pa-em	 Chairman of the Audit Committee	

			   Dr. Kirida 	 Bhaopichitr	 Member

		  Mr. Wichit 	 Sangtongstit	 Member

The top management of the Audit Group acts as the  Audit Committee Secretary.

The Audit Committee performed its duties within the assigned scope of duties and responsibilities stated in  

the Audit Committee Charter assigned by the Board of Directors and in line with the Ministry of Finance regulations  

RE : Audit Committee and Internal Audit Unit of State Enterprises B.E. 2555, Operation Manual for the Audit Committee 

in State Enterprises, the Ministry of Finance B.E. 2555. The Audit Committee emphasized on the efficiency and  

effectiveness of the internal audit process to enhance added value and to prevent the Bank’s potential damage as 

well as focusing on the Bank’s transparency.

In 2020, the Audit Committee held 20 meetings to consider and follow up on various matters by discussing 

with the management in the relevant agenda and had a special meeting to discuss with the auditor (Office of the 

Auditor General) on a quarterly basis. The Audit Committee reported the performance to the Board of Directors 

quarterly. The key points are summarized as follows :

Financial reports

The Audit Committee performed audits on monthly, quarterly and annually with the finance and accounting 

unit’s executives and had discussions regularly with the auditors, without the participation of the Bank’s management, 

on financial statements’ accuracy, adjustment of key accounting items, significant issues that affected the financial 

statements and remarks made by the auditor to ensure that financial statements and financial reports were in  

accordance with financial reporting standards, the BOT’s regulations, the Fiscal Policy Office No. Gor Kor. 1006/1254, 

dated March 19, 2019 Re: Compliance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards No. 9 on Financial Instruments of 

Specialized Financial Institutions. The Bank’s information was adequate, complete, timely and reliable disclosure. 

The Minister of Finance agreed to extend the TFRS 9 implementation of SFIs for another five years until January 

1, 2025. Therefore, the Audit Committee has monitored the implementation and preparation for the new financial 

reporting standards regularly and continuously as well as the impact of the COVID-19 epidemic.

Report of the Audit Committee
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 Internal Control

The Audit Committee placed emphasis on  “Three Lines of Defense” management model. The internal 

control system was reviewed by considering the Bank’s internal control assessment reports, internal audit reports 

of the BOT and the Office of Auditor General’s internal audit units. The Audit Committee monitored the internal 

control system and internal control self-assessment, as well as following up on improvement results of the internal 

control system and solving issues found by the BOT and the Office of Auditor General’s internal audit units to be 

appropriate and timely to ensure that the Bank’s internal control system was appropriate and sufficient. The Audit 

Committee also audited the Bank’s operations in accordance with the State Enterprise Assessment Model (SE-AM), 

the State Enterprise Policy Office, Ministry of Finance to improve the Bank operating efficiency, in line with good 

corporate governance principles. In addition, the Audit Committee monitored the assessment performance of the 

Bank’s electronic payment service to ensure that the Bank had a good and adequate internal control system in 

accordance with the Bank’s IT Security Policy and  the BOT’s guidelines.

Risk Management

The Audit Committee reviewed the Bank’s risk management reports and monitored risk management  

performance quarterly by organizing a meeting with risk management executives to ensure that the Bank’s risk 

management was appropriate, efficient and within the level of risk appetite. 

Internal Audit

The Audit Committee reviewed and approved the Audit Group Charter to consider the internal auditor’s 

performance policy and operation manual to ensure the suitability of duties, responsibilities scope of work, rights 

and independence of the auditors; approved a 5-year strategic audit plan, annual audit plan and annual budget;  

evaluated the adequacy of internal audit resources, personnel development plan and performance index;   

considered plans to improve internal audit performance to be in line with the State Enterprise Assessment Model 

(SE-AM) and continuously monitored its improvements. The Audit Committee gave advice for operations as well as 

supporting the development to enhance the quality of internal audit work, in terms of giving confidence, consulting  

and proactive audit by using information technology for auditing and continuously monitoring abnormalities to  

increase operational efficiency. The audit performance assessment is conducted by external agencies every 5 years.  

In 2020, the Bank hired independent external assessors to assess audit work quality (Quality Assessment Review (QAR). 

In addition, the Audit Committee also encouraged internal auditors to develop their knowledge and competence 

to acquire a Professional Internal Audit Certificate.
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Regulatory Compliance

The Audit Committee reviewed and monitored regulatory compliance with the management regularly to 

ensure that the Bank complied with the Bank’s rules, requirements, operating regulations, laws, announcements 

and notifications relating to the Bank’s operations.

Reports that may have conflicts of interest

The Audit Committee reviewed reports that the management and employees signed annually to ensure  

that their operations do not fall within the scope of conflicts of interest and also reviewed audit reports of each  

sub-unit to ensure that no conflict of interest investigation process exist before entering into a contract as stipulated 

by regulations for good governance, transparent operations and compliance with the Bank’s code of conduct manual.

Maintaining the Quality of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee reviewed and improved the Audit Committee Charter. In addition, the Audit Committee 

performance assessment was conducted at least once a year by group-assessment and individual assessment by 

the Chairman of the Audit Committee according to the guidelines of the State Enterprise Policy Office, Ministry of 

Finance to ensure efficient performance and achieve the objectives as stipulated in the Audit Committee Charter.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Government Housing Bank was audited by the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand. In 2020, the 

Bank’s auditors received a remuneration of 3,250,000 baht, equal to 2019.

					     (Mr. Thanin Pa-em)  

					     Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Internal audit is an operation to build trust and provides fair and independent consultations to add values 

and improve the Bank’s operations to achieve its goals by assessing and improving the efficiency and effectiveness 

of management processes and operations.

Internal audit is also a key mechanism in good corporate governance process which supports the the Audit 

Committee performance in reviewing the internal control system, good governance, risk management and legal  

compliance including rules and regulations. The Internal Audit Committee has developed the Internal Audit Charter 

and operation manual to use as a guideline for professional practice standards in accordance with the state enterprise 

internal audit guideline, criteria for assessment of operational and management processes (Enablers) for internal 

audit according to State Enterprises Performance Assessment Manual (SE-AM) and has complied with the Ministry 

of Finance regulations on the Audit Committee and the Internal Audit Unit of State Enterprises B.E. 2555 and the 

operation manual of internal Audit of State Enterprises (2012), which includes the following internal audit as follows :

1)	 Qualification of internal auditors

The Bank’s internal auditors must have at least a bachelor’s degree or higher and possess appropriate 

knowledge, skills and understanding of the Bank’s business, risks and internal control including IT supervision and 

other necessary skills to ensure that the internal auditor’s experience is sufficient for audit operations covering audit 

objectives and established standards. The Bank encourages internal auditors to attend development training, an 

average of 40 hours per year and to paricipate in Certified Internal Auditor Professional Program and other certificatie 

programs. At present, 18 internal auditors have received professional certifications, totaling 36 certificates, namely,  

Certified Information System Auditor (CISA) certificate : 1 person, Certified Public Accountant (CPA) : 2 persons,  

Certified Professional Internal Audit of Thailand (CPIAT) : 13 persons,  Certificate of Auditors of IT Security Management 

System according to ISO/IEC 27001 : 2013 : 1 person, Certificate of IT Security Management System Auditor according 

to ISO/IEC 20000 : 2018 : 1 person, Diploma of IT Security Management System (I-Sec-M and I-Sec-T) : 2 persons, 

Certified Information Technology Infrastructure Library Foundation (ITIL) : 5 persons, Computing Technology Industry 

Association Security+ certificate (CompTIA Security+) : 6 persons, CompTIA IT Fundamentals Certificate (CompTIA 

ITF+) : 3 person, Certificate of Internal Auditing Education Partnership Program (IAEP): 1 person and Certificate of 

Internal Auditing Certificate Program (IACP) : 1 person.

2)	 Internal Audit Structure

The internal auditors directly report to the Audit Committee (AC). Internal audit general administration reports 

directly to the Bank’s President. They are independent in their operations and reporting. The roles and responsibilities 

are clearly defined in the Internal Audit Charter which is communicated to all employees.

 

Internal Audit
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3)       Relashionship with Management Team

The internal audit department has a good relationship with management team. The internal auditors present 

reports independently and fairly; prepares an audit plan based on the Audit Committee and senior management 

expectations, opinions, suggestions or operation concerns including remarks made by the BOT and Office of the 

Auditor General. The 5-year strategic audit plan and an annual audit plan are prepared and consistent with strategies  

and the Bank’s major risks (Risk Based Approach), including information technology audit issues, General Control 

Application Control and IT Security which are approved by the President and the Audit Committee.

4)	 Duties and Responsibilities of Internal Auditor

Internal auditors’ duties and responsibilities are clearly stipulated in the Internal Audit Charter and are  

communicated to all executives and employees as follows: developing an annual audit plan and proposing to the 

Audit Committee for approval to improve work process, increasing the efficiency and effectiveness of risk management 

and internal control process; good corporate governance processes; accuracy and reliability of financial information; 

and compliance with laws, regulations, rules, procedures and related orders, auditing items that may cause conflict 

of interest and fraud. In addition, the Bank has organized trainings to improve internal auditors’ knowledge, skill, 

experience and professionalism.

5)	 Operation and Reporting

For the audit operations, a strategic audit plan and annual audit plan are established based on the  

Risk-Based Approach. Key risk factors from the risk management department are used in planning to align with strategies  

and corporate risks together with risk factors that the audit group used for assessment and risk classification, senior 

management’s comments and detected issues of the BOT and the Office of the Auditor General to ensure internal 

audit achievement. Computerized Integration Audit System (CIAS) tools are applied for analyzing data (Data Analytics)  

from various banking systems under auditors’ rules and regulations (rule-based). The results are displayed in a form 

of a report or Dashboard, which is an upgrade of the audit operation to be a continuous audit and in line with the 

Bank’s strategy to become a digital bank. Audit results are proposed to the Audit Committee, executives, relevant 

executives and the President in order to improve performance and prevent recurring problems. Key issues are  

summarized and reported  the Audit Committee quarterly.

6)	 Maintaining work quality of internal auditors 

Internal audit work quality is assessed and improved annually by self-assessment, by inspection unit, by the 

Bank’s senior management and by independent external assessors which is conducted every 5 years to compare with 

standards and best practices. The results of the assessment are analyzed to improve the internal audit efficiency.
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The Board of Directors has appointed the IT Strategy and Policy Committee, consisting of independent 

directors and senior experts, to perform duties from November 29, 2019, including :

1.	 Senior Colonel Dr. Jearanai Vongsaard 	 Chairman

2.	 Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr	 Member

3.	 The Bank’s President	 Member

4.	 Senior Executive Vice President, Information Technology Unit	 Secretary		

On April 24, 2020, the Board of Directors has appointed the IT and Strategy and Policy Committee to perform 

duties from April 24, 2020 onwards, including:   

1.	 Senior Colonel Jearanai Vongsaard 	 Chairman

2.	 Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr	 Member

3.	 Mr. Eitti Ponguussara	 Member

4.	 The Bank’s President	 Member

5.	 Senior Executive Vice President, Information Technology Unit 	 Secretary

Nowadays, innovation and IT development is very important. Therefore, the IT Strategy and Policy Committee 

has been assigned by the Board of Directors to have additional authority and duties to oversee the implementation 

of knowledge management and innovation. The Board of Directors has also changed the Committee’s name to the 

IT & KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee in accordance with the assigned authority and duties which is effective 

from May 27, 2020 onwards. Moreover, in order to supervise the implementation of the Bank’s IT strategy and policy 

as well as knowledge management and innovation, the Board of Directors has therefore prescribed the IT & KM-Inno 

Strategy and Policy Committee Charter, effective from August 20, 2020.

In 2020, the IT & KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee has performed its duties within its scope, authority 

and responsibilities as determined in the above charter including supervising, monitoring, considering various issues 

and reporting meeting results to the Board of Directors quaterly. Key points can be summarized as follows :

Defined the Bank’s vision and goals for digital technology, knowledge management and innovation.

Defined a vision and the Bank’s digital technology goals by assigning the Information Technology Unit to review 

2017-2021 digital action plan (revised 2020) under the COVID-19 situation in August 2020 and developed 2021-2025  

digital action plan by defining the Bank’s vision in line with the national strategy, framework, direction, and goals  

for the development and use of digital technology to support the Bank’s policies, strategies and goals in  

conducting business in order to become a digital bank. The Bank’s 2021-2025  digital action plan was approved in 

October 2020.

Report of the IT & KM-Inno Strategy
and Policy Committee
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For knowledge management and innovation, the Committee has established a policy towards the vision 

“Learning Organization to Be The Best Housing Solution Bank” and towards an “Innovative Organization to Be The 

Best Housing Solution Bank” in 2025; approved a review of 2018–2021 Knowledge and innovation management 

master plan  (reviewed in 2020), 2020 action plan on August 11, 2020, 2021-2025 knowledge management master 

plan and 2021 annual action plan, 2021-2025 innovation management master plan and 2021 annual action plan on 

December 8, 2020. In addtion, the Committee has developed personnel to achieve the above-mentioned plans and 

supported the Bank’s to achieve its vision “The Best Housing Solution Bank” and mission, “Enabling Thai people to 

Have Their Own Home” according to the Bank’s strategic plan.

Established a digital technology management policy.

Established a good IT Governance Policy to be use as a guideline for management, control and supervision 

of the technology usage in accordance with the said policy to support digital services at present and in the future, 

the adoption of corporate architecture as a framework for effective management of digital technology resources. 

Moreover, IT Security Policy has been set to make the bank’s technology structure more secure.

Identified guidelines and scope of human resource development including resource allocation for the  

	 development of digital technology.

Provided the Bank’s personnel development policy to improve digital technology knowledge and ability to 

prepare for disruptive technology wich will severely affect the Bank by providing policies and guidelines to improve 

IT personnel to meet digital technology standard and IT security certificate.

Supervised, monitored, reviewed and assessed the performance of digital technology plan / knowledge  

	 and innovation management plan.

Supervised and reviewed information technology management, evaluated the performance according to  

2017-2021 digital action plan (revised in 2020). Successful projects according to the plans that are corporate  

indicators, such as the project to open deposit accounts in a digital from, the Virtual NPL Management project, the 

savings lottery project, and the NPA online auction project, etc. Project implementation were closely monitored until 

the goal was effectively achieved as planned. In addition, the Committee provided advice on the Bank’s information 

technology management in order to be able to manage the cost-effective use of resources, respond to all aspects 

of the Bank’s business and comply with policies and directions as stipulated in the digital technology action plan. 

For knowledge management and innovation, the results were in accordance with the knowledge management and 

innovation action plan in 2020 and all goals were achieved. The results of operations according to the digital action 

plan and the knowledge management and innovation action plan were reported to the Board of Directors quarterly.

					     (Senior Colonel Dr. Jearanai Vongsaard)

 					     Chairman of the IT & KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee
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2020 was a very challenging year for the Bank’s IT management as the Bank aimed to develop its services to be 

“Smart Digital Services” by developing a digital system to provide services to customers instead of traditional services 

along with Covid-19 pandemic that has greatly impacted the Bank’s employees’ behavior and customer behavior. 

For example, the Bank’s employees need to Work from Home (WFH), which required technology to support whether 

it is a Teleconference or VPN (Virtual Private Network) technology to provide security in connecting online systems, 

etc. In addition, customer behavior has changed as well. They have used more services through mobile application, 

instead of going to the bank’s branch. All of which can be considered as work or using a New Normal service, which 

has pushed the Bank to adjust the digital technology plan to keep up with the New Normal era.

The Bank has a digital action plan for 2020 with the vision of “Smart Digital Services”, aiming to develop the 

organization towards a digital state enterprise. The Bank has developed its services in a form of Digital Services in 

accordance with the Bank’s strategic plan and adjusted various procedures as well as developing its infrastructure to 

support its stable growth. In addition, the Bank has developed new mobile application service functions to support  

the changing behavior of customers in the New Normal style through the Bank’s Mobile Application, GHB ALL.  

The new service is called New Normal Services (NEO Services).

According to 2020 digital action plan, the Bank has established two strategies for digital technology  

development consisting of : 

 

The Bank’s “Digital Service”

Missi
on

Vision

IT Service

พันธกิจ : Deliver the BEST for Digital Services
วิสัยทัศน์ : Smart Digital Services

External
Services

External
Services

Internal
Services

IT Infrastructure

• โครงการ GHB Express Loan
• โครงการประมูลขายทรัพย NPL ออนไลนฯ
• โครงการ Amortization Management
• โครงการ SM Management
• โครงการ virtual NPL Management
• โครงการ ยกระดับการบริหารจัดการ Port สินเช่ือ
• โครงการปรับกระวนการเปดบัญชีเงินฝากใหเปน
 Digital Services

• โครงการเพ่ิม Resource VM ท่ี DC/DRHardware

• โครงการระบบบริหารจัดการ IT องคกรSoftware

Date &
Information

Network &
Communication

• โครงการเพ่ิม Link Internet  รองรับการใชงานของ
 ระบบ CAMS & GIS

• โครงการปรับปรุงเคร่ืองมือชวยพนักงาน
 ขาย Market Compute, Sale
• โครงการ Procurement Management
• โครงการระบบบริหารสินทรัพยและหน้ีสิน
 (ALM)

Internal
Services

• ISO/IEC 27001:2013 ระบบ BAHTNET และ ICAS
• ISO/IEC 27001:2013 ระบบ GHB System
• ISO/IEC 20000 :2018 ระบบบริหารจัดการ
 ใหบริการดานเทคโนโลยีสาระสนเทศ
• โครงการสอบทานการฟอกเงินดวย Digitalization
• โครงการยกระดับ 3 Lines of Defense
 กระบวนการสินเช่ือ
• โครงการ Bank on Bank เพ่ือยกระดับคุณภาพ
 ชีวิตกลุม Unserved
• โครงการ Security Operations Center (SOC)

IT Governance
and Security

• โครงการพัฒนาบุคคลากรรองรับการเปล่ียนแปลง
 ดานดิจิตอล (Digital)

Human

Updated : 6 November 2018
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1.	 IT Infrastructure 

	 Improved the process, provided IT services and all IT management, including security to meet international 

standards, supervised digital infrastructure to be able to support new digital services safely and effectively.

	 In 2020, there were key projects that have been implemented in response to the IT infrastructure strategy 

as follows :

	 1.1	 Adjusted procedures to meet international standards: The Bank has been granted ISO certification 

as follows

ISO/IEC38500 : 2015 “ITGovernance”, including Data Governance in the 

organization.

The Bank received a certificate certifying the supervision of IT usage in accordance 

with the framework of the digital action plan on April 27, 2020.

ISO/IEC22301 : 2019  “Business Continuity Management System”

The Bank received a certificate certifying the business continuity management of the 

mobile application’s money transfer and payment system (GHB ALL) on July 1, 2020.

ISO/IEC27001 : 2013 “Information Security Management System (ISMS)”

The bank received a certificate certifying GHB SYSTEM, BAHTNET and ICAS systems 

on October 10, 2020.

ISO/IEC20000 : 2018 “IT Service Management (ITSM)”

The bank received a certificate certifying GHB SYSTEM On December 10, 2020.

	 1.2	 “Data Lake” project: Created a system to store the Bank’s digital and all work systems data to be 

a large database to support the next Big Data Analytics in the future. 
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2.	 IT Services 

	 Developed new service channels by applying digital technology to provide services to accommodate 

New Normal lifestyle, improved service performance to reduce costs, resulting in higher competitiveness.

	 In 2020, there were key projects that have been implemented in response to the IT services strategy as 

follows :

	 2.1	 Project to adjust the deposit account opening process to be in a form of  Digital Service: Deposit 

account opening process without going to the Bank.

	 2.2	 GHB Express Loan : Adjustment of home loan application system via mobile application.

	 2.3	 Online NPA auction project on GH Bank Smart NPA Mobile Application : The Bank’s NPA auction 

system through online system.

	 2.4	 Virtual NPL Management project : To increase efficiency in reducing NPL as planned and reducing 

bad debt provision through online system.

	 2.5	 New Normal Services (NEO Services) project : A system development to provide customers with 

banking services without traveling to a bank branch, such as requesting a deposit account statement, a certificate 

of interests, a certificate of tax withholding, a certificate of withdrawal house rent, copy of documents, or making 

an appointment to receive title deeds, etc.

	 With our  intention and determination to carry out the digital technology development, the Bank have  

developed effective IT Infrastructure and new digital services (IT Services) to accommodate changes in the  

New Normal era promptly with the aim to provide “Smart Digital Services”, moving forward to be “The Best Housing 

Solution Bank” and “Enable Thai People to Have Their Own Home”.
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Report
Financial

GOVERNMENT HOUSING BANK
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The Board of Directors is responsible for the Bank’s financial statements, including financial information that 

appears in the annual report. The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the BOT’s regulations on 

accounting and financial reporting of specialized financial institutions, with appropriate accounting policies applied 

on a consistent basis. The Board of Directors has operated the Bank to have a good disclosure system to ensure 

that the Bank has disclosed sufficient and reliable financial information.

The Board of Directors have performed duties in accordance with good corporate governance principles to 

maintain proper and effective risk management and internal control systems including internal audit to ensure that 

the financial information is accurate and sufficient to maintain the Bank’s assets as well as preventing fraud and 

irregularities and have prepared appropriate financial statements.

The Board of Directors has appointed the Audit Committee comprising independent directors who are responsible  

for overseeing the credibility and accuracy of financial reports as well as the adequacy of the internal control system, 

reviewing audit results with the Bank’s auditors, considering the Bank’s auditors’ remuneration and proposing to the 

Board of Directors. The Audit Committee has expressed its opinion with regard to the stated matters in the Report 

of the Audit Committee which is presented in this Annual Report.

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that the Bank’s overall internal control system is adequate and 

appropriate for the Bank’s business and can assure that the creditability of the Bank’s financial statements for the 

year ended December 31, 2020 are in compliance with laws and regulations.

	

					     (Mr. Yuttana Yimgarund)	 (Mr. Chatchai Sirilai) 			

						      Chairman	 President

Report of the Board of Directors’
Responsibilities for the Financial Statements
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Auditor’s Report

To: The Board of Directors of Government Housing Bank

Opinion
The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand has audited the accompanying consolidated  

financial statements of Government Housing Bank and its subsidiaries (the Group), and the Bank’s financial  
statements of Government Housing Bank (the Bank), which comprise the consolidated and the Bank’s statements of 
financial position, as at December 31, 2020, the consolidated and the Bank’s statements of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, the consolidated and the Bank’s statements of changes in equity and the consolidated 
and the Bank’s statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including 
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand’s opinion, the accompanying consolidated and the Bank’s 
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Government Housing 
Bank and its subsidiaries, and the Bank’s financial position of Government Housing Bank, as at December 31, 2020, 
and its consolidated and the Bank’s financial performance and its consolidated and the Bank’s cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with the regulations related to the Preparation of Accounts and Financial Reports 

for Specialized Financial Institutions and other regulations of the Bank of Thailand as disclosed in Note No. 3

Basis for Opinion
The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand conducted the audit in accordance with the State  

Audit Standards and Thai Standards on Auditing (“TSAs”). The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand’s 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
consolidated and the Bank’s Financial Statements section of the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand’s 
report. The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand is independent of the Group and the Bank in accordance 
with the ethical requirements set out in the State Audit Standards issued by the State Audit Commission, and the 
Federation of Accounting Professions’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants that are relevant to the audit of 
the consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements and the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand has 
fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. The State Audit Office of the Kingdom 
of Thailand believes that the audit evidence the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand has obtained is  

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand’s opinion
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Emphasis of Matter
The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand draws attention to Notes to the financial statements as 

follows:

1. 	 Note No. 3.1, Basis for Preparation of the Financial Statements, the Bank prepared the financial statements 
of the year 2019 as a comparative period in accordance with the financial reporting standards of the Federation of 
Accounting Professions and the regulations of the Bank of Thailand.

The Bank prepared the financial statements of the year 2020 in accordance with the Notification of the 
Bank of Thailand No. Sor Gor Sor 2. 7/2564 dated April 9, 2021, regarding the Preparation of Accounts and Financial 
Reports for Specialized Financial Institutions, which is used to replace the Financial Reporting Standards related to 
the financial instruments. The Notification is align with the approval of the Minister of Finance that requires SFIs 
to prepare such Thai Financial Reporting Standards related to financial instruments by delay the adoption period 
for 5 years until January 1, 2025. However, for the transactions not related to financial instruments, the Bank still 
complies regulations for accounting and financial reporting standards of the Federation of Accounting Professions 
as the year 2019.

2.	 Note No. 5, Business Combinations, disclosed the acceptance for the transfer of all businesses, assets, 
rights, liabilities, capital and obligations from the Secondary Mortgage Corporation (SMC) according to the Act for 
the Dissolution of the Secondary Mortgage Corporation B.E. 2563 (2020) since September 24, 2020.

However, the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand’s opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises information included 

in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements and the auditor’s 
report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of 
Thailand after the date of this auditor’s report.

The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand’s opinion on the consolidated and the Bank’s financial 
statements does not cover the other information and the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand will not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with the audit of consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements, the State Audit Office of 
the Kingdom of Thailand’s responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and the 
Bank’s financial statements or the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand’s knowledge obtained in the audit, 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand reads the annual report, if the State Audit Office 
of the Kingdom of Thailand concludes that there is a material misstatement therein, the State Audit Office of the 

Kingdom of Thailand is required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Consolidated and the Bank’s Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and the Bank’s 
financial statements in accordance with the regulations related to accounting and financial reporting of specialized  
financial institutions, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the  
preparation of consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements, management is responsible for assessing 
the Group and the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group 
and the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group and the Bank’s financial reporting 

process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and the Bank’s 
Financial Statements 

The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand’s objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes the State Audit Office of the Kingdom  
of Thailand’s opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit  
conducted in accordance with the State Audit Standards and Thai Standards on Auditing will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the State Audit Standards and Thai Standards on Auditing, the State 
Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand exercises professional judgment and maintains professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand also:

• Identifies and assesses the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and the Bank’s financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, designs and performs audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtains audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the State Audit Office of the  
Kingdom of Thailand’s opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.

• Obtains an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Group and the Bank’s internal controls.

• Evaluates the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.
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• Concludes on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Group and the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If the State Audit Office of the 
Kingdom of Thailand concludes that a material uncertainty exists, the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand 
is required to draw attention in the auditor’s report of the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand to the 
related disclosures in the consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand’s opinion will be modified. The State Audit Office of the Kingdom 
of Thailand’s conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor’s report of the 
State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group or the 
Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluates the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and the Bank’s financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtains sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the bank or business 
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. The State Audit Office 
of the Kingdom of Thailand is responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. The 
State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand remains solely responsible for the State Audit Office of the Kingdom 
of Thailand’s audit opinion.

The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand communicates with those charged with governance  
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand identifies during 
the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand’s audit.

					     (Signed) Pattra Showsri

					     (Pattra Showsri)

					     Deputy Auditor General

					     (Signed) Wilaiwan Promyou

					     (Wilaiwan Promyou)

					     Director of Financial and Procurement Audit Office No.5

State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand

April 28, 2021
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 

 UNIT : THOUSAND BAHT 

 CONSOLIDATED THE BANK

NOTES 31 December 2020 31 December 2019 31 December 2020 31 December 2019 31 December 2019

 (RESTATED)  (AS PREVIOUSLY 
 REPORTED) 

ASSETS

CASH 8.1 5,847,450 6,348,332 5,847,450 6,348,332 6,348,292

INTERBANK AND MONEY MARKET ITEMS, NET 8.2 55,607,254 62,807,095 55,605,416 62,804,566 62,718,645

INVESTMENTS, NET 8.3 76,713,593 27,573,643 76,944,712 28,312,115 27,183,741

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, NET 8.4 - - 36 36 - 

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS AND
ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLES, NET 8.5

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS 1,191,879,718 1,126,364,181 1,191,879,718 1,126,364,181 1,111,728,385

ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLES 7,673,295 3,882,320 7,673,295 3,882,320 3,833,179

TOTAL LOANS TO CUSTOMERS AND
ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLES 1,199,553,013 1,130,246,501 1,199,553,013 1,130,246,501 1,115,561,564

LESS ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS 8.6 93,498,980 84,835,499 93,498,980 84,835,499 84,036,584

TOTAL LOANS TO CUSTOMERS AND
ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLES, NET 1,106,054,033 1,045,411,002 1,106,054,033 1,045,411,002 1,031,524,980

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS FROM PUBLIC SERVICE ACCOUNT 
AND ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLES, NET 8.30.2

LOANS TO  CUSTOMERS FROM PUBLIC SERVICE ACCOUNT
PORTION THAT IS NOT SUBJECT TO GOVERNMENT

COMPENSATION FOR DAMAGES 141,471,819 97,536,034 141,471,819 97,536,034 97,536,034

ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLES FROM
PUBLIC SERVICE ACCOUNT

PORTION THAT IS NOT SUBJECT TO GOVERNMENT
COMPENSATION FOR DAMAGES 781,807 252,103 781,807 252,103 252,103

TOTAL LOANS TO CUSTOMERS FROM PUBLIC SERVICE 
ACCOUNT AND ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLES 142,253,626 97,788,137 142,253,626  97,788,137 97,788,137

LESS ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS FROM
PUBLIC SERVICE ACCOUNT 8.30.3 3,802,284 2,723,073 3,802,284 2,723,073 2,723,073

TOTAL LOANS TO CUSTOMERS FROM PUBLIC SERVICE
ACCOUNT AND ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLES, NET 138,451,342 95,065,064 138,451,342  95,065,064 95,065,064

RECEIVABLES  FOR GOVERNMENTAL COMPENSATION
UNDER PUBLIC SERVICE ACCOUNT  8.30.4 17,273 22,016  17,273 22,016 22,016

PROPERTIES FOR SALE, NET 8.9 16,434,676 13,577,094 16,434,676 13,577,094 13,457,743

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT, NET 8.10 3,407,565 3,879,036 3,407,565 3,879,036 3,870,845

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS, NET 8.11 663,026 -  663,026 - - 

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET 8.12  1,166,994  1,385,561 1,166,994 1,385,561 1,385,218

RECEIVABLES UNDER CIVIL LITIGATION 1,664,200 2,022,020 1,664,200 2,022,020 2,022,020

OTHER ASSETS, NET 8.13 1,223,657 1,079,077 1,317,943 1,236,745 1,041,230

TOTAL ASSETS 1,407,251,063 1,259,169,940 1,407,574,666 1,260,063,587 1,244,639,794

GOVERNMENT HOUSING BANK AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020
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 UNIT : THOUSAND BAHT 

 CONSOLIDATED THE BANK

NOTES 31 December 2020 31 December 2019 31 December 2020 31 December 2019 31 December 2019

 (RESTATED)  (AS PREVIOUSLY 
 REPORTED) 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

DEPOSITS 8.14 1,161,658,023 993,269,059 1,161,658,023 993,269,059 993,769,084

INTERBANK AND MONEY MARKET ITEMS, NET 8.15 -      1,798,000 -      1,798,000 1,798,000

LIABILITIES PAYABLE ON DEMAND  1,120,979 531,744 1,120,979 531,744 531,744

DEBT ISSUED AND BORROWINGS 8.16 136,047,416 1,566,66,233 136,058,541 157,141,695 142,100,000

PROVISION 8.17 2,499,260 2,307,559 2,499,260 2,307,559 2,298,530

ACCRUED INTEREST PAYABLES 5,116,077 5,707,428 5,175,838 5,736,402 5,682,923

ACCRUED BONUS EXPENSE 1,376,922 1,285,936 1,376,922 1,285,936 1,277,466

PAYABLES FROM GOVERNMENT PROJECT -      2,940,500 -      2,940,500 2,940,500

OTHER LIABILITIES 8.18 4,268,568 4,439,552 4,342,313 4,591,822 4,419,033

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,312,087,245 1,168,946,011 1,312,231,876 1,169,602,717 1,154,817,280

EQUITY 

CAPITAL 8.19 20,320,329 20,320,329 20,320,329 20,320,329 20,320,329

RETAINED EARNINGS 

APPROPRIATED 

LEGAL RESERVE 8.20 28,797,811 26,127,464 28,797,811 26,127,464 26,127,464

OTHERS 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000

UNAPPROPRIATED 44,581,108 42,174,721 44,528,826 42,174,721 42,174,721

SURPLUS ON BUSINESS COMBINATION
UNDER COMMON CONTROL 5 355,826 -      495,824 -      -      

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BANK 95,255,074 89,822,514 95,342,790 89,822,514 89,822,514

EXISTING EQUITY BEFORE BUSINESS COMBINATION 
UNDER COMMON CONTROL 5 -      522,235 -      638,356 -      

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (91,256) (120,820) -      -      -      

TOTAL EQUITY 95,163,818 90,223,929 95,342,790 90,460,870 89,822,514

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 1,407,251,063 1,259,169,940 1,407,574,666 1,260,063,587 1,244,639,794

 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 

(MR. CHATCHAI SIRILAI)
PRESIDENT

 (MR. KAMONPOP VEERAPALA)
SENIOR EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT,

FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING BUSINESS UNIT

GOVERNMENT HOUSING BANK AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020
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 UNIT : THOUSAND BAHT 

 CONSOLIDATED THE BANK

NOTES 2020 2019 2020 2019 2019

 (RESTATED)  (AS PREVIOUSLY 
 REPORTED) 

INTEREST INCOME 8.25 45,023,896 50,895,617 45,053,652 50,955,033 50,123,049

INTEREST EXPENSES 8.26   18,508,384       21,880,961              18,578,139            22,045,509         21,352,535         

INTEREST INCOME, NET  26,515,512             29,014,656         26,475,513       28,909,524 28,770,514 

FEES AND SERVICE INCOME 1,153,675         1,221,779         1,216,898          1,305,325      1,221,779 

FEES AND SERVICE EXPENSES          28,510    32,346 28,510               32,346 32,346 

FEES AND SERVICE INCOME, NET 8.27   1,125,165         1,189,433 1,188,388 1,272,979 1,189,433 

GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF PROPERTIES FOR SALE 396,362 488,531 396,362 488,531 488,123 

OTHER OPERATING INCOME 455,639 393,654 455,639 393,654 391,215 

INCOME FROM PUBLIC SERVICE ACCOUNT 8.30.5 3,828,561 2,799,286 3,828,561 2,799,286 2,799,286 

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME    32,321,239       33,885,560 32,344,463 33,863,974 33,638,571 

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 

EMPLOYEE’S EXPENSES 4,403,056 4,911,197 4,403,056 4,911,197 4,822,628

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION            18,725                12,471                18,725                12,471                       7,853 

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT EXPENSES 1,566,864 1,690,681 1,566,864 1,690,681 1,660,717 

LOSS ON IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTIES 714,112 589,567 714,112 589,567 582,037 

LOSS ON DEBT REMISSION TO A RELATED PARTY  -        -       83,741 27,808  -       

OTHERS 1,245,802 1,771,452 1,243,254 1,768,147 1,741,053 

TOTAL OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 7,948,559 8,975,368 8,029,752 8,999,871 8,814,288 

EXPENSES FROM PUBLIC SERVICE ACCOUNT 8.30.6 3,167,736 2,379,710 3,167,736 2,379,710 2,379,710 

BAD DEBT AND DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS 8.28 10,771,063 9,029,959 10,771,063 9,029,959 9,092,840 

NET PROFIT 10,433,881 13,500,523 10,375,912 13,454,434 13,351,733 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED
SUBSEQUENTLY TO PROFIT OR LOSS
ACTUARIAL GAIN/(LOSS) ON 
DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS 8.17.1 (22,758) 82,666 (22,758) 82,666 82,666 

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET (22,758) 82,666 (22,758)       82,666          82,666 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME   10,411,123 13,583,189 10,353,154 13,537,100 13,434,399 

GOVERNMENT HOUSING BANK AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 
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 UNIT : THOUSAND BAHT 

 CONSOLIDATED THE BANK

NOTES 2020 2019 2020 2019 2019

 (RESTATED)  (RESTATED)  (AS PREVIOUSLY 
 REPORTED) 

NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO : 

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BANK 10,537,726 13,351,733 10,485,444 13,351,733 13,351,733

EXISTING EQUITY BEFORE BUSINESS COMBINATION
UNDER COMMON CONTROL (133,409) 125,087 (109,532) 102,701 -

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 29,564 23,703  -        -       -

10,433,881 13,500,523 10,375,912 13,454,434 13,351,733

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO : 

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BANK 10,514,968 13,434,399 10,462,686 13,434,399 13,434,399

EXISTING EQUITY BEFORE BUSINESS COMBINATION
UNDER COMMON CONTROL (133,409) 125,087 (109,532) 102,701 -

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 29,564 23,703  -        -        -       

10,411,123 13,583,189 10,353,154 13,537,100 13,434,399

 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

GOVERNMENT HOUSING BANK AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

(MR. CHATCHAI SIRILAI)
PRESIDENT

 (MR. KAMONPOP VEERAPALA)
SENIOR EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT,

FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING BUSINESS UNIT
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 UNIT : THOUSAND BAHT

CONSOLIDATED

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BANK
EXISTING EQUITY 
BEFORE BUSINESS 

COMBINATION 
UNDER COMMON 

CONTROL

NON-
CONTROLLING 

INTERESTS
TOTAL EQUITY

NOTES

CAPITAL

SURPLUS ON
BUSINESS

COMBINATION
UNDER COMMON

CONTROL

RETAINED EARNINGS
TOTAL EQUITY 
ATTRIBUTABLE 

TO HOLDERS OF 
THE BANK

APPROPRIATED

UNAPPROPRIATED
LEGAL RESERVE OTHERS

BALANCE AS AT JANUARY 1, 2019 - AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 20,320,329 - 23,605,343 1,200,000 36,750,476 81,876,148 - - 81,876,148

EFFECT FROM BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER
COMMON CONTROL 5 - - - - - - 435,548 (144,523) 291,025

BALANCE AS AT JANUARY 1, 2019 - RESTATED 20,320,329 - 23,605,343 1,200,000 36,750,476 81,876,148 435,548 435,548 82,167,173

LEGAL RESERVE 8.20 - - 2,522,121 - (2,522,121) - - - -

REMITTANCE TO THE MINISTRY OF FINANCE 8.29 - - - - (5,484,460) (5,484,460) (38,400) - (5,522,860)

ADDITIONAL BONUS PAYMENT 8.29 - - - - (3,573) (3,573) - - (3,573)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - - - - 13,434,399 13,434,399 125,087 23,703 13,583,189

BALANCE AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019 20,320,329 - 26,127,464 1,200,000 42,174,721 89,822,514 522,235 (120,820) 90,223,929

BALANCE AS AT JANUARY 1, 2020 - AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 20,320,329 - 26,127,464 1,200,000 42,174,721 89,822,514 - - 89,822,514

EFFECT FROM BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER
COMMON CONTROL 5 - - - - - - 522,235 (120,820) 401,415

BALANCE AS AT JANUARY 1, 2020 - RESTATED 20,320,329 - 26,127,464 1,200,000 42,174,721 89,822,514 522,235 (120,820) 90,223,929

ADJUSTMENT OF BONUS PAYMENT - - - - 2,366 2,366 - - 2,366

BALANCE AFTER ADJUSTMENT 20,320,329 - 26,127,464 1,200,000 42,177,087 89,824,880 522,235 (120,820) 90,226,295

LEGAL RESERVE 8.20 - - 2,670,347 - (2,670,347) - - - -

REMITTANCE TO THE MINISTRY OF FINANCE 8.29 - - - - (5,440,600) (5,440,600) (33,000) - (5,473,600)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - - - - 10,514,968 10,514,968 (133,409) 29,564 10,411,123

BUSINESS TRANSFER ACCORDING TO THE ACT FOR 

THE DISSOLUTION OF THE SECONDARY MORTGAGE 
CORPORATION B.E. 2563 (2020) 5 - 355,826 - - - 355,826 (355,826) - -

BALANCE AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020 20,320,329 355,826 28,797,811 1,200,000 44,581,108 95,255,074 - (91,256) 95,163,818

 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

(MR. CHATCHAI SIRILAI)
PRESIDENT

 (MR. KAMONPOP VEERAPALA)
SENIOR EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT,

FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING BUSINESS UNIT

GOVERNMENT HOUSING BANK AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

 UNIT : THOUSAND BAHT

THE BANK

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BANK
EXISTING EQUITY 
BEFORE BUSINESS 

COMBINATION 
UNDER COMMON 

CONTROL

TOTAL EQUITY

NOTES

CAPITAL

SURPLUS ON
BUSINESS

COMBINATION
UNDER COMMON

CONTROL

RETAINED EARNINGS
TOTAL EQUITY 

ATTRIBUTABLE TO 
HOLDERS OF THE 

BANK

APPROPRIATED

UNAPPROPRIATEDLEGAL RESERVE OTHERS

BALANCE AS AT JANUARY 1, 2019 - AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 20,320,329 - 23,605,343 1,200,000 36,750,476 81,876,148 - 81,876,148

EFFECT FROM BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER
COMMON CONTROL 5 - - - - - - 574,055 574,055

BALANCE AS AT JANUARY 1, 2019 - RESTATED 20,320,329 - 23,605,343 1,200,000 36,750,476 81,876,148 574,055 82,450,203

LEGAL RESERVE 8.20 - - 2,522,121 - (2,522,121) - - -

REMITTANCE TO THE MINISTRY OF FINANCE 8.29 - - - - (5,484,460) (5,484,460) (38,400) (5,522,860)

ADDITIONAL BONUS PAYMENT 8.29 - - - - (3,573) (3,573) - (3,573)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - - - - 13,434,399 13,434,399 102,701 13,537,100

BALANCE AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019 20,320,329 - 26,127,464 1,200,000 42,174,721 89,822,514 638,356 90,460,870

BALANCE AS AT JANUARY 1, 2020 - AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 20,320,329 - 26,127,464 1,200,000 42,174,721 89,822,514 - 89,822,514

EFFECT FROM BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER
COMMON CONTROL 5 - - - - - - 638,356 638,356

BALANCE AS AT JANUARY 1, 2020 - RESTATED 20,320,329 - 26,127,464 1,200,000 42,174,721 89,822,514 638,356 90,460,870

ADJUSTMENT OF BONUS PAYMENT - - - - 2,366 2,366 - 2,366

BALANCE AFTER ADJUSTMENT 20,320,329 - 26,127,464 1,200,000 42,177,087 89,824,880 638,356 90,463,236

LEGAL RESERVE 8.20 - - 2,670,347 - (2,670,347) - - -

REMITTANCE TO THE MINISTRY OF FINANCE 8.29 - - - - (5,440,600) (5,440,600) (33,000) (5,473,600)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - - - - 10,462,686 10,462,686 (109,532) 10,353,154

BUSINESS TRANSFER ACCORDING TO THE ACT FOR 

THE DISSOLUTION OF THE SECONDARY MORTGAGE 
CORPORATION B.E. 2563 (2020) 5 - 495,824 - - - 495,824 (495,824) -

BALANCE AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020 20,320,329 495,824 28,797,811 1,200,000 44,528,826 95,342,790 - 95,342,790

(MR. CHATCHAI SIRILAI)
PRESIDENT

 (MR. KAMONPOP VEERAPALA)
SENIOR EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT,

FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING BUSINESS UNIT

GOVERNMENT HOUSING BANK AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
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UNIT: THOUSAND BAHT

 CONSOLIDATED THE BANK

2020 2019 2020 2019

 (RESTATED)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

PROFIT OF THE BANK 104,333,811 13,500,523 10,375,912 13,454,434 

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 
TO NET CASH RECEIVED (PAID) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES 1,111,070 817,859 1,111,070 817,859 

 AMORTISATION OF DEFERRED CHARGES 4,889 9,110 4,889 9,110 

 AMORTISATION OF LEASEHOLD RIGHTS - 1,330 - 1,330 

 BAD DEBTS AND DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS 10,771,063 9,029,959 10,771,063 9,029,959 

 GAIN ON RECEIPT OF DONATED ASSETS (9,285) (9,285) (9,285) (9,285) 

 LOSS ON IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTIES FOR SALE 1,444,970 1,349,053 1,444,970 1,349,053 

 REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTIES FOR SALE (730,858) (759,486) (730,858) (759,486) 

 GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS (427,699) (528,988) (427,699) (528,988)

 AMORTISATION OF DISCOUNT ON INVESTMENTS               (276,199)             (697,546)                      (276,199)               (697,546) 

 WRITE OFF ASSETS 30,815 15,496              30,815                       15,496                

 (INCREASE) DECREASE IN OTHER ACCRUED INCOME 1,616 (95)                     1,616                         (95) 

 LOSS ON IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER ASSETS 40,085 149,649 40,085 149,649

 LOSS ON DEBT REMISSION TO A RELATED PARTY - - - 27,808

 INCREASE IN PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 247,132 715,715 247,132 715,715

 INCREASE (DECREASE) IN PROVISION OF INDEMNITY (70) 4,010 (70) 4,010

 PROVISION FOR DECOMMISSIONING COSTS - 94 - 94

 DECREASE IN ACCRUED BONUS EXPENSE 95,270 76,856 95,270 76,855

 INCREASE (DECREASE) IN OTHER ACCRUED EXPENSES (185,074) 225,877 (185,074) 225,875

 INTEREST INCOME, NET (27,865,206) (29,992,425) (27,825,205) (29,887,294)

 DIVIDEND INCOME (32,250) (28,500) (32,250) (28,500)

 CASH PROCEEDS FROM INTEREST INCOME  44,360,107 53,771,188 44,390,972 53,844,643

 CASH PAID ON INTEREST EXPENSES (21,447,128)             (23,280,242)            (21,486,095)                       (23,437,480)              

 CASH PROCEEDS FROM DIVIDEND INCOME 32,250 28,500 32,250 28,500 

OPERATING INCOME BEFORE CHANGES IN OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 17,599,382              24,398,652            17,573,309                     24,401,716              

(INCREASE) DECREASE IN OPERATING ASSETS                                                                      

INVESTMENTS IN SHORT-TERM SECURITIES (26,403,342)              11,320,400            (25,895,989)                     11,948,068              

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS   (115,636,450)         (91,020,108)       (115,637,559)                 (91,048,715)          

RECEIVABLES FOR GOVERNMENTAL COMPENSATION
UNDER PUBLIC SERVICE ACCOUNT 4,743 (22,016) 4,743 (22,016)

PROPERTIES FOR SALE (58,863) (5,828,539) (588,863) (5,828,539)

RECEIVABLES UNDER CIVIL LITIGATION 1,437,955 (128,986) 1,437,955 (128,986)

OTHER ASSETS (164,990) 261,924 (101,610) 265,684

 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 

GOVERNMENT HOUSING BANK AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 

UNIT: THOUSAND BAHT

 CONSOLIDATED THE BANK

NOTE 2020 2019 2020 2019

 (RESTATED)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN OPERATING LIABILITIES 

DEPOSITS 169,417,941 49,886,821 169,417,941       49,886,821 

INTERBANK AND MONEY MARKET ITEMS (2,826,977) 1,798,000      (2,826,977)        1,798,000    

LIABILITIES PAYABLE ON DEMAND           589,235 (836,105)          589,235 (836,105) 

PAYABLES FOR PUBLIC SERVICE ACCOUNT (2,940,500) 2,940,500 (2,940,500) 2,940,500        

EMPLOYEES PAYMENT (78,119) (31,666) (78,119)         (31,666)       

OTHER LIABILITIES        1,798,850      1,164,321        1,720,327 955,853 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES      42,208,865      (6,096,802)      42,673,893 (5,699,385) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CASH PAID FOR PURCHASES OF PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT  (257,187) (18,103) (257,187) (18,103) 

CASH PROCEEDS FROM DISPOSAL OF PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT 1,250 580 1,250 580 

CASH PAID FOR CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (173,878) (503,302) (173,878) (503,302) 

CASH PAID FOR PURCHASES OF OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (746,603) (3,479) (746,603) (3,479) 

CASH PAID FOR PURCHASES OF INVESTMENTS IN LONG-TERM SECURITIES (22,460,408) (4,922,995) (22,460,408) (4,922,995) 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (23,636,826) (5,447,299) (23,636,826) (5,447,299) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

CASH PAID FOR REPAYMENT OF FINANCIAL LEASES (180,345) (12,044) (180,345)   (12,044)             

CASH PROCEEDS FROM BOND ISSUANCES - 30,600,000 - 30,600,000 

CASH PAID FOR REPAYMENT OF BONDS (15,760,000) (14,600,000) (15,760,000) (14,600,000)

CASH PROCEEDS FROM PROMISSORY NOTE ISSUANCES - - 4,119,971 4,310,939 

CASH PAID FOR REPAYMENT OF PROMISSORY NOTES - - (4,865,777) (3,928,552) 

CASH PAID FOR REPAYMENT OF BORROWINGS - - (4,577,348) (3,621,425) 

CASH PAID FOR REPAYMENT OF SECURED DEBENTURES (4,858,817) (2,841,332) - -

CASH PAID FOR FEE OF BOND - (4,590) - (4,590) 

CASH REMITTANCE TO THE MINISTRY OF FINANCE (5,473,600) (5,522,860) (5,473,600) (5,522,860) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (26,272,762) 7,619,174 (26,737,099) 7,221,468

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (7,700,723) (3,924,927) (7,700,032)       (3,925,216)     

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT JANUARY 1 69,155,427 73,080,354 69,152,898 73,078,114 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT DECEMBER 31 8.1 61,454,704 69,155,427 61,452,866 69,152,898 

(MR. CHATCHAI SIRILAI)
PRESIDENT

 (MR. KAMONPOP VEERAPALA)
SENIOR EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT,

FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING BUSINESS UNIT

GOVERNMENT HOUSING BANK AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
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GOVERNMENT HOUSING BANK AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

1.	 General Information
	 The Government Housing Bank (“the Bank”) was established in accordance with the Government Housing Bank  

Act B.E. 2496 (1953), amended by the Revolutionary Announcement No. 317 dated December 13, 1972,  
the Government Housing Bank Act (No. 2) B.E. 2535 (1992), the Government Housing Bank Act (No. 3) B.E. 2549 (2006)  
and the Government Housing Bank Act (No. 4) B.E. 2562 (2019). The Bank’s major objectives are to promote 
and encourage the acquisition of residential housing and/or land, including to support elderly people from use 
of their own land or building for living. 

	 The Bank’s head office is located at 63 Rama IX Road, Huay Kwang, Bangkok. The branches are located  

throughout the region in Thailand.

2.	 The Spread of the Coronavirus 2019 Pandemic
	 The Bank has complied with the circular of the Bank of Thailand (BOT) No. Tor Por Tor. For Gor Chor. (72) 

Wor.277/2563 dated February 28, 2020, regarding Guidelines on Providing Assistance to Borrowers Adversely 
Impacted by Situations that Affect the Thai Economy and the circular of the BOT No. Tor Por Tor. For Nor Sor. 
(01) Wor.380/2563 dated March 26, 2020, regarding Measures to Provide Additional Assistance to Borrowers 
during the COVID-19 Pandemic Situations during January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2021. It is effective for the 
Bank providing assistance to borrowers impacted by situations that affect the Thai economy. The Bank classifies  
loans that are not yet non-performing (Non-NPL) (normal and special mention categories) as normal loans  
immediately, provided that analysis of its status and business shows that the borrower is able to comply 
with the debt restructuring agreement without compliance monitoring. Such debt restructuring is considered  
a pre-emptive debt restructuring rather than a troubled debt restructuring (TDR). Non-performing loans (NPL) are 
classified as normal loans if the borrower is able to make repayment in accordance with the debt restructuring 
agreement for three months or three installments consecutively, whichever is the longer period.

	 As at December 31, 2020, the outstanding balance of loans to customers that the Bank has assisted amounted 

of Baht 148,365.54 million.

3.	 Basis of Presentation of The Financial Statements
	 3.1	 Basis of Preparation of The Financial Statements

		  The Bank has prepared and presented the financial statements in accordance with the Notification of the Bank of 
Thailand (BOT) No. Sor Gor Sor. 27/2562 dated September 2, 2019, regarding the Preparation and Announcement  
of Financial Statements of Specialized Financial Institutions, in order to be prepared under the same 
standard and comparable with the financial statements of other Specialized Financial Institutions which 
will be useful for the regulators and users, and in accordance with the Notification of Bank of the Thailand 
No. Sor Gor Sor 2. 7/2564 dated April 9, 2021 regarding the Preparation of Accounts and Financial Reports 
for Specialized Financial Institutions, in order to set the requirement for SFIs to account for recording 
and preparing financial reports for transactions or items related to financial instruments during the SFIs 
are extended the adoption of Thai Financial Reporting Standards related to financial instruments issued 
by the Federation of Accounting Professions which become effective for the periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2020.
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	 3.1	 Basis of Preparation of The Financial Statements (Continued)

		  The Minister of Finance has approved the Bank of Thailand to issue a notification regulating on the 
Preparation of Accounts and Financial Reports for Specialized Financial Institutions effective on January 
1, 2020. Significant regulation are as follows:

			   “(1) Transactions or items that are not related to financial instruments transactions are complied 
with the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting, Thai Accounting Standards and Thai Financial 
Reporting Standards issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions, including the preparation of 
other relevant accounting and reporting in accordance with the Bank of Thailand.

			   (2) Transactions or items that are related to financial instruments, transactions and other transactions 
refered to Thai Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions with 
reference to TFRS9 shall comply with this accounting regulation in appendix of the announcement and 
other additional regulation announced by the Bank of Thailand.”

		  Titles of the regulation for preparing accounts and financial reports for SFIs (the “Regulation”) prescribed 
by the Bank of Thailand for the use of financial instruments are as follows:

			   1.	 Regulations on doubtful debts and bad debts as specified by the BOT

			   2.	 Regulations for troubled debt restructuring as specified by the BOT

			   3.	 Regulations on accounting for investments in debt and equity securities as specified by the BOT

			   4.	 Regulations for writing off financial assets and financial liabilities as specified by the BOT

			   5.	 Regulations for recording stock dividend accounts as specified by the BOT

			   6.	 Regulations on assets transferred to the debtor for the payment of debts as specified by the BOT

			   7. 	Regulations on disclosure of information in the Bank’s financial statements and similar financial  
		  institutions specified by the BOT

			   8.	 Regulations on presentation and disclosure for financial instruments as specified by the BOT

			   9.	 Regulations on the treasury shares of the business as specified by the BOT

		  The aforementioned regulations will replace Thai Financial Reporting Standards related to financial  
instruments, During the process of preparing to apply Thai Financial Reporting Standards related to  
financial instruments, the Bank will be able to use such regulations until January 1, 2025.

		  Thai Financial Reporting Standards related to financial instruments which the Bank extended the adoption 
are as follows:

			   1.	 TAS 32	 Financial Instruments: Presentation

			   2.	 TFRS 7	 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

			   3.  TFRS 9	 Financial Instruments

			   4.	 TFRIC 16	 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

			   5.	 TFRIC 19	 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

			   6.	 Thai Accounting Guidance  	 Financial Instruments and Disclosures for Insurance Business
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	 3.1	 Basis of Preparation of The Financial Statements (Continued)

		  The Bank has no transactions related to the mentioned Thai Financial Reporting Standards no. 4-6.

		  The Notification of BOT No. Sor Gor Sor2. 7/2564 dated April 9, 2021 regarding the preparation of accounts  

and financial reports for Specialized Financial Institutions becomes effective for the SFIs’ financial statements  

for the periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 onwards.

		  The consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis 

except as disclosed in the accounting policies.

		  The consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements presented in Thai Baht has been rounded in the 

financial statements and notes to financial statements to the nearest thousand Baht and nearest million 

Baht respectively, except as otherwise specified. 

		  The Bank’s financial statements presented investments in subsidiaries under the cost basis.

		  An English version of the financial statements has been prepared from the financial statements that are 

in the Thai version. In the event of a conflict or a difference in interpretation between the two languages, 

the Thai financial statements shall prevail.

		  The Bank has separated Public Service Account (PSA) according to the Notification of Bank of Thailand 

No. Sor Gor Sor. 28/2562 dated September 2, 2019, regarding Public Service Account (PSA). The Bank 

has recorded PSA using allocation method for other operating expenses and fees and services income 

as approved by Fiscal Policy Office in the Letter No. Gor Kor 1006/Wor 2990 dated August 2, 2016.

	 3.2	 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

		  The consolidated financial statements comprise the accounting transactions of head office and all branches 

of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the Group) in which the Bank has a controlling interest, after eliminating  

significant intercompany transactions and balances. The 3 subsidiaries are registered in Thailand : SPV-SMC (7)  

Company Limited, SPV-SMC (8) Company Limited and SPV-SMC (9) Company Limited which the Bank has 

48 percent, 49 percent and 49 percent participating interests respectively (Note 8.4).

		  The subsidiaries financial statements are prepared for the same accounting period and significant  

accounting policies with the Bank. In case where there are different accounting policies, the Bank has 

already adjusted those effects.
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	 3.3	 New and Revised Thai Financial Reporting Standards

		  New and Revised Thai Financial Reporting Standards are effective for accounting period beginning  

on or after January 1, 2020 and significant impacts to the Group.

		  Financial Instruments

		  The Federation of Accounting Professions have announced the new Thai Financial Reporting Standards 

related to financial instruments for accounting period beginning on or after January 1, 2020 as follows:

		  1.	 TAS 32	 Financial Instruments: Presentation

		  2.	 TFRS 7	 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

		  3. 	 TFRS 9	 Financial Instruments

		  4. 	 TFRIC 16	 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

		  5.	 TFRIC 19	 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

		  6.	 Thai Accounting Guidance	 Financial Instruments and Disclosures for Insurance Business

		  According to the Ministry of Finance by Fiscal Policy Office, Letter No. Gor Kor 1006/1254 dated March 

19, 2019 regarding the Practice of Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS) No. 9 - Financial Instruments 

for Specialized Financial Institutions, Minister of Finance approved the extended preparation period of 

applying the standard for Specialized Financial Institutions to be effective on January 1, 2025.

		  During the exemption period for the 6 Thai Financial Reporting Standards related to financial instruments 

as mentioned, Minister of Finance approved the Bank of Thailand’s announcement regarding the 9 

regulation titles for accounting and financial reporting preparation (Note 3.1) that Specialized Financial 

Institutions has to comply with instead of the 6 new Thai Financial Reporting Standards related to financial 

instruments until January 1, 2025

		  The Bank is currently in the process of parallel run testing in order to consider and assess impact to the 

financial statements from the accounting standards and Thai Financial Reporting Standards related to 

financial instruments.

		  For the transactions unrelated to the financial instruments, the Bank applies Thai Financial Reporting 

Standards announced by the Federation of Accounting Professions.
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	 3.3	 New and Revised Thai Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)	

		  Leases

		  The Federation of Accounting Professions have announced Thai Financial Reporting Standards No.16 
(TFRS 16) Leases that is effective for accounting period beginning on or after January 1, 2020. The Bank 
followed the standard by recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to the 
retained earnings as at January 1, 2020, and the comparative information was not restated. The Bank 
adjusted right-of use assets and recognised lease liabilities that were previously classified as operating 
leases at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Bank’s incremental 
borrowing rate.

		  Where the Group is a lessee, TFRS 16 Leases will result in almost all leases being recognised on the 
balance sheet as the distinction between operating and finance leases is removed. A right-of-use asset 
and a lease liability will be recognised, with exception on short-term and leases for which the underlying 
asset is of low value.

4.	 Summary Significant Accounting Policies
	 4.1	 Income Recognition

	 •	 Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis, except for loan interest income that has been 
accrued over three months, which is recognised on a cash basis in accordance with the Bank of 
Thailand regulations. The accrual basis will be applied to these loans once outstanding principal and 
interest are paid.

	 •	 The Bank reverses outstanding accrued interest receivables that have been accrued over three months 
in accordance with the Bank of Thailand regulations.

	 •	 Interest income from investments in debt securities is recognised by the effective interest rate method. 

	 •	 Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to receive is established.

	 •	 Other income is recognised on an accrual basis.

	 4.2	 Expense Recognition

   		  Interest expenses, fees and services expenses and other operating expenses are recognised as expense 

on an accrual basis.

	 4.3	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

		  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, and interbank transactions and money market items 

on demand.

	 4.4	 Investments

		  Held-to-maturity investments, which are investments in debt securities that the Bank has the intention 

and ability to hold until maturity, are stated at amortised cost less allowances for impairment (if any).

		  General investments, which are investments in non-marketable equity securities, are stated at cost less 

allowances for impairment (if any).
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	 4.5	 Loans

		  Loans are presented at the outstanding principals except for bank overdrafts, which are presented  

inclusive of principal balances and accrued interest receivables.

	 4.6	 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

	 4.6.1 	 The Bank’s allowance for doubtful accounts is complied with the BOT’s Notification No. Sor Gor 
Sor. 23/2562 dated September 2, 2019 regarding Regulations on Assets Classification and Provision 
of Specialized Financial Institutions. The Bank has set aside provisions on a qualitative basis by 
assessing debtors’ repayment ability. The Bank has gradually set aside the allowance for doubtful 
accounts on a monthly basis. Apart from this, the additional provision has been appropriately 
considered by the management.

		  For normal and special mention categories, the Bank considers allowance for doubtful accounts 
based on loan characteristics and other relevant factors. An allowance for doubtful accounts for 
performing loans comprises of the minimum allowance for doubtful accounts which is calculated 
by using the rate as specified by the BOT and the excess of the minimum allowance for doubtful 
account announced by the BOT in order to cover the future loss which is annually considered in 
ratio of loans following the policies of the Bank.

		  Bad debts written off are deducted from the set aside provision in allowance for doubtful  
accounts.	

		  The Bank defines debt write-off guideline which any debtors are classified as doubtful of loss are 
written off at the underlying value of irrecoverable provision in line with the BOT debt write-off 
regulations.

		  Bad debts recovered are recorded as other income.

		  Moreover, The Bank has set aside provisions for non-performing debtors that need to be considered 
for collateral valuation according to Bank of Thailand’s guidance, regarding Valuation and Appraisal of 
Collaterals and Immovable Properties for Sale Acquired Through Debt Repayment, Loan Coallateral  
or Purchased from Public Auction of Specialized Financial Institution dated September 2, 2019.  
The summary of notifications and guidance regulations are as follows:

		  1)	 The Bank has set aside provisions for non-performing debtors at 100 percent of the  
difference between the carrying value of the outstanding loans and the present value of 
expected cash flows from the disposal of collateral which is determined in accordance with 
the Bank of Thailand’s Notification.

		  2)	 Collateral using for calculation of the present value of expected cash flows from the disposal 
of collaterals are immovable properties (e.g. the present value of the expected cash flows 
from disposals of immovable properties which are collateral of debtors under the litigation 
process is 62 percent of the appraisal value and the present value of the expected cash 
flows from disposals of immovable properties which are collateral of debtors under the 
public auction process equals to 66.38 percent of the appraisal value).

		  3)	 For appraising the value of collateral, the Bank uses appraisal information which taken within 
the last 1 year from its Geographic Information System instead of the data taken over the 

last 3 years, subject to the Ministry of Finance’s approval.
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	 4.6	 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (Continued)

	 4.6.2 	 Allowance for fees of long-term individual loans advanced by the Bank is set up and recognised 
as expenses, similar to those of the loans without the collateral deduction from outstanding 
balances.It is presented in other assets.

	 4.6.3	 Allowance for other accounts receivable with doubtful repayments is set up in full amount.  
It presented in other assets except for account receivables with debtors under litigations and 
account receivables overdrafts under litigations that are stated at the difference between the 

repayment from the auction of collaterals are presented in loans.

	 4.7	 Troubled Debts Restructuring

		  The Bank restructured troubled debts abided by the Bank of Thailand Notification No. Sor Gor Sor. 23/2562 
dated September 2, 2019 regarding Regulations on Assets Classification and Provision of Specialized 

Financial Institutions.

	 4.8	 Properties for sale

		  Properties for sale are stated at lower of appraisal value or carrying value less allowance for impairment 
(if any).

		  The Bank designed the impairment rate of properties for sale at 0 - 70 percent for properties for sale 
holding period less than 10 years and at 100 percent for properties for sale holding period more than 
10 years which complies with the regulation of Ministry of Finance.

		  The reversal of gain (loss) on impairment is recognised as operating income or operating expense in the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Gain (loss) on sales after the cost of sale 
is recognised as income or expense when the disposal occurs.

	 4.9	 Premises and Equipment

	 	 Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for impairment. 

		  Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis over their useful lives at the following rates:

		  Premises:	 Useful life or 2 years

		  Equipment:	 Useful life or 3 - 10 years

		  Equipment which cost per unit does not exceed Baht 10,000 and technological equipment which cost 
per unit does not exceed Baht 30,000 are recognised as expenses in the acquisition period.

		  The cost of renovation and asset development, which can extend the useful lives and the replacement 
value is increased significantly, are capitalized as part of the assets. Repair and maintenance costs are 
charged to expenses in the financial period in which they are incurred.

		  If the carrying value of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, the carrying value is 
written down immediately to the recoverable amount. The estimated recoverable amount is calculated 
from the greater of the present value of expected future cash flows from continuous use of the asset, 
or the proceeds from the sale of the asset less the disposal cost.

		  Gain or loss on disposals of premises and equipment are determined by the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and carrying value which are recorded in the statement of profit or loss and other 

comprehensive income.



A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0

Government Housing Bank224

	 4.10	 Right - of - Use Assets

		  From January 1, 2020, the Bank has initially adopted TFRS 16 Leases on contracts previously identified as 

leases according to TAS 17 Leases and related TFRIC. TFRS 16 makes stipulations relating to recognition,  

measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. Lessee shall recognise right-of-use assets and a lease 

liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months; unless the underlying asset is low value.

		  Right-of-use assets are measured at cost plus the significant decommissioning costs.

		  Discount rate is the rate as specified in the contract (if any) or cost of fund at the year before the contract.

		  Depreciation and interest expenses are calculated using the straight-line method and effective interest 

method over the estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets considering the extension options of lease 

term (if any).

		  Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease 

term discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. After the commencement date, the amount 

of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments 

made. 

		  In applying TFRS 16, The Bank recognised the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to 

the retained earnings as at January 1, 2020, and the comparative information was not restated. The Bank 

adjusted right-of use assets and recognised lease liabilities that were previously classified as operating 

leases at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Bank’s incremental 

borrowing rate as at January 1, 2020. The Group recognised right-of use assets at the amount equal to 

the lease liability at Bath 709.03 million.

	 4.11	 Other Intangible Assets

		  Other intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and allowance for impairment. 

Amortisation is calculated based on the straight-line basis over their useful lives of the assets:

		  Computer software:	        Useful life or 5 years

	 4.12	 Deferred Charges

		  Deferred charges from fees for issuing bonds are amortised on the straight-line basis over the maturity 

of bonds and presented under other assets.
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	 4.13	 Employee Benefits

	 4.13.1	 Short-term employee benefits

		  Short-term employee benefits comprise of salary, overtime, bonus, leave and other short-term 

benefits as stipulated in employment contracts. The Bank recognises short-term employee 

benefits on an accrual basis. 

	 4.13.2	 Post-employment benefits 

	 4.13.2.1	 Defined contribution plan 

		  The Bank has registered a Provident Fund in accordance with the Provident Fund  

Act B.E. 2530 (1987). The Bank pays contributions to a separate fund which is managed 

by an external fund manager in accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530 

(1987). The Bank has no further payment obligations once the contributions have 

been paid. The contributions are recognised as the employee benefit expense when 

they are due.

	 4.13.2.2	 Defined benefit plan

		  The Bank’s defined benefits plan covers employment rewards under the State  

Enterprise Labour Relations Act B.E. 2543 (2000), gifts for retiring employees, and the 

pension under the pension fund of Government Housing Bank Officers as stipulated 

in employment contracts.

	 4.13.3	 Other long-term employee benefits

		  Other long-term employee benefits are rewards for employee loyalty as stipulated in  

employment contracts.

		  The Bank measures the obligations of the defined benefits plan and other long-term employee 

benefits by a professionally qualified independent actuary based on actuarial techniques,  

using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The Bank recognises the obligations in the statement 

of financial position and recognises current service costs, past service costs and net interest 

expenses on the obligations as expenses in profit or loss.

		  Actuarial gains and losses from the defined benefit plan are recognised immediately in  

other comprehensive income and gains and losses for other long-term employee benefits are 

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

	 4.14	 Offsetting

		  Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts is presented in the statement of financial 

position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an  

intention to receive or settle the amounts on a net basis or to simultaneously realise the assets and 

settle liabilities.
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	 4.15	 Related Parties Transactions

		  Related parties are those that have control over the Bank or the Bank has the ability to control the parties 

either directly or indirectly have control or influence over making decisions on financial and operations 

policies. Related parties are under the same control and influence.

		  The Bank is a state enterprise under the Ministry of Finance. The Bank regularly conducts business with 

other state enterprises under common control by the Government. The control might be directly through 

government units or indirectly through associated companies or other entities. The transaction price 

and service condition for government units are conducted as normal business transactions. The Bank, 

therefore, decided that it is not necessary to include and disclose business transactions with other state 

enterprises and government units as related parties transactions. 

		  Related parties transactions include the Bank’s directors and management who have the authority and 

responsibility to plan, supervise, and control the Bank’s operations. The Bank stipulated transaction prices 

for related parties transactions follows relevant the Bank announcement to public on normal business 

practices and general conditions of trading.

	 4.16	 Fair Values of Financial Instruments

		  Fair value is the value that the Bank expects to receive from disposal of financial assets or expects to 

pay for settlement of financial liabilities. Fair value is determined from quoted market prices or the price 

derived from accepted financial models that normally apply in the financial market.

		  The methods and assumptions use for estimating the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities 

are disclosed as follows:

	 1.	 Cash, interbank and money market items, deposits, liabilities payable on demand, borrowings,  

customer’s liabilities under acceptances and off-the statement of financial position items.

	 2.	 Contingencies are presented at fair value by estimation equivalent to the amounts in the statement 

of financial position.

	 3.	 Investments are presented at fair value by estimation equivalent to their net carrying value.

	 4.	 Loans and accrued interest receivables are presented at fair value, estimated from the total loans 

and accrued interest receivables (including Public Service Account and accrued interest receivables) 

on the statement of financial position net by allowance for doubtful accounts.

	 4.17	 Issued Securities and Financial Liabilities

		  Issued securities and borrowings that have the intention to hold until maturity are recognised at face 

value.
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5.	 Business Combination
	 On September 24, 2020, the Bank accepted the transfer of all businesses, assets, rights, liabilities, capital and 

obligations of the Secondary Mortgage Corporation (SMC) according to the Act for the Dissolution of the Secondary  
Mortgage Corporation B.E. 2563 (2020) which are published in the Government Gazette on September 23, 2020 
and shall come into force as from the day following the date of its publication in the Government Gazette (the 
day of business combination under common control).

	 5.1	 Business Combination under Common Control

		  Accepting the transfer of all businesses, assets, rights, liabilities, capital and obligations from SMC was 
resulted in the consolidated financial information prepared for the period after September 24, 2020 to 
disclose the information pertaining to a business combination in accordance with the accounting guidance 
for a business combination under common control using method which similar to the pooling-of-interests. 
Under the method, the investment was initially recognised at the carrying amount of SMC’s assets and 
liabilities on the date of business combination under common control. The difference from SMC’s net 
assets were recognised in equity.

		  Results of SMC’s operations are included in the Bank’s financial statements from the beginning of the 
comparative period which is a shorter period until the end of control date.

		  Details of assets and liabilities transferred from SMC and recognised in the Bank’s financial statements 
as at September 24, 2020 are as follows:

Unit : Million Baht

Assets

 Cash 0.02

 Interbank and money market items, net 57.84 

 Investments 2,343.32 

 Investments in subsidiaries 0.04 

 Loans to customers and accrued interest receivables, net 12,557.19

Properties for sale 149.57 

Equipment, net 3.57 

Other intangible assets, net 0.27 

Other assets, net 204.18

Total assets 15,316.00

Liabilities

Debt issued and borrowings 14,475.73

Provision 22.56 

Other liabilities 321.89

Total liabilities 14,820.18

Net assets acquired 495.82

		
		  Existing equity before business combination under common control as at September 23, 2020 has totaling 

amount of Baht 495.82 million comprised total assets in the amount of Baht 15,316.00 million and total 
liabilities in the amount of Baht 14,820.18 million.

		  The comparative financial information has been included the SMC’s financial information as if the business 
combination was occurred on the date which assets and liabilities of SMC were merged under common 
control.
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	 5.1	 Business Combination under Common Control (Continued)

		  The Bank has restated the Bank comparative statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019 

and the Bank comparative statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year 

ended December 31, 2019. The impact of the restatement is summarised as follows:

		  The impact from the Bank statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019 increases (decreases) 

as follows:

Unit : Million Baht

 Cash 0.04

 Interbank and money market items, net 85.93

 Investments, net 1,128.37

 Investments in subsidiaries 0.04

 Loans to customers and accrued interest receivables, net 13,886.02 

Properties for sale, net 119.35

Premises and equipment, net 	 8.19

Other intangible assets, net 0.34 

Other assets, net 195.52

Total assets 15,423.80 

Deposits (500.02)

Debt issued and borrowings 15,041.70

Provision 9.03

Accrued interest payables 53.48

Accrued bonus expense 8.47

Other liabilities 172.78

Total liabilities 14,785.44 

Existing equity before business combination under common control 638.36

Total equity 638.36

Total liabilities and equity 15,423.80
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	 5.1	 Business Combination under Common Control (Continued)

		  The impact from the Bank statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year 

ended December 31, 2019 increases (decreases) are as follows:

Unit : Million Baht

Interest income 831.98

Interest expenses 692.97

Interest income, net 139.01

Fees and services income 83.55

Fees and services expenses - 

Fees and services income, net 83.55

Gain on disposal of properties for sale 0.40

Other operating income 2.44

Total operating income 225.40

Other operating expenses

Employee's expenses 88.57

Directors' remuneration 4.62

Premises and equipment expenses 29.96

Loss on impairment of properties 7.53

Loss on debt remission to a related party 27.81

Others 27.09

Total other operating expenses 185.58

Bad debt and doubtful accounts (62.88)

Net profit 102.70

Other comprehensive income - 

Total comprehensive income for the year 102.70
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	 5.2	 Subsidiaries

		  Under business combination of the Bank and SMC, subsidiaries of SMC are included in the consolidated 
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020. The consolidated financial information 
includes the financial information of 3 subsidiaries comprise SPV-SMC (7) Company Limited, SPV-SMC (8) 
Company Limited and SPV-SMC (9) Company Limited with the elimination of intercompany transactions 
as if the business combination was occurred on the date which assets and liabilities of SMC were merged 
under common control.

		  The value of assets and liabilities of each significant item on the date of the business combination under 

common control presented on the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Unit : Million Baht

Assets

 Cash 0.02

 Interbank and money market items, net 60.51

 Investments 1,820.00

 Loans to customers and accrued interest receivables, net 12,355.06

Properties for sale 149.57

Equipment, net 3.57

Other intangible assets, net 0.27

Other assets, net 16.24

Total assets 14,405.24

Liabilities

Debt issued and borrowings 14,079.83

Provision 22.56

Other liabilities 92.69

Total liabilities 14,195.08

Net assets acquired 210.16

Total assets 14,405.24

Less Total liabilities 14,195.08

Less Non-controlling interests (145.67)

Existing equity before business combination under common control

As at September 23, 2020 355.83

		  As of December 31, 2020, the Bank is currently in the process of the legal binding of the acceptance 
the transfer of assets, rights, liabilities, capital and obligations of the SMC according to the Act for the 
Dissolution of the Secondary Mortgage Corporation B.E. 2563 (2020) which expected to be completed 

within 270 days since September 24, 2020.
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6.	 Risk Management
	 6.1	 The Bank’s Risk Components

		  6.1.1	 Credit risk

			   Credit risk is defined as the potential or probability that a counterparty of the Bank will fail to meet their 

obligations in accordance with agreed terms with the Bank, and that the counterparty’s credit 

rating will be downgraded, which may affect the Bank’s income and capital fund.

			   The Bank’s credit policy provides a framework for the objectives, and guidelines for its credit analysis 

and approval processes. It covers returns, competition, social responsibility, and acceptable 

risk level. The two guidelines for credit risk are: a) Credit Risk - General Guidelines, i.e. the new 

product launches, credit bureau verifications, loan to value (LTV), lending terms, interest payment 

terms and principal repayment, credit limits once credit is approved, debt collection, and debt 

recovery, which includes the credit review process and monitoring approved loans, and b) the 

Credit Risk - Specific Guidelines, i.e. LTV, if it is guaranteed by a business owner or consideration 

of consistent payment history, etc.

			   The Bank has currently revised its credit analysis process to cover:

	 1)	 Validating borrower qualifications and the initial overall analysis – The Bank verifies that the 

qualifications are complete and comply with the law, revenue data, collateral criteria, and 

other external factors that impact repayment ability.

	 2)	 Credit analysis processes by Data Entry Center (DEC) – the Bank verifies the borrower details 

in accordance with the Bank’s operating manual and regulations for personal loan, records 

data into the system, summaries and reports to Credit Processing Center (CPC).

	 3)	 Credit analysis and approval processes by CPC – the Bank reviews the information validated 

by DEC and the collateral report details in order to approval process by CPC.

			   For loans presented on the statement of financial position, the maximum credit risk exposure is the 

carrying value of loans on the statement of financial position after deducting allowance for 

losses and without considering collateral values. Furthermore, credit risks could also result from 

off - the statement of financial position commitments.

		  6.1.2	 Market risk

			   Market risk is defined as the risk arises from interest rate affecting income or capital fund to negative 

effects due to the fluctuations of interest rate of assets, liabilities and off - the statement of 

financial position items that are rate sensitive items. These may affect net interest income, 

income, and other expenses that are interrelated with the interest rate.
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	 6.1	 The Bank’s Risk Components (Continued)

		  6.1.2	 Market risk (Continued)

			   Most interest rates for assets, especially for loans, are floating, such as MOR, MRR and MLR except 

investment in Bond that fixed interest rates and maturities. The majority of the Bank’s liabilities 

include savings deposits in the domestic money market which pay interest at floating rates and 

fixed deposits which pay interest at short-term fixed rates.

			   The Bank manages interest rate risk continuously by assessing Net Interest Income Sensitivity  

and preparing Static Repricing Gap Analysis for one year under assumption of changing in  

interest rate 100 basis points which has shown the assessment result as at December 31, 2020  

of Baht 2,455.63 million accounted for 10.03% of net interest income. In addition, The Bank 

uses Stress Testing to assess interest rate risk and manage assets and liabilities in accordance 

with business environment to achieve revenue’s target as planned and has interest rate risk 

at acceptable level. Interest rate risk management is carried out by the Assets and Liabilities 

Management Committee of the Bank (ALCO).

			   The Bank’s significant financial assets and financial liabilities classified by periods of interest  

rate change are as follows:

	 Unit : Million Baht

 Consolidate

 December 31, 2020

Change in interest
No

interest

Non-
performing 

Loans
TotalWithin

1 month
1-3

months
3-12 

months
More than  

1 year

Financial Assets

Interbank and money market items, net 55,417.15 - - - 190.10 - 55,607.25 

Investments, net 12,945.61 22,477.67 17,528.48 23,724.33 37.50 - 76,713.59 

Loans to customers 880,670.40 4,983.25 15,588.08 304,404.43 77,650.44 50,054.94 1,333,351.54 

Total 949,033.16 27,460.92 33,116.56 328,128.76 77,878.04 50,054.94 1,465,672.38 

Financial Liabilities

Deposits 408,995.63 135,590.02 471,553.62 145,518.75 - - 1,161,658.02 

Interbank and money market items, net - - - - - - -

Debt issued and borrowings 1,025.77 1,893.02 25,978.63 107,150.00 - - 136,047.42 

Total 410,021.40 137,483.04 497,532.25 252,668.75 - - 1,297,705.44 
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	 6.1	 The Bank’s Risk Components (Continued)

		  6.1.2	 Market risk (Continued)

Unit : Million Baht

 Consolidate

 December 31, 2019

Change in interest
No

interest

Non-
performing 

Loans
TotalWithin

1 month
1-3

months
3-12 

months
More than  

1 year

Financial Assets        

Interbank and money market items, net 59,757.65 - - - 3,049.44 - 62,807.09 

Investments, net 214.64 85.27 22,313.68 4,922.55 37.50 - 27,573.64

Loans to customers 915,157.66 1,732.98 82,201.26 98,209.43 74,698.09 51,900.80 1,223,900.22

Total 975,129.95 1,818.25 104,514.94 103,131.98 77,785.03 51,900.80 1,314,280.95 

Financial Liabilities        

Deposits 320,631.32 139,869.98 381,100.90 151,666.86 - - 993,269.06 

Interbank and money market items, net 1,798.00 - - - - - 1,798.00 

Debt issued and borrowings 1,034.47 5,230.97 14,353.37 136,047.42 - - 156,666.23 

Total 323,463.79 145,100.95 395,454.27 287,714.28 - - 1,151,733.29 

Unit : Million Baht

 The Bank

 December 31, 2020

Change in interest
No

interest

Non-
performing 

Loans
TotalWithin

1 month
1-3

months
3-12 

months
More than  

1 year

Financial Assets        

Interbank and money market items, net 55,415.32 - - - 190.10 - 55,605.42 

Investments, net 12,945.61 22,477.67 17,759.60 23,724.33 37.50 - 76,944.71 

Loans to customers 880,670.40 4,983.25 15,588.08 304,404.43 77,650.44 50,054.94 1,333,351.54 

Total 949,031.33 27,460.92 33,347.68 328,128.76 77,878.04 50,054.94 1,465,901.67 

Financial Liabilities        

Deposits 408,995.63 135,590.02 471,553.62 145,518.75 - - 1,161,658.02 

Interbank and money market items, net - - - - - - -

Debt issued and borrowings 3,273.56 2,197.76 21,814.09 108,389.80 383.33 - 136,058.54 

Total 412,269.19 137,787.78 493,367.71 253,908.55 383.33 - 1,297,716.56 
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	 6.1	 The Bank’s Risk Components (Continued)

		  6.1.2	 Market risk (Continued)

Unit : Million Baht

 The Bank

 December 31, 2019

Change in interest
No

interest

Non-
performing 

Loans
TotalWithin

1 month
1-3

months
3-12 

months
More than  

1 year

Financial Assets        

Interbank and money market items, net 59,755.13 - - - 3,049.44 - 62,804.57 

Investments, net 214.64 85.27 22,516.19 5,458.51 37.50 - 28,312.11 

Loans to customers 915,157.66 1,732.98 82,201.26 98,209.43 74,698.09 51,900.80 1,223,900.22 

Total 975,127.43 1,818.25 104,717.45 103,667.94 77,785.03 51,900.80 1,315,016.90 

Financial Liabilities        

Deposits 320,631.32 139,869.98 381,100.90 151,666.86 - - 993,269.06 

Interbank and money market items, net 1,798.00 - - - - - 1,798.00 

Debt issued and borrowings 5,117.57 6,344.88 10,894.30 133,866.31 918.64 - 157,141.70 

Total 327,546.89 146,214.86 391,995.20 285,533.17 918.64 - 1,152,208.76 

			   Primary fixed and floating interest rates loans as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Unit : Million Baht

 2020 2019

Fixed interest rate 375,265.60 210,031.77 

Floating interest rate 958,085.94 1,013,868.45 

Total Loans 1,333,351.54 1,223,900.22

			   On December 31, 2020 and 2019, loans consist of General Loan amounting to Baht 1,191,879.72 million 

and Baht 1,126,364.18 million and loans to customers from Public Service Account amounting 

to Baht 141,471.82 million and Baht 97,536.04 million, respectively.



A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0

Government Housing Bank 235

	 6.1	 The Bank’s Risk Components (Continued)

		  6.1.2	 Market risk (Continued)

			   The effective interest rates of significant financial instruments were approximate as follows:

 2020 2019

Financial assets   

Interbank and money market items 0.71% 1.64%

Investments 0.96% 1.83%

Loans to customers 3.75% 4.48%

Financial liabilities   

Deposits in Thai Baht 1.38% 1.71%

Interbank and money market items 0.62% 1.50%

Debt issued and borrowings 2.96% 3.05%

		  6.1.3	 Liquidity risk

			   Liquidity risk is risk that the Bank fails to meet its obligations and contingent when they fall due as  

a result of an inability to turn assets into cash or is unable to raise funds for its operation in 

time or is able to raise funds with costs that are higher than the acceptable level which may 

affect income and capital fund is risen from internal and external factors. It is also referred to 

the imbalance in the Bank’s assets and liabilities structure. 

			   The organizational structure, policies, and strategies for liquidity risk management are under the Bank’s 

committees including Board of Directors, Risk Oversight Committee (ROC), Audit Committee (AC), 

and Assets and Liabilities Management Committee (ALCO). The committees are responsible for 

establishing strategic policies and liquidity risk management as follows.

				    Board of Directors 

				    Board of Directors is responsible for approving risk management policies and delegating 

the roles and responsibilities to committees or relevant departments as appropriate.

				    Risk Oversight Committee (ROC)

				    Risk Oversight Committee (ROC) is responsible for reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness 

of the risk management policies and the acceptable risk level annually or when the significant 

change is occurred in order to assess, monitor, maintain the Bank’s risks tolerance and report to 

Audit Committee (AC) and Board of Directors for acknowledgement and/or consideration every 

quarter.

				    Audit Committee (AC) 

				    Audit Committee (AC) is responsible for reviewing the efficiency and effectiveness of the 

internal control processes, good corporate governance processes, and risk management processes.
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	 6.1	 The Bank’s Risk Components (Continued)

		  6.1.3	 Liquidity risk (Continued)

				    Assets and Liabilities Management Committee (ALCO)

				    Assets and Liabilities Management Committee (ALCO) is responsible for formulate both 

short-term and long-term strategies for assets and liabilities in accordance with the Bank’s policies 

and other applicable laws and regulations from the Ministry of Finance and the Bank of Thailand, 

including setting up strategies for liquidity risk management and interest rate and reporting to 

Board of Directors via Management committees for acknowledgement and/or consideration.

			   The Bank manages liquidity risk and controls risk appetite. In addition, the finance management  

department is responsible for managing liquidity, allocating deposits, investment funds and 

loans in line with business operations in order to maintain the appropriate level of liquidity and 

be able to fulfill financial obligations and the risk management department is responsible for 

reviewing the liquidity Key Risk Indicators : KRI policy and specifying related risk limits.

			   Tools for measuring and monitoring liquidity risk are showed in various report forms such as Liquidity 

Coverage Ratio report, Advanced Estimated Liquidity report and Funding Concentration report, 

etc. In addition, the Bank conducts quarterly liquidity stress tests in accordance with the Bank’s 

stress testing policy using the Bank’s custom scenario which can be divided into 3 cases as 

follows:

	 (1)	 Institution - Specific Crisis

	 (2)	 Market - Wide Crisis

	 (3)	 Combination of Institution – Specific Crisis and Market – Wide Crisis 

				    Each scenario consists of assumptions that occurred in the past which cover various  

crises such as withdrawal of deposits for each type of customers, decrease in market liquidity, 

and establish financial contingency plan based on stress testing result in each scenario.
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	 6.1	 The Bank’s Risk Components (Continued)

		  6.1.3	 Liquidity risk (Continued)

			   Financial assets and financial liabilities, classified by contractual maturity, as of December 31, 2020  

and 2019 are as follows:

Unit : Million Baht 

 Consolidate

 December 31, 2020

Contractual maturity
No

Maturity
TotalWithin

1 month
Over 1 to 3 

months
Over 3 to 12 

months
Over

1 year

Interbank and money market items, net 55,607.25 - - - - 55,607.25 

Investments, net 12,945.61 22,477.67 17,528.48 23,724.33 37.50 76,713.59 

Loans to customers and

   accrued interest receivables, net 14,706.06 9,210.80 41,616.98 1,131,399.59 47,571.95 1,244,505.38 

Total 83,258.92 31,688.47 59,145.46 1,155,123.92 47,609.45 1,376,826.22 

     

Deposits 403,110.38 136,584.08 476,444.81 145,518.75 - 1,161,658.02 

Liabilities payable on demand 1,120.98 - - - - 1,120.98 

Debt issued and borrowings 1,025.77 1,893.02 25,978.63 107,150.00 - 136,047.42 

Total 405,257.13 138,477.10 502,423.44 252,668.75 - 1,298,826.42 

Unit : Million Baht 

 Consolidate

 December 31, 2019

Contractual maturity
No

Maturity
TotalWithin

1 month
Over 1 to 3 

months
Over 3 to 12 

months
Over

1 year

Financial assets      

Interbank and money market items, net 62,807.09 - - - - 62,807.09 

Investments, net 214.64 95.98 22,302.97 4,922.55 37.50 27,573.64 

Loans to customers and
accrued interest receivables, net 10,293.67 8,739.49 39,416.92 1,032,510.66 49,515.33 1,140,476.07 

Total 73,315.40 8,835.47 61,719.89 1,037,433.21 49,552.83 1,230,856.80 

Financial liabilities      

Deposits 320,631.32 139,819.98 381,149.31 151,668.45 - 993,269.06 

Interbank and money market items, net 1,798.00 - - - - 1,798.00 

Liabilities payable on demand 531.74 - - - - 531.74 

Debt issued and borrowings 1,034.47 5,230.97 14,353.37 136,047.42 - 156,666.23 

Total 323,995.53 145,050.95 395,502.68 287,715.87 - 1,152,265.03 
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	 6.1	 The Bank’s Risk Components (Continued)

		  6.1.3	 Liquidity risk (Continued)

Unit : Million Baht 

 The Bank

 December 31, 2020

Contractual maturity
No

Maturity
TotalWithin

1 month
Over 1 to 3 

months
Over 3 to 12 

months
Over

1 year

Financial assets

Interbank and money market items, net 55,605.42 - - - - 55,605.42 

Investments, net 12,945.61 22,477.67 17,759.60 23,724.33 37.50 76,944.71 

Loans to customers and
accrued interest receivables, net 14,706.06 9,210.80 41,616.98 1,131,399.59 47,571.95 1,244,505.38 

Total 83,257.09 31,688.47 59,376.58 1,155,123.92 47,609.45 1,377,055.51 

Financial liabilities

Deposits 403,110.38 136,584.08 476,444.81 145,518.75 - 1,161,658.02 

Interbank and money market items, net - - - - - - 

Liabilities payable on demand 1,120.98 - - - - 1,120.98 

Debt issued and borrowings 1,018.73 2,075.93 21,417.83 111,546.05 - 136,058.54 

Total 405,250.09 138,660.01 497,862.64 257,064.80 - 1,298,837.54 

Unit : Million Baht 

 The Bank

 December 31, 2019

Contractual maturity
No

Maturity
TotalWithin

1 month
Over 1 to 3 

months
Over 3 to 12 

months
Over

1 year

Financial assets       

Interbank and money market items, net 62,804.57 - - - - 62,804.57 

Investments, net 214.64 95.98 22,505.48 5,458.51 37.50 28,312.11 

Loans to customers and
accrued interest receivables, net 10,293.67 8,739.49 39,416.92 1,032,510.66 49,515.33 1,140,476.07 

Total 73,312.88 8,835.47 61,922.40 1,037,969.17 49,552.83 1,231,592.75 

Financial liabilities       

Deposits 320,631.32 139,819.98 381,149.31 151,668.45 - 993,269.06 

Interbank and money market items, net 1,798.00 - - - - 1,798.00 

Liabilities payable on demand 531.74 - - - - 531.74 

Debt issued and borrowings 1,065.54 6,157.05 9,940.93 139,978.18 - 157,141.70 

Total 324,026.60 145,977.03 391,090.24 291,646.63 - 1,152,740.50 
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	 6.2	 Fair Values of Financial Instruments

		  The outstanding balance on the statement of financial position and the estimated fair value of financial 

assets and financial liabilities as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Financial Instruments Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value

Financial assets:     

Cash 5,847.45 5,847.45 6,348.33 6,348.33 

Interbank and money market items, net 55,607.25 55,607.25 62,807.09 62,807.09 

Investments, net 76,713.59 76,713.59 27,573.64 27,573.64 

Loans to customers and accrued interest receivable, net 1,244,505.38 1,244,505.38 1,140,476.07 1,140,476.07 

Total 1,382,673.67 1,382,673.67 1,237,205.13 1,237,205.13 

Financial liabilities:     

Deposits 1,161,658.02 1,161,658.02 993,269.06 993,269.06 

Interbank and money market items, net - - 1,798.00 1,798.00 

Liabilities payable on demand 1,120.98 1,120.98 531.74 531.74 

Debt issued and borrowings 136,047.42 136,047.42 156,666.23 156,666.23 

Total 1,298,826.42 1,298,826.42 1,152,265.03 1,152,265.03 

	 Unit : Million Baht

The Bank

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Financial Instruments Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value

Financial assets:     

Cash 5,847.45 5,847.45 6,348.33 6,348.33 

Interbank and money market items, net 55,605.42 55,605.42 62,804.57 62,804.57 

Investments, net 76,944.71 76,944.71 28,312.12 28,312.12 

Loans to customers and accrued interest receivable, net 1,244,505.38 1,244,505.38 1,140,476.07 1,140,476.07 

Total 1,382,902.96 1,382,902.96 1,237,941.09 1,237,941.09 

Financial liabilities:     

Deposits 1,161,658.02 1,161,658.02 993,269.06 993,269.06 

Interbank and money market items, net - - 1,798.00 1,798.00 

Liabilities payable on demand 1,120.98 1,120.98 531.74 531.74 

Debt issued and borrowings 136,058.54 136,058.54 157,141.70 157,141.70 

Total 1,298,837.54 1,298,837.54 1,152,740.50 1,152,740.50 
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	 6.3	 Capital Requirement

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Tier 1 capital     

Paid-up share capital 20,320.33 20,320.33 20,320.33 20,320.33 

Legal reserve 28,797.81 26,127.46 28,797.81 26,127.46 

Reserve appropriated from the net profit 1,200.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 

Non-controlling interests (91.26) (120.82) - -   

Net income after appropriation 38,897.00 34,858.99 38,897.00 34,858.99 

Surplus on business combination

under common control  355.83  - 495.82 - 

Existing equity before business

combination under common control  -  522.23 -  638.36

Total tier 1 capital 89,479.71 82,908.19 89,710.96 83,145.14 

Tier 2 capital     

Allowance for pass asset-classification 8,036.23 8,059.72 8,013.20 8,016.89 

Total tier 2 capital 8,036.23 8,059.72 8,013.20 8,016.89 

Total capital requirement 97,515.94 90,967.91 97,724.16 91,162.03 

		

		  The Bank has calculated the capital fund in accordance with the Bank of Thailand’s Notification  

No. Sor Gor Sor. 15/2562  dated September 2, 2019 regarding the Criteria for the Supervision of the Capital 

Funds of Specialized Financial Institutions. The effective date is from October 1, 2019. The Bank maintains  

a ratio of capital fund to risk assets of at least 8.5 percent, provided that the Tier 1 capital ratio must 

be at least 4.25 percent of all the risk assets. While Credit Risk Assets is calculated according to BOT’s 

Notification No. Sor Gor Sor. 17/2562 and Operational Risk Assets is calculated according to BOT’s  

Notification No. Sor Gor Sor. 19/2562.

		  The ratio of the capital fund to risk assets as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 as prescribed by the Bank 

of Thailand regulations and process as follows:

Percentage

Consolidated The Bank

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Total capital fund 15.17 14.11 15.24 14.21

Tier 1 capital 13.92 12.86 13.99 12.96
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7.	 Estimations and Assumptions
	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the regulations of accounting and financial reporting 

preparation of the specialised financial institutions and in accordance with the Bank of Thailand regulations 

requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the accounting policies and 

reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

	 Estimated and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and foreseeable impact in the future. Information about 

the assumption and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to 

the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

8.	 Additional Information
	 8.1	 Cash and Cash Equivalents (Supplementary Disclosures of the Statement of Cash Flows)

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Cash 5,847.45 6,348.33 5,847.45 6,348.33 

Interbank and money market items 55,607.25 62,807.09 55,605.42 62,804.57 

Total cash and cash equivalents 61,454.70 69,155.42 61,452.87 69,152.90 

	 8.2	 Interbank and Money Market Items, Net (Assets)

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Demand Time Total Demand Time Total

Domestic Items       
Bank of Thailand 3.44 - 3.44 3.16 - 3.16 

Commercial banks 260.04 35,335.00 35,595.04 3,097.77 41,200.00 44,297.77 

Specialised financial institutions 4.15 20,000.00 20,004.15 0.80 18,500.00 18,500.80 

Total 267.63 55,335.00 55,602.63 3,101.73 59,700.00 62,801.73 

Add Accrued interest receivable - 4.62 4.62 - 5.36 5.36 

Total domestic items 267.63 55,339.62 55,607.25 3,101.73 59,705.36 62,807.09 
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	 8.2	 Interbank and Money Market Items, Net (Assets) (Continued)

Unit : Million Baht

The Bank

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Demand Time Total Demand Time Total

Domestic Items       
Bank of Thailand 3.44 - 3.44 3.16 - 3.16 

Commercial banks 258.21 35,335.00 35,593.21 3,095.24 41,200.00 44,295.24 

Specialised financial institutions 4.15 20,000.00 20,004.15 0.81 18,500.00 18,500.81 

Total 265.80 55,335.00 55,600.80 3,099.21 59,700.00 62,799.21 

Add Accrued interest receivable - 4.62 4.62 - 5.36 5.36 

Total domestic items 265.80 55,339.62 55,605.42 3,099.21 59,705.36 62,804.57 

	 8.3	 Investments, Net

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Cost Cost Cost Cost

Held-to-maturity debt securities     

Government bonds 76,676.09 26,055.19 76,676.09 26,055.19 

Corporate bonds - 1,480.95 231.12 2,219.42 

General investment     

Non-marketable equity securities 37.50 37.50 37.50 37.50 

Total investments, net 76,713.59 27,573.64 76,944.71 28,312.11 

		  Non-marketable equity securities are an investment in National Credit Bureau’s ordinary share, which is 

a credit data service business.

	 8.4	 Investments in Subsidiaries, Net

		  In this period, the Bank became a shareholder of SPV-SMC (7) Company Limited, SPV-SMC (8)  

Company Limited and SPV-SMC (9) Company Limited in accordance with the Dissolution of the  

Secondary Mortgage Corporation Act B.E. 2563 (2020). The companies operate securitization business 

under the securitization plan.

		  On September 23, 2019, SPV-SMC (7) Company Limited has ended its securitization plan and registered 

for the dissolution of the company with the Ministry of Commerce on June 16, 2020.

		  On November 24, 2020, SPV-SMC (8) Company Limited has ended its securitization plan and is currently 

in the process of the dissolution registration with the Ministry of Commerce.
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	 8.4	 Investments in Subsidiaries, Net (Continued)

Unit : Baht

The Bank

December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019

Subsidiaries
Type of
business

Type of
share

Participating 
interest

(%)

Investment at 
cost method

SPV-SMC (7) Company Limited Securitization Ordinary 48 12,000.00

SPV-SMC (8) Company Limited Securitization Ordinary 49 12,250.00 

SPV-SMC (9) Company Limited Securitization Ordinary 49 12,250.00 

Total investments in subsidiaries 36,500.00

Unit : Million Baht

Subsidiaries

A proportionate 
ownership interests 
and potential voting 
rights outstanding 

for Non-Controlling 
Interests (NCI) (%)

Profit (Loss) attributable to 
Non-Controlling Interests 

(NCI)

Accumulated
Non-Controlling Interests 

(NCI)

December 31, 2020
and

December 31, 2019

December 
31, 2020

December 
31, 2019

December 
31, 2020

December 
31, 2019

SPV-SMC (7) Company Limited 52 (0.02)  10.26 0.04 0.06

SPV-SMC (8) Company Limited 51 26.00 2.86 0.14 (25.86)

SPV-SMC (9) Company Limited 51 3.58 10.58 (91.44) (95.02)

Total 29.56 23.70 (91.26) (120.82)

		  As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Non-Controlling Interests (NCI) amounting to Baht (91.26) million  

and Baht (120.82) million respectively comprised the accumulated Non-Controlling Interests (NCI) in 

retained earnings amounting to Baht (91.30) million and Baht (120.86) million, and the accumulated 

Non-Controlling Interests (NCI) in equity amounting to Baht 0.04 million and Baht 0.04 million respectively.
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	 8.5	 Loans to Customers and Accrued Interest Receivables, Net

		  8.5.1	 Classified by loan type

 Unit : Million Baht 

Consolidated and the Bank

 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Overdrafts 1,874.77 1,947.25 

Individual loans to customers 1,172,516.78 1,106,418.06 

Receivable under litigation 4,492.78 3,363.07 

Claims and investment in receivables 12,995.39 14,635.80 

Add Premium - -

(Less) Discount - -

Total loans to customers 1,191,879.72 1,126,364.18 

Add Accrued interest receivables 7,673.29 3,882.32 

Total loans to customers and accrued interest receivables 1,199,553.01 1,130,246.50 

(Less) Allowance for doubtful accounts   

 1. Minimum allowance required by Bank of Thailand 

    regulations

 - Individual (17,419.03) (16,251.64) 

2. Excess allowance (Note 8.5.4)  (76,079.95) (68,583.86) 

Total loans to customers and accrued interest receivables, net 1,106,054.03 1,045,411.00 

			 

	 As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank has reclassified loans that the proceed from properties 

auctioned did not cover loans, which compulsory execution is overdue, to be classified as other assets 

with the allowance for doubtful account in the amount of 10,038 debtors or totaling Baht 801.63 million 

and 8,698 debtors or totaling Baht 754.89 million, respectively.
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	 8.5	 Loans to Customers and Accrued Interest Receivables, Net (Continued)

		  8.5.1	 Classified by loan type (Continued)

			  As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, loans totaled Baht 1,191,879.72 million and Baht 1,126,364.18 million  

respectively, comprise of loans from supporting government treasury policies and not included 

loans to customers under the Public Service Account amounting to Baht 178,026.20 million and  

Baht 145,564.23 million. The classification by the project are as follows:

Unit : Million Baht

 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

2015 GHB Paher San Rak 2,433.20 2,937.94 

2016 GHB Paher San Rak 10,985.07 11,769.14 

2017 GHB Paher San Rak 32,044.67 33,923.06 

2017 GHB Paher San Rak (Southern Border-Province)  681.49 708.10 

2018 GHB Paher San Rak 13,662.41 14,185.46 

2019 GHB Paher San Rak 30,162.29 29,752.67 

2019 GHB Paher San Rak (Equipment)  49.00 50.59 

2020 GHB Paher San Rak 17,134.84 -

Housing Loan to Stimulate Southern Border-Province Economies (Retails) 3,795.73 3,095.40 

2016 GHB for Government Official 9,536.90 11,183.75 

2017 GHB for Government Official 7,399.16 7,969.59 

2017 GHB for Elders 13.94 14.86 

Housing Loan for Grateful Person 8,312.97 8,852.28 

Housing Loan for Grateful Person/1 3,002.81 3,153.85 

Baan Eur-Arthorn Housing Project 12,126.94 17,768.27 

GHB Housing Loan Term-Fhun 194.01 199.27 

GHB Housing Loan Term-Rao Mai Ting Kun 26,490.77 -

Total 178,026.20 145,564.23 

		  8.5.2	 Classified by currency and customer’s residence

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total

Thai Baht 1,191,879.72 - 1,191,879.72 1,126,364.18 - 1,126,364.18 



A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0

Government Housing Bank246

	 8.5	 Loans to Customers and Accrued Interest Receivables, Net (Continued)

		  8.5.3	 Classified by business types and loan classification

	 Unit : Million Baht

 Consolidated and the Bank 

December 31, 2020

 Normal 
Special

mention

Sub

standard
Doubtful

Doubtful

of loss
Total

Housing loans 1,053,509.90 87,850.86 8,407.53 5,986.74 31,532.07 1,187,287.10 

Transfer of claims 3,981.23 237.88 38.16 71.08 264.27 4,592.62 

Total 1,057,491.13 88,088.74 8,445.69 6,057.82 31,796.34 1,191,879.72 

Unit : Million Baht

 Consolidated and the Bank 

December 31, 2019

 Normal 
Special

mention

Sub

standard
Doubtful

Doubtful

of loss
Total

Housing loans 991,700.38 77,936.45 8,451.65 11,419.70 27,879.64 1,117,387.82 

Transfer of claims 7,567.89 691.09 152.02 209.28 356.08 8,976.36 

Total 999,268.27 78,627.54 8,603.67 11,628.98 28,235.72 1,126,364.18

		  8.5.4	 Classified by loan classification 

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2020

Loans and
accrued interest

receivable

Net amount
to set

allowance1)

% Used for 
Calculation
Allowance

Allowance
for doubtful

accounts

1. Bank of Thailand minimum allowance     

   - Normal 1,064,914.12 145,486.07 1 1,454.86 

   - Special mention 88,339.04 56,215.91 2 1,124.32 

   - Substandard 8,445.69 2,164.71 100 2,164.71 

   - Doubtful 6,057.82 1,473.16 100 1,473.16 

   - Doubtful of loss 31,796.34 11,201.98 100 11,201.98 

    Total   17,419.03 

2. Excess allowance 76,079.95 

    Total 1,199,553.01 216,541.83  93,498.98 
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	 8.5	 Loans to Customers and Accrued Interest Receivables, Net (Continued)

		  8.5.4	 Classified by loan classification (Continued)

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2019

Loans and
accrued interest

receivable

Net amount
to set

allowance1)

% Used for 
Calculation
Allowance

Allowance
for doubtful

accounts

1. Bank of Thailand minimum allowance     

   - Normal 1,002,782.40 113,332.78 1 1,133.33 

   - Special mention 78,995.73 39,892.55 2 797.85 

   - Substandard 8,603.67 2,351.12 100 2,351.12 

   - Doubtful 11,628.98 2,788.98 100 2,788.98 

   - Doubtful of loss 28,235.72 9,180.36 100 9,180.36 

    Total 16,251.64 

2. Excess allowance 68,583.86 

    Total 1,130,246.50 167,545.79 84,835.50 

		  1) The net amount to set allowance is an outstanding of the capital which is not include accrued interest  

   receivables after less collateral.

		  As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the allowance for doubtful accounts were Baht 93,498.98 million 

and Baht 84,835.50 million (Note 8.6), which are the minimum allowance in accordance with the BOT’s 

regulations and the Bank also sets up additional provision amounting to Baht 76,079.95 million and 

Baht 68,583.86 million, respectively. To alleviate an adverse effect to occur in the future, the Bank also  

considers the qualitative factors. The Bank sets up additional provision by reflecting the qualitative  

factor of retail loans. The Bank reviews the credit quality of loans, the additional allowance for doubtful 

accounts might be set up annually.

		  Loans and accrued interest receivables that are classified as substandard, doubtful, and doubtful of 

loss according to the BOT’s regulations in which the Bank ceased to recognise income because they 

are non-performing loans. As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, these non-performing loans totaling  

Baht 46,299.85 million and Baht 48,468.37 million which are 3.86 percent and 4.29 percent, respectively.
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	 8.6	 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

	 Unit : Million Baht

 Consolidated and the Bank

 December 31, 2020

 Normal 
Special
mention

Sub
standard

Doubtful
Doubtful
of  loss

Allowance
in excess

Total

Beginning balance 1,133.33 797.85 2,351.12 2,788.98 9,180.36 68,583.86 84,835.50 

Allowance for doubtful accounts 321.53 326.47 (186.41) (1,315.82) 3,049.94 7,496.09 9,691.80 

Bad debts written-off - - - -  (1,028.32) - (1,028.32) 

Ending balance 1,454.86 1,124.32 2,164.71 1,473.16 11,201.98 76,079.95 93,498.98 

		  As at December 31, 2020, the Bank sets an additional allowance for doubtful accounts in the 

amount of Baht 9,691.80 million by increasing the BOT minimum allowance for doubtful accounts by  

Baht 2,195.71 million and increasing the allowance in excess of the BOT’s requirement by Baht 7,496.09 million.

	 Unit : Million Baht

 Consolidated and the Bank

 December 31, 2019

 Normal 
Special
mention

Sub
standard

Doubtful
Doubtful
of  loss

Allowance
in excess

Total

Beginning balance 1,134.17 880.49 2,634.50 2,891.46 8,632.80 62,199.40 78,372.82 

Allowance for doubtful accounts (0.84) (82.64) (283.38) (102.48) 1,754.75 6,384.46 7,669.87 

Bad debts written-off - - - - (1,207.19) - (1,207.19) 

Ending balance 1,133.33 797.85 2,351.12 2,788.98 9,180.36 68,583.86 84,835.50 

		  As at December 31, 2019, the Bank sets an additional allowance for doubtful accounts in the 

amount of Baht 7,669.87 million by increasing the BOT minimum allowance for doubtful accounts by  

Baht 1,285.41 million and increasing the allowance in excess of the BOT’s requirement by Baht 6,384.46 million.

	 8.7	 Troubled Debts Restructuring

		  For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, troubled debts restructuring are as follows:

Unit: Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 December 31, 2020

Types of debt restructuring No. of Account Outstanding

debts before

debt restructuring

Changes of repayment conditions 131,338 111,376.34 

Total 131,338 111,376.34 
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	 8.7	 Troubled Debts Restructuring (Continued)

Unit: Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 December 31, 2019

Types of debt restructuring No. of Account Outstanding

debts before

debt restructuring

Changes of repayment conditions 66,767 56,918.88 

Total 66,767 56,918.88 

	 8.8	 Assets Classified by Bank of Thailand’s Regulation
	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2020

Loans and Accrued 
Interest Receivables1)

Properties
for Sale

Other Assets Total

Normal 1,194,947.64 - 504.95 1,195,452.59 

Special mention 96,804.06 - 91.14 96,895.20 

Substandard 9,408.51 - 7.77 9,416.28 

Doubtful 6,789.30 - 5.91 6,795.21 

Doubtful of loss 33,857.13 1,122.00 1,599.47 36,578.60 

Total 1,341,806.64 1,122.00 2,209.24 1,345,137.88 

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2019

Loans and Accrued 
Interest Receivables1)

Properties
for Sale

Other Assets Total

Normal 1,092,128.32 - 408.86 1,092,537.18 

Special mention 84,005.53 - 66.65 84,072.18 

Substandard 9,430.56 - 6.65 9,437.21 

Doubtful 12,746.99 - 11.26 12,758.25 

Doubtful of loss 29,723.24 992.17 1,609.86 32,325.27 

Total 1,228,034.64 992.17 2,103.28 1,231,130.09 

		  1) Loans and accrued interest receivables are total loans and accrued interest from General loans and  

   Public Service Account (PSA) loans



A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0

Government Housing Bank250

	 8.9	 Properties for Sale, Net
Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2020

Beginning
Balance

Additions Disposals
Ending
Balance

Assets acquired from debt repayment     

Immovable properties 17,727.98 6,149.75 2,578.06 21,299.67 

Total properties for sale 17,727.98 6,149.75 2,578.06 21,299.67 

(Less)  Allowance for impairment  (4,150.88) (1,446.83) (732.72) (4,864.99) 

Total properties for sale, net 13,577.10 4,702.92 1,845.34 16,434.68 

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2019

Beginning
Balance

Additions Disposals
Ending
Balance

Assets acquired from debt repayment     

Immovable properties 14,415.43 5,972.77 2,660.22 17,727.98 

Total properties for sale 14,415.43 5,972.77 2,660.22 17,727.98 

(Less)  Allowance for impairment  (3,561.31) (1,350.08) (760.51) (4,150.88) 

Total properties for sale, net 10,854.12 4,622.69 1,899.71 13,557.10 

		  The immovable properties from debt repayment totaling Baht 29,875.14 million, assessing by the external 

appraisal and Baht 1,010.32 million, assessing by the internal appraisal.

		  As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank had properties for sale of Baht 16,434.68 million and  

Baht 13,577.10 million, respectively. There are properties for sale which are in the process of registration of 

transferring in the total properties for sale of Baht 4,644.23 million and Baht 4,632.44 million, respectively. 

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Bank had gain on sales of properties for sale after transaction 

costs of Baht 396.36 million (transaction cost of Baht 66.48 million).

		  As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, The Bank’s allowance for doubtful accounts increased by 

Baht 714.11 million and Baht 589.57 million, respectively, caused by an increase or reverse loss  

on impairment.
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	 8.10	 Premises and Equipment, Net
	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2020

Cost Accumulated Depreciation
Net

Balance
Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Land 683.51 2.29 0.78 685.02 - - - - 685.02 

Premises 3,973.54 274.72 35.42 4,212.84 2,703.54 146.94 32.33 2,818.15 1,394.69 

Equipment 3,222.46 210.71 129.96 3,303.21 1,883.78 371.16 80.84 2,174.10 1,129.11 

Others 660.02 356.91 818.19 198.74 73.18 - 73.18 - 198.74 

8,539.53 844.63 984.35 8,399.81 4,660.50 518.10 186.35 4,992.25 3,407.56 

Depreciation         518.10 

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2019

Cost Accumulated Depreciation
Net

Balance
Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Land 682.81 0.70 - 683.51 - - - - 683.51 

Premises 3,887.28 123.90 37.64 3,973.54 2,583.78 145.65 25.89 2,703.54 1,270.00 

Equipment 2,512.13 796.17 85.84 3,222.46 1,613.61 350.44 80.27 1,883.78 1,338.68 

Others 1,154.56 1,448.92 1,943.46 660.02 73.18 - - 73.18 586.84 

8,236.78 2,369.69 2,066.94 8,539.53 4,270.57 496.09 106.16 4,660.50 3,879.03 

Depreciation        496.09 

		  As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the value of the land was Baht 685.02 million and Baht 683.51 million.  
The carrying value of land amounting to Baht 7.21 million has been rendered to the usage of the Metropolitan  
Rapid Transit Authority (MRTA) since 2000 with no time limit. The underground of this land is 2 rais 142 
squares wahs and is the head office parking lot. The Bank is compensated Baht 75.36 million in return. 
The total amount of compensation was recognised as income on the date the payment was received. 

		  Costs of fully depreciated assets still in use as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 2020 2019

Premises 1,244.66 1,135.31 

Equipment 1,169.79 1,119.38 

Total 2,414.45 2,254.69 
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	 8.11	 Right-of-use Assets, Net

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2020

Cost Accumulated Depreciation
Net

Balance
Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Land and/or

   premises 

lease 551.68 153.72 136.35 569.05 -  122.09 25.54 96.55 472.50 

Vehicle lease 157.35 156.34 28.81 284.88 - 113.84 16.08 97.76 187.12 

Others 171.10 - - 171.10 166.37 1.32 - 167.69 3.41 

880.13 310.06 165.16 1,025.03 166.37 237.25 41.62 362.00 663.03 

Depreciation        201.56 

		  According to TFRS 16 which was effective on January 1, 2020, the Bank reclassified vehicles under the 

finance leases presented on the financial statements of the year 2019 as Premises and Equipment to 

Right-of-use Assets.

		  Under the Federation of Accounting Professions’ Notification No. 16/B.E.2563 (2020) dated April 22, 2020 

regarding the Accounting Guidance on Temporary Relief Measures for Accounting Alternatives in Response 

to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic, the Bank has adjusted lease payable from reducing fees for building 

space rental for the year 2020 for totaling amount of Baht 5.96 million.

		  As at December 31, 2020, costs of vehicle leases were Baht 284.88 million including the existing costs  

of the vehicle under the finance leases amount of Baht 54.11 million which was a carrying amount of 

Baht 32.17 million.
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	 8.12	 Other Intangible Assets, Net

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2020

Cost Accumulated Depreciation
Net

Balance
Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Computer software 2,919.45 193.37 126.46 2,986.36 1,533.89 391.41 105.93 1,819.37 1,166.99 

2,919.45 193.37 126.46 2,986.36 1,533.89 391.41 105.93 1,819.37 1,166.99 

Amortisation 391.41

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2019

Cost Accumulated Depreciation
Net

Balance
Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Computer software 1,901.34 1,030.15 12.04 2,919.45 1,224.03 321.78 11.92 1,533.89 1,385.56 

1,901.34 1,030.15 12.04 2,919.45 1,224.03 321.78 11.92 1,533.89 1,385.56 

Amortisation 321.78
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	 8.13	 Other Assets, Net

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Other
assets

Allowance
for

impairment

Other
assets 
net

Other assets Allowance
for

impairment

Other
assets 
net

Return fees 1,101.76 (1,101.76)  - 1,111.53 (1,111.53)  -   

Long-term individual loan fees 662.57 (81.87) 580.70 542.52 (76.38)  466.14 

Other debtors 157.67 (151.43) 6.24 146.41 (132.63)  13.78 

Rent receivable - real estate assets - - - 1.24 (1.17)  0.07 

Accrued income 45.24 (0.70)  44.54 15.49 (0.70)  14.79 

Deferred charges 14.11 - 14.11 17.29 - 17.29 

Guarantees and cash deposits 86.92 - 86.92 84.50 - 84.50 

Debtors pending refund 360.69  (360.69)  - 365.11 (365.11)  -   

Supplies 7.20 (0.24)  6.96 0.24 (0.24) -   

Others 484.19 - 484.19 482.51 - 482.51 

Total 2,920.35 (1,696.69)  1,223.66 2,766.84 (1,687.76) 1,079.08

	 Unit : Million Baht

The Bank

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Other
assets

Allowance
for

impairment

Other
assets 
net

Other assets Allowance
for

impairment

Other
assets 
net

Return fees 1,101.76 (1,101.76)  - 1,111.53 (1,111.53)  -

Long-term individual loan fees 662.57 (81.87)  580.70 542.52 (76.38)  466.14 

Other debtors 157.67 (151.43)  6.24 146.41 (132.63)  13.78 

Rent receivable - real estate assets - - - 1.24 (1.17) 0.07 

Accrued income 126.06 (0.70) 125.36 172.47 (0.70) 171.77 

Deferred charges 14.11 - 14.11 17.29 - 17.29 

Guarantees and cash deposits 86.92 - 86.92 84.50 - 84.50 

Debtors pending refund 360.69 (360.69)  - 365.11 (365.11) -

Supplies 7.20 (0.24)  6.96 0.24 (0.24) -

Others 497.65 - 497.65 483.20 - 483.20 

Total 3,014.63 (1,696.69) 1,317.94 2,924.51 (1,687.76) 1,236.75 

		  As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank had debtors pending refund amounting to  

Baht 360.69 million and Baht 365.11 million respectively. The Bank set up an allowance for doubtful 

accounts for the full amount.
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	 8.14	 Deposits

		  8.14.1	 Classified by types of deposits

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 2020 2019

Demand deposits 579.60 576.68 

Savings deposits 274,414.89 246,074.35 

Time deposits 886,663.53 746,618.03 

Total 1,161,658.02 993,269.06

		  8.14.2	 Classified by currency and depositor locations

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

2020 2019

Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total

Thai Baht 1,161,658.02   - 1,161,658.02 993,269.06 - 993,269.06 

	 8.15	 Interbank and Money Market Items, Net (Liabilities)

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

2020 2019

Demand Time Total Demand Time Total

Domestic items

- Commercial banks - - - - 1,798.00 1,798.00 

Total - - - - 1,798.00 1,798.00 

	 8.16	 Debt Issued and Borrowings

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated

2020 2019

Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total

Bonds 131,240.00 - 131,240.00 147,000.00 - 147,000.00 

Secured debentures 4,807.42 - 4,807.42 9,666.23 - 9,666.23 

Total 136,047.42 - 136,047.42 156,666.23 - 156,666.23 
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	 8.16	 Debt Issued and Borrowings (Continued)

Unit : Million Baht

The Bank

2020 2019

Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total

Bonds 131,240.00 - 131,240.00 147,000.00 - 147,000.00 

Promissory notes 216.23 - 216.23 962.04 - 962.04 

Borrowings 4,602.31 - 4,602.31 9,179.66 - 9,179.66 

Total 136,058.54 - 136,058.54 157,141.70 - 157,141.70 

		  In 2020, the Bank redeemed bonds totaling Baht 15,760.00 million.

		  Debt Issued and Borrowings details are as follows:

Types Lenders

Amount 

(Unit:

Million Baht)

Terms
Maturity

year

Annual

interest 

rate (%)

Domestic

   Bonds - GHB 

   Bonds - SMC

Commercial banks and financial institutions

Commercial banks and financial institutions

127,340.00 

3,900.00 

3 - 15 years

5 - 7 years

2021 - 2034

2021 - 2023

1.78 - 4.74

2.60 - 3.01

Secured debentures
Land And House Bank Public Company 

Limited and retail investors
4,807.42 5 years 2021 3.24

Promissory notes SPV-SMC (9) Company Limited 216.23 1 - 3 months 2021 0.38 - 0.45

Borrowings SPV-SMC (9) Company Limited 4,602.31 1 - 25 years 2021 - 2045 3.62 - 15.00

	 8.17	 Provision 

Unit: Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 2020 2019

Provision for employee benefits 2,484.71 2,292.94 

Provision of indemnity 7.74 7.81 

Provision for decommissioning costs 6.81 6.81 

Total 2,499.26 2,307.56
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	 8.17	 Provision (Continued) 

		  8.17.1	 Employee Benefits

			   Provision for employee benefits

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 2020 2019

Employment rewards 2,308.77 2,130.92 

Retiring employee gifts 47.08 42.99 

Pensions 5.77 5.41 

Legal Severance Payment 23.63 18.50 

Total post-employment employee benefit liabilities 2,385.25 2,197.82 

Short-term employee benefits 28.04 25.61 

Other long-term employee benefits 71.42 69.51 

Total  employee benefit liabilities 2,484.71 2,292.94 

			   The present values of post-employment benefit obligations for the defined benefit plan  

are as follows:

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 2020 2019

Beginning balance as at January 1 2,197.82 1,590.07 

Proportion that recognise in profit or loss   

Current service costs 164.62 156.45 

Past service costs 11.10 507.70 

Interest costs 59.95 53.58 

Proportion that recognise in other comprehensive

income

Actuarial (gain) loss

Financial assumptions  (5.01)  (141.49)

Demographic assumptions 25.13 204.65 

Experience adjustment 2.64 (145.82)

Employee benefits paid during the period  (71.00)  (27.32)

Ending balance as at December 31 2,385.25 2,197.82 



A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0

Government Housing Bank258

	 8.17	 Provision (Continued) 

		  8.17.1	 Employee Benefits (Continued)

			   The present values of other long-term employee benefits are as follows: 

Unit: Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 2020 2019

Beginning balance as at January 1 69.51 79.06 

Proportion that recognise in profit or loss

Current service costs 6.06 5.99 

Past service costs 1.14 -

Interest costs 1.83 1.74 

Proportion that recognise in profit or loss

Actuarial (gain) loss

Financial assumptions - (11.79)

Demographic assumptions - 5.34 

Experience adjustment - (6.48)

Employee benefits paid during the period (7.12)  (4.35)

Ending balance as at December 31 71.42 69.51 

			   Expenses recognised in profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Unit: Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 2020 2019

   Current service costs 170.68 162.44 

   Past service costs 12.24 507.70 

   Interest costs 61.78 55.32 

   Actuarial gain - (12.93)

Total 244.70 712.53 
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	 8.17	 Provision (Continued) 

		  8.17.1	 Employee Benefits (Continued)

			   As at December 31, 2019, the State Enterprise Labour Relations Committee issued the State  

Enterprise Labour Relations Committee announcement by the authorization of the State  

Enterprise Labour Relations Act B.E. 2543 (2000) regarding minimum standards of employment  

conditions in State Enterprise (No. 4), which was announced in the Royal Government  

Gazette on September 26, 2019 and was effective from the day following the announced date.  

This announcement sets the additional compensation rate in case of the laid-off employees 

and retired employees who have worked consecutively for 20 years or more, are entitled to 

receive compensation not less than last 400-day final wage rate, which affects the Bank as it 

subjects to this Act.

			   This change represented a revision of the post-employment employee benefits plan, resulting  

in an increase in the provision for the employee benefits plan of the Bank amounting to  

Baht 507.70 million. The Bank recorded the effect of the change by recognising the past service 

costs as an expense in the statement of profit or loss. 

			   On September 24, 2020, the Bank recognised the effect of employee transfer from SMC  

in the current period as follows:

			   1)	 The Bank recognised post-employment benefit as actuarial losses in the statement of  

	 comprehensive income amounting to Baht 22.76 million.

			   2)	 The Bank recognised past service costs from post-employment benefit amounting to  
	 Baht 11.10 million and other long-term employee benefits amounting to Baht 1.14 million  
	 as expenses in statement of profit or loss.

				    Expenses (Revenues) recognised in other comprehensive income for the years ended  

	 December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows: 

Unit : Million Baht

 2020 2019

Actuarial gain (loss) (22.76) 82.66 

Total (22.76) 82.66 

		  The principal actuarial assumptions used to calculate post-employment benefits obligation - defined 

benefits and other long-term employee benefits are as follows:

Percent

 2020 2019

Discount rate 2.67 %  2.67 %  

Average rate of salary increase 7.50 %  7.50 %  

Average rate of resignation 0 % - 30 %  0 % - 30 %
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	 8.17	 Provision (Continued)

		  8.17.1	 Employee Benefits (Continued)

			   The principal actuarial assumption comprises of the salary increase rate and mortality rate,  

and the discount rate of the sensitivity analysis below was considered from the reasonable 

change in each of the relevant actuarial assumptions as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 while 

other assumptions remain constant as follows:

Percent

 2020 2019

Increase in discount rate by 0.5 - 1 percent (254.83) (240.89)

Decrease in discount rate by 0.5 - 1 percent 300.95 284.75 

Increase in salary rate by 0.5 - 1 percent 300.50 262.08 

Decrease in salary rate by 0.5 - 1 percent (259.21) (227.25)

Increase in resignation rate by 0.5 - 1 percent (265.29) (250.97)

Decrease in resignation rate by 0.5 - 1 percent 24.30 23.30 

Increase in life expectancy rate by 0.5 - 1 percent 13.80 11.54 

Decrease in life expectancy rate by 0.5 - 1 percent (16.48) (11.48)

			   The sensitivity analysis above might not display the actual change in the defined employee  

benefits due to the change in assumptions are closely related.

			   Moreover, the present value of the defined benefit plan presented on the sensitivity analysis  

is assessed by the Projected Unit Credit Method, which is concurrent with the assessing of the 

provision for employee benefit recognised on the statement of financial position.

			   As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the expected future payment duration of the weighted  

average of the defined retirement benefit obligation is 12.41 years.

			   Details of the expected future payment duration of the weighted average of the defined  

retirement benefit obligation are as follows:

Unit : Million Baht

 2020 2019

Expected payment of employee benefits   

Within 1 year 48.49 78.23 

Year 2 to year 5 514.26 376.50 

Year 6 to year 10 1,369.69 1,276.01 

Year 11 to year 15 1,445.94 1,464.62 

Over 15 years 6,691.57 6,849.23 
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	 8.17	 Provision (Continued)

		  8.17.2	 Indemnity Provision

Unit: Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 2020 2019

Indemnity Provision  

     Beginning balance 7.81 3.80 

     Increase (decrease) (0.07) 4.01 

     Ending balance 7.74 7.81 

		  8.17.3	 Provision for Decommissioning Costs

			   As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank has provision for decommissioning costs  

amounting to Baht 6.81 million arising from the decommission of the site extension according 

to the obligation under the building lease agreement which will be ended on October 24, 2021.

	 8.18	 Other Liabilities

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

2020 2019 2020 2019

Other creditors 1,046.79 1,818.94 1,046.79 1,818.94 

Deposits and guarantees 1,497.37 1,375.34 1,497.37 1,375.34 

Accrued expenses 820.24 1,006.13 818.57 1,004.43 

Withholding taxes 26.10 29.88 25.93 29.65 

Others 878.07 209.26 953.65 363.46 

Total 4,268.57 4,439.55 4,342.31 4,591.82 

	 8.19	 Capital

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 2020 2019

Initial capital 20.00 20.00 

Capital received from budget 1,990.00 1,990.00 

Additional capital received from the Ministry of Finance 18,310.33 18,310.33 

Total 20,320.33 20,320.33 
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	 8.20	 Legal Reserve

		  As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank had legal reserve amounting to Baht 28,797.81 million and 

Baht 26,127.46 million, respectively according to Government Housing Bank Act, B.E. 2496 (1953) Section 

8 which The Bank is required to set aside at least 20 percent of each year’s net profits as legal reserve. 

	 8.21	 Government Housing Bank Pension Fund

		  The Bank included the assets, funds, income and expenses of the Government Housing Bank Pension 

Fund in the bank’s financial statements. In 2020 and 2019, the Fund had outstanding balances of  

Baht 7.87 million and Baht 7.65 million, respectively, and obligations to pay pensions to personal of  

Baht 5.01 million and Baht 4.58 million, respectively.

	 8.22	 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

		  8.22.1	 Contingent liabilities

			   The Bank bears 48 lawsuits as the defendant and co-defendant: 23 pending trials, 13 pending appeals, 

and 12 pending petitions, which the total amount in dispute is Baht 202.36 million. 

		  8.22.2	 Commitments

			   8.22.2.1 The Bank had obligations from issuing the guarantees public utilities to customers as at 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounting to Baht 13.52 million.

			   8.22.2.2 The Bank agreed to be a surety to the holder of secured debentures for the principal 

and interest repayment of its subsidiary’s secured debentures. The subsidiaries are subjected 

to monthly pay fees to the Bank at the rate of 0.5 percent per annum of the total amount of 

secured debentures outstanding principal. The guarantee will be terminated when the repayment 

for securitization plan is done.

			   According to the guarantee agreement, the Bank became a surety for principal and interest repayment of 

secured debentures issued under the securitization plan from SPV to its holders with the limit 

of 90 percent or 100 percent of the outstanding balance per unit.

			   8.22.2.3 The Bank entered into the financial support agreement and guaranteed for claims 

quality of loans transferred to its subsidiaries. The Bank agreed to grant the subsidiaries a loan 

equaling to an inadequate amount of cash flow for interest and principal including such fees 

and/or obligations repayment with the interest rate based on the rate of Bank of Thailand’s 

regulations on the withdrawal date plus 0.5 percent per annum. The subsidiaries must comply 

with the conditions in the agreement and the agreement termination will be effective after the 

repayment for principal and/or interest of securitization plan is done.
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	 8.23	 Related Party Transactions Items

		  Significant outstanding balances with related parties (apart from those already disclosed) are as follows:

		  As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, loans to the Bank’s executives (First Vice President and above) are 

Baht 153.20 million and Baht 155.83 million, respectively.

		  The loans outstanding as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 to close family of the Bank’s executives  

mentioned above are Baht 22.07 million and Baht 23.17 million, respectively.

		  As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank has other benefits paid to directors and authorized  

managements which are compensation of Baht 10.44 million and Baht 10.58 million, respectively.

		  The Bank has either direct or indirect control and significant influence over financial and operations 

policy decisions of related parties. Related parties are also the entities under the common control and 

influence of those mentioned. In consideration of the relationship between related parties, the Bank 

considers the substance of the relationship over the legal form. The relationship between the Bank and 

related parties are as follows:

		  Related entities	 Relationship

		  SPV-SMC (7) Company Limited	 The Bank’s managements are entity’s directors.

		  SPV-SMC (8) Company Limited	 The Bank’s managements are entity’s directors.

		  SPV-SMC (9) Company Limited	 The Bank’s managements are entity’s directors.

		  In this period, the Bank has significant related party transactions in accordance with the ordinary course 

of business of commercial terms and conditions as agreed between the Bank and those related parties. 

The outstanding balance between the Bank, subsidiaries, and related parties as at December 31, 2020 

and 2019 are as follows:
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	 8.23	 Related Party Transactions Items (Continued)

Unit : Million Baht

 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Statement of financial position   

Assets   

Investments, net 447.35 1,700.50 

Loans to customers and accrued interest receivables, net 4,663.27 9,212.42 

Investments in subsidiaries and associates 0.04 0.04 

Other assets 170.21 313.75 

Liabilities   

Debt issued and borrowings 5,063.16 10,880.97 

Accrued interest payables 141.59 189.65 

Other liabilities 76.08 156.05 

Equity   

Capital 0.08 0.08 

Unappropriated retained earnings 91.22 120.78 

Non-controlling interests (91.26) (120.82)

Unit : Million Baht

 For the year ended

 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Interest income, net (0.91) (1.56) 

Fees and services income, net 63.22 83.55 

Other operating income 84.65 29.37 

Other operating expenses 146.96 111.35 

	 8.24	 Commitment for Long - Term Lease Agreements

		  The Bank had commitments to pay rent for lease agreements, with the due portion as from the date of 

the statement of financial position as follows:

		  Unit : Million Baht

31 ธัันวาคม 2563 Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2020

Within 1 year 1 to 5 years More than 5 years Total

Land and/or premises lease agreements 7.08 - - 7.08 

Telecom equipment lease agreements 10.33 4.11 - 14.44 

Computer and equipment lease agreements 38.03 43.33 - 81.36 

Total 55.44 47.44 - 102.88 
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	 8.24	 Commitment for Long - Term Lease Agreements (Continued)

		  Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2019

Within 1 year 1 to 5 years More than 5 years Total

Land and/or premises lease agreements 99.70 69.86 0.05 169.61 

Vehicle lease agreements 62.96 78.89 - 141.85 

Telecom equipment lease agreements 16.24 14.42 - 30.66 

Computer and equipment lease agreements 32.96 13.71 - 46.67 

Total 211.86 176.88 0.05 388.79 

	 8.25	 Interest Income

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

2020 2019 2020 2019

Interbank and money market items 465.83 938.93 466.00 938.94 

Investments 535.31 733.39 564.13 792.80 

Loans 44,022.76 49,223.30 44,023.52 49,223.29 

Total interest income 45,023.90 50,895.62 45,053.65 50,955.03 

	 8.26	 Interest Expenses

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

2020 2019 2020 2019

Deposits 12,632.11 14,701.77 12,632.11 14,701.77 

Interbank and money market items 1.53 3.57 1.53 3.57 

Remittance to Fund for Development

     of Specialised Financial Institutions

1,431.18 2,532.05 1,431.18 2,532.05 

Borrowings 4,383.21 4,585.94 4,452.97 4,750.49 

Borrowing fees 44.49 55.91 44.49 55.91 

Others 15.86 1.72 15.86 1.72 

Total interest expenses 18,508.38 21,880.96 18,578.14 22,045.51 



A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0

Government Housing Bank266

	 8.27	 Fees and Services Income, Net

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

2020 2019 2020 2019

Fees and services income    

Acceptance, aval, and guarantees 0.28 0.05 63.50 83.60 

Miscellaneous income - Khum Ni Run fees 824.39 848.60 824.39 848.60 

Commission income - premium insurance 261.65 213.00 261.65 213.00 

Loans to customers 43.39 131.06 43.39 131.06 

Others 23.97 29.06 23.97 29.06 

Total fees and services income 1,153.68 1,221.77 1,216.90 1,305.32 

(Less) Fees and service expenses  (28.51) (32.34) (28.51) (32.34)

Fees and  service income, net 1,125.17 1,189.43 1,188.39 1,272.98 

	 8.28	 Bad Debt and Doubtful Accounts

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 2020 2019

Bad debt and doubtful accounts

Normal operation 9,691.85 8,157.20 

Public service account operation 1,079.21 872.76 

Total 10,771.06 9,029.96 

	 8.29	 Net Profit Appropriation

		  In 2020 and 2019, the State Enterprise Performance Appraisal Committee has approved the assessment 

of the Bank’s performance for the years 2019 and 2018 at the following net profit appropriation for the 

year 2019 and 2018:

Unit : Million Baht

 2020 2019

Legal reserve 2,670.35 2,522.12 

Remittance to The Ministry of Finance 5,922.00 5,645.80 

Director bonuses 2.26 2.34 

Employee bonuses 1,249.50 1,168.04 

Total appropriation 9,844.11 9,338.30 

Balance of retained earnings 3,507.62 3,272.31 

Total net profit for the years 2019 and 2018 13,351.73 12,610.61



A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0

Government Housing Bank 267

	 8.29	 Net Profit Appropriation (Continued)

		  Net profit for the year 2019

		  On March 23, 2020, the No. 4/B.E.2563 (2020) Board of Directors of the Bank resolution regarding the net 

profit appropriation for the year 2019 was approved to submit Baht 5,922.00 million as public revenue. 

The Bank submitted the 1st lot for the year 2019 totaling to Baht 2,414.40 million on October 21, 2019 

with the remaining balance of Baht 3,507.60 million. On April 10, 2020, the Bank submitted the remaining 

balance in compliance with the State Enterprise Policy Office; the Ministry of Finance.

		  In 2020, the Bank submitted the 1st lot of public revenue which is set aside at 40 percent of net profit 

for the six-month period ended June 30, 2020 amounting to Baht 1,933.00 million according to the No. 

16/B.E.2563 (2020)  Board of Directors of the Bank resolution (special meeting) on September 29, 2020.

		  In accordance with the incentive systems regarding the monetary compensation under the evaluation 

of system performance state enterprises, remaining profit after the appropriation to bonuses and public 

revenue is recognised in retained earnings. 

		  Net profit for the year 2018

		  On March 20, 2019, the No. 4/B.E.2562 (2019) Board of Directors of the Bank resolution regarding the net 

profit appropriation for the year 2018 was approved to submit Baht 5,645.35 million as public revenue. 

The Bank submitted the 1st lot for the year 2018 totaling to Baht 2,575.74 million on October 16, 2018 

with the remaining balance of Baht 3,069.61million. However, on April 3, 2019, the Bank submitted the 

remaining balance of Baht 3,070.06 million in compliance with the State Enterprise Policy Office; the 

Ministry of Finance.

		  On July 22, 2019, according to the memorandum No. Gor Kor 0819.1/4039 of State Enterprise Development 

Division 3, State Enterprise Policy Office approved to allocate the Bank’s retained earnings amounting to 

Baht 3.57 million to pay as an additional employee bonus. For paying bonus, the Bank’s regulation and 

related cabinet resolutions must be complied.

		  In 2019, the Bank submitted 40 percent of the net profit for the six-month period ended June 30, 2019 as 

the 2nd lot to the Ministry of Finance, totaling to Baht 2,414.40 million in accordance with the No.11/B.E. 

2562 (2019) The Board of Directors resolution on August 22, 2019.
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	 8.30	 Public Service Account

		  8.30.1	 Public Service Account details

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

Assets and liabilities 2020 2019

Assets

Loans to customers from public service account and 

     accrued interest receivables, net 138,451.34 95,065.06 

Receivables for governmental compensation under

     public service account 17.27 22.02 

Total assets 138,468.61 95,087.08

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

Revenue and Expenses 2020 2019

Income from public service account 3,828.56 2,799.29 

(Less) Expenses from public service account  (3,167.74) (2,379.71)

  Bad debt and doubtful accounts from public service 

  account  (1,079.21)  (872.76)

Net loss  (418.39) (453.18)

		  8.30.2	 Loans to customers from Public Service Account and accrued interest receivables, net

Unit: Million Baht

Projects Projects Details Period December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

The residential home loan 

for the low-to-middle 

income citizens

To support the low-to-middle 

 income citizens to be able to access  

to the residential home loan.

From October 19, 

2015 onwards.

7,428.79        9,570.79

Bann Pracha Rath For citizens, especially the low- 

income citizens, including the 

civil service officers, soldier, police  

officers, educational personnel and 

freelances, who have no property 

rights for the purpose of residence 

owning, fixing and/or renovation.

From March 23, 

2016 onwards.

8,609.20         9,209.04



A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0

Government Housing Bank 269

	 8.30	 Public Service Account (Continued)

		  8.30.2	 Loans to customers from Public Service Account and accrued interest receivables, net (Continued) 

Unit: Million Baht

Projects Projects Details Period December 31, 2020December 31, 2019

Bann Thanaruk Pracha 

Rath

For government officials and citizens, 

who have never owned the property 

right, to own residence on the state 

property, including the fixing and 

renovation of the home built on the 

state property.

From April 19, 2016 

onwards.

18.49 13.06

State Welfare

(Only State Welfare 

cardholders not more 

than Baht 1 million)

To support the qualified cardholders 

and low-income citizens (income that 

is not more than Baht 25,000 per 

month) for owning residential home.

The applicat ion 

period is January 

15, 2018 afterwards 

unt i l  December 

28, 2018 or fully 

approaching the 

credit limit of the 

project.

85.65 88.29

State Welfare

(Income less than Baht 

25,000 per month or 

State Welfare cardholders 

not more than Baht 2 

million)

To support the qualified cardholders 

and low-income citizens (income that 

is not more than Baht 25,000 per 

month) for owning residential home.

The applicat ion 

period is January 

15, 2018 afterwards 

unt i l  December 

28, 2018 or fully 

approaching the 

credit limit of the 

project.

26,366.66 27,607.82

Residential home loan 

for state welfare

(State Personnel)

To support state personnel for owning 

residential home.

The applicat ion 

period is January 

15, 2018 afterwards 

unt i l  December 

28, 2018 or fully 

approaching the 

credit limit of the 

project.

21,937.96 23,233.01
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	 8.30	 Public Service Account (Continued)

		  8.30.2	 Loans to customers from Public Service Account and accrued interest receivables, net (Continued) 

Unit: Million Baht

Projects Projects Details Period December 31, 2020December 31, 2019

State Welfare

(Southern provinces 

not more than Baht 1 

million)

To support the qualified cardholders 

and low-income citizens (income 

that is not more than Baht 25,000 

per month) and state personnel 

for owning residential home where  

domicile is located and willing to be in 

southern provinces: Yala, Narathiwat 

and Pattani.

The applicat ion 

period is January 

15, 2018 afterwards 

unt i l  December 

28, 2018 or fully 

approaching the 

credit limit of the 

project.

9.90 11.25

State Welfare

(Southern provinces 

not more than Baht 2 

million)

To support the qualified cardholders 

and low-income citizens (income 

that is not more than Baht 25,000 

per month) and state personnel 

for owning residential home where  

domicile is located and willing to be in 

southern provinces:  Yala, Narathiwat 

and Pattani.

The applicat ion 

period is January 

15, 2018 afterwards 

unt i l  December 

28, 2018 or fully 

approaching the 

credit limit of the 

project.

415.14 438.56

Million home Type 1

(Income not more than 

Baht 25,000 per month)

To support the people to have their 

own residents, especially those with 

low income, working people or peo-

ple starting to build a family, including 

the elderly group. The Bank supports 

housing loans under lenient condition 

in the amount of not more than Baht 

1.2 million (Income that is not more 

than Baht 25,000 per month).

The applicat ion 

period is January 

2, 2019 afterwards 

unt i l  December 

30, 2021 or fully 

approaching the 

credit limit of the 

project.

21,910.38 10,324.60
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	 8.30	 Public Service Account (Continued)

		  8.30.2	 Loans to customers from Public Service Account and accrued interest receivables, net (Continued) 

Unit: Million Baht

Projects Projects Details Period December 31, 2020December 31, 2019

Million home Type 2

(Income more than 

Baht 25,000 per month)

To support the people to have their 

own residents, especially those with 

low income, working people or people  

starting to build a family, including 

the elderly group. The Bank supports 

housing loans under lenient condition 

in the amount of not more than Baht 

1.2 million (Income that is more than 

Baht 25,000 per month).

The applicat ion 

period is January 

2, 2019 afterwards 

unt i l  December 

30, 2021 or fully 

approaching the 

credit limit of the 

project.

4,310.32 2,064.25

Housing loan measures 

of the Government 

Housing Bank

To support people who have needs of 

owning residents. The bank supports 

housing loans that are not more than 

3 million.

The applicat ion 

period is October 

22, 2019 afterwards 

unt i l  December 

24, 2020 or fully 

approaching the 

credit limit of the 

project.

47,358.85 12,504.39

Total   138,451.34 95,065.06
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	 8.30	 Public Service Account (Continued)

		  8.30.3	 Asset classification and allowance for Public Service Account

		  Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2020

Number 
(person)

Outstanding 
balance

Guaranteed 
value

% Used for 
Calculation

The Allowance 
For Doubtful 

Accounts

Allowance 
for Doubtful 

Accounts

1. Bank of Thailand minimun allowance

- Normal 117,428 129,270.62 159,726.93 1 125.09 

- Special mention 8,341 8,446.11 10,261.89 2 105.87 

- Substandard 970 962.82 1,111.01 100 305.61 

- Doubtful 701 731.48 876.93 100 196.65 

- Doubtful of loss 1,764 2,060.79 2,353.91 100 553.41 

   Total 1,286.63 

2. Excess allowance 2,515.65 

   Total 129,204 141,471.82 174,330.67 3,802.28 

Unit: Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2019

Number 
(person)

Outstanding 
balance

Guaranteed 
value

% Used for 
Calculation

The Allowance 
For Doubtful 

Accounts

Allowance 
for Doubtful 

Accounts

1. Bank of Thailand minimun allowance

- Normal 84,922 89,114.94 110,745.89 1 80.84 

- Special mention 5,190 4,988.67 6,103.48 2 67.00 

- Substandard 794 826.90 957.34 100 252.37 

- Doubtful 987 1,118.01 1,314.55 100 310.20 

- Doubtful of loss 1,284 1,487.52 1,723.90 100 391.20 

   Total 1,101.61 

2. Excess allowance 1,621.47 

   Total 93,177 97,536.04 120,845.16 2,723.08 
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	 8.30	 Public Service Account (Continued)
		  8.30.3	 Asset classification and allowance for Public Service Account (Continued) 
		  As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, the allowance for doubtful accounts were Baht 3,802.28 million 

and Baht 2,723.08 million, respectively which are the minimum allowance in accordance with the BOT’s 
regulations and the Bank also sets up additional provision amounting to Baht 2,515.65 million and  
Baht 1,621.47 million, respectively. To alleviate an adverse effect to occur in the future, the Bank also 
considers the qualitative factors. The Bank sets up additional provision by reflecting the qualitative  
factor of retail loans. The Bank reviews the credit quality of loans, the additional allowance for doubtful 
accounts might be set up annually. 

		  Loans and accrued interest receivables that are classified as substandard, doubtful, and doubtful of 
loss according to the BOT’s regulations in which the Bank ceased to recognise income because they 
are non-performing loans. As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, these non-performing loans totaling Baht 
3,755.09 million and Baht 3,432.43 million which are 2.65 percent and 3.52 percent, respectively.

		  8.30.4  Receivables for Governmental Compensation under Public Service Account

Unit : Million Baht
Consolidated and the Bank

2020 2019

Million home project - 21.61 

Housing loan measures of the Government Housing Bank 17.27 0.41 
Total 17.27 22.02 

		  8.30.5  Income from Public Service Account

Unit : Million Baht
Consolidated and the Bank

2020 2019

Income from loans to customers from public service account

- Interest income from loans to customers from Public  
     Service Account 3,483.95 2,683.32 

- Fees and services income from loans to customers from
     Public Service Account, net 131.48 93.95 
Compensation income from government from public service account

- Interest compensation income from government from 
     Public Service Account 213.13 22.02 

Total 3,828.56 2,799.29 

		  8.30.6	 Expenses from Public Service Account

Unit : Million Baht
Consolidated and the Bank

2020 2019

Interest expenses from Public Service Account 2,347.40 1,727.57 

Operating expenses from Public Service Account 820.34 652.14 
Total 3,167.74 2,379.71

	 8.31	 Approval of the Financial Statements

		  The financial statements have been approved for issue by the president on April 28, 2021.
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The Bank’s History and General Information

Bank information
Name	 :	 Government Housing Bank

Type of business	 :	 Specialized Financial Institution under the  Ministry of Finance

Tax ID number	 :	 0994000164858

Head office address	 :	 63 Rama 9 Huaykwang Bangkok 10310 

Telephone number	 :	 0-2645-9000

Fax number	 :	 0-2645-9001

Website	 :	 http://www.ghbank.co.th

Nature of Business
Government Housing Bank is a state owned and specialized financial institution under the supervision of 

Ministry of Finance established under the Government Housing Bank Act B.E. 2496 to provide credit and deposit 
services. The Bank operates its business in accordance with Royal Decrees, Ministerial Regulations and other related 
notifications issued by the Bank of Thailand, Ministry of Finance and related agencies.

History and Major improvements
• History
On January 9, 1953, H.M King Bhumibol Adulyadej the Great has graciously commanded to enact the Government  

Housing Bank Act B.E. 2496 an published in the Royal Gazette on January 20, 1953 to establish the Government 
Housing Bank (GHB) as a Specialized Financial Institution under the Ministry of Finance to provide financial assistance 
for people to have a place to live according to their status. The Bank received an initial capital of 20 million baht 
from the Ministry of Finance. General Por. Piboonsongkram, the Prime Minister presided over the opening ceremony 
of the Government Housing Bank on September 24, 1953, which was also the start of the Bank’s operations. The Bank 
used the “Vimanmek” logo that represented a home that made the family happy, warm, peaceful, like Phitpiman.

In the beginning phase, GH Bank not only acted as a residential mortgage lender but also developed housing 
projects and sold houses via hire purchase contracts. The Bank’s housing projects were developed as Complete 
Housing Communities with environmentally friendly architecture and landscapes which eventually became a  
prototype for other housing projects. During the first two decades, GH Bank’s efforts were limited because of funding.  
The Bank’s roles mostly was to build homes for hire purchase, including offering loans for people to build their 
home. As a result, more than 7,000 families had their own home.

On December 13, 1972, Revolution Group announcement No. 316 established the National Housing  
Authority (NHA) as the country’s housing project developer. All GH Bank assets, liabilities, and rights associated with 
the housing business under the Government Housing Bank Act B.E. 2496 (1953) Section 27(1) and Section (3) were 
transferred to the National Housing Authority (NHA) in 1973. Revolution Group announcement No. 317 amended 
the Government Housing Bank Act to accommodate the NHA’s formation. “GH Bank was established to sponsor 
investment in buildings and / or land”. 
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Major Improvements
1973 - 1974
In 1973, the Bank operated its business by providing housing loans, both short-term loans for housing project 

developers (Housing Project Development Loan or Pre-construction Financing) and long-term loans for the general 
public for (Home Mortgage Loan or Post-construction Financing). In 1974, the Bank launched its first “Deposit Taking” 
business, comprising 3 types of deposits, namely 1) Demand deposits 2) Savings deposits 3) 3, 6, 12 month fixed 
deposits. 

1979 - 1981 
After the economic crisis, the Bank reorganized its operations and banking strategy by dividing its loan section 

into general loans and housing project loans. At the same time, the lending process was streamlined and personnel  
training was developed. Super Savings Accounts were initiated and became well-known as the Bank’s major  
funding source for many years. Moreover, the Bank established a credit center, which was subsequently upgraded 
to the Project Credit Department, to solve the problem of outstanding debts in housing projects by analyzing and 
considering granting loans to project developers.

1986
On August 18, 1986, The Bank moved its head office from Ratchadamnoen Nai Road to 63 Rama 9 Road, Huai 

Khwang, Bangkok.  The old office at Ratchadamnoen Nai Road became the First GH Bank’s branch. The Bank began 
to open more branches and operated banking counters at department stores. Besides, One Stop Services at district 
offices nationwide and several loan service units were opened to serve customers.

1993 - 1996
On the occasion of the Bank’s 40th anniversary in 1993, the Bank changed its logo from “Vimanmek” to an 

image of “Two hands embracing a house”. At the same time, the Bank was approved by the Cabinet’s to be a “Good 
state enterprise”. The Bank began publishing its journal and created a website to present housing information to the 
general public. In 1996, the Bank was honored by the United Nations Centre for Human Settlements as a “Financial 
Institution with Outstanding  Operations”. The Bank proudly received this international recognition.

1997 - 1999
During Thailand’s 1997-1999 servere economic crisis, the Bank played an important role in reviving the hous-

ing and real-estate sectors following government policy such as 14 debt restructuring schemes to recover NPLs, 
providing 30 - year fixed low interest-rate loans in cooperation with the Government Savings Bank, establishing a 
secondary mortgage market office, the K-ha Ruam Jai Project and creating website specifically for home buyers at 
www.ghbhomecenter.com.
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2005 - 2007
The Bank amended the Government Housing Bank Act (No. 3) B.E. 2549 and announced in the Royal Gazette 

on January 17, 2006, resulting in significant changes in the Bank’s business operations which allowed the Bank to 
expand its scope of  financial services and allowed customers to purchase equipment or facilities for housing such 
as furniture, kitchenware, sanitary ware, electrical appliances and others items as specified by the Bank’s Board of 
Directors. In 2007, the Bank launched a new corporate identity symbols to support its vision of a “Modern Bank for 
Comprehensive Housing” and used the English name “G H Bank”. The Bank also adopted modern technology in 
its operations by launching its new Core Banking system. The management structure was restructured into a Hub & 
Spokes system. Credit analysis and approval centers were centralized at the Credit Processing Center (CPC) so that 
credit considerations were standardized across the Bank and able to serve customer more efficiently and quickly.

During 2005 - 2007, the Bank received the “Outstanding State Enterprise” award for three consecutive years. 
In 2005, it was the first and only state enterprise that won the Best State Enterprise award in all 3 categories in the 
same year, including the Outstanding Performance award, Best Board of Directors award and Outstanding Organization 
Management award. In addition, the Bank also received the Best Practice Certificate, Best Marketing Campaign award 
and the Boss of The Year 2007 award (given to Mr. Khan Prachuapmoh, President of Government Housing Bank).

2016 - 2018
The Bank announced a new mission, “Enabling Thai People to Have Their Own Home” to achieve its goals 

under the vision “The Best Housing Solution Bank” by applying Digital Technology to all parts of the business including 
 focusing on raising service level according to Transformation to Digital Services Plan to meet customers’ needs and 
expectations in the 4.0 era such as 1) Mobile application: GHB ALL 2) Cashless Loan Payment Machine: QR Non Cash 
Payment 3) LRM Loan Repayment Machine etc.

During 2016 - 2018, the Bank received awards from various organizations such as
1.	 Green Office award : Very good level in 2016
2.	 Integrity and Transparency Assessment (ITA Award) with the highest score for two consecutive years 

	 (score of 97.97 in 2017 and 99.55 in 2018).
3.	 State Organization Enterprises (SOE Award) 
	 In 2017 :	 -	 Outstanding Innovation Award, Honorable mention
	 In 2018 : 	 -	 Outstanding Organization Management Award 
		  -	 Outstanding Development Cooperation Award on upgrading organizational management  

			   or mentoring projects
		  -	 Development Cooperation Award on strategic cooperation, Honor category
4.	 Thailand Quality Class  Award (TQC) in 2017

2019
The Bank upgraded its services by changing its core work system, “GHB System” to accommodate future business  

operations and increase the Bank’s management efficiency and competitiveness. In addition, the Government  
Housing Bank Act (No. 4) B.E. 2562 was amended and announced it in the Royal Gazette on April 17, 2019. As a result,  
the Bank was able to issue Reverse Mortgage loans and GHB savings lottery. In 2019, the Bank issued 2 savings lottery 
tickets, including, Premium Vimankmek (1 million baht/ unit), and Prawpiman (10 million baht/ unit). The Cabinet 
also approved income tax exemption for savings and savings lottery.

The Bank received awards from many organizations including,
1.	 State Organization Enterprises (SOE Award) : 3 awards
	 -	 Outstanding State Enterprise 2019
	 -	 Outstanding Leader 2019, awarded to Mr. Chatchai Sirilai, the Bank’s President
	 -	 Outstanding Development Cooperation Award on enhancement of organizational management, 

		  Honorable mention
2.	 Thailand Quality Award (TQA) in 2019 
3.	 Integrity and Transparency Assessment 2019 (ITA Award) with the highest score for three consecutive years  

	 (2017-2019)
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2020
The Bank is committed to upholding its mission of “Enabling Thai People to Have Their Own Home” and 

maintaining a leading position in a housing loan market along with enhancing its customer services to accommodate 
customer behaviors in the New Normal era and to support its transition to a  Digital Bank in the future by establishing 
important plans/projects that support being a Digital Bank such as

1.	 Develop additional functions for GHB ALL, a mobile application with 6 new services: 1) Buying GHB savings 
lottery 2) Requesting a deposit account statement 3) Booking a service queue in advance 4) Loan payment receipt 
in electronic form 5) NPA payment and 6) Editing personal information.

2.	 Tollway Loan Plus project: Cooperation with the Bank’s HR department or the agency that has loan welfare 
with the Bank by providing a service to submit loan application documents via electronic system and interviewing 
applicants for consideration via  a phone so that they come to the Bank only once for signing a contract.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Bank has provided measures pursuant to the government policy to 
help customers affected by the COVID-19 including suspension of both principal and interest payment, suspension 
of principal payment or reduction of interest rates such as measures to help customers affected by the COVID-19 
pandemic, and “GHB Helps Thai People to Build a Nation”

The Bank has operated its business in accordance with the government’s policy. Following the announcement  
of the Act for the Dissolution of the Secondary Mortgage Corporation B.E. 2563, SMC assests and liabilities were 
transfered to GH Bank. The Key rationale for the merger is to enhance efficiency which will benefit customers, public, 
real estate sector and overall economy of the country.

The Bank received awards from many organizations including,
1.	 State Organization Enterprises (SOE Award) : 3 awards
	 -	 Outstanding Disclosure and Transparency Award
	 -	 Outstanding Development Cooperation Award on enhancement of organizational management
		  (mentoring project) 
	 -	 Digital Transformation Initiative Award, Honorable mention
2.	 Integrity and Transparency Assessment (ITA Award) with the highest score for four consecutive years 

	 (score of 99.60).
3.	 Thailand Top Company Awards 2020: 2 awards
	 -	 Best Digital Banker of the Year Award for the best digital financial services organization leader.
	 -	 CSR of The Year Award for the best organizations that focus on social responsibility.
4.	 Global Performance Excellence Award 2020 (GPEA): Best in Class. It is a prestigious award for an organization  

	 in the Asia Pacific region with excellence in business practice which demonstrates the progress in driving the  
	 organization towards its vision for success, as well as consistently maintaining a good performance. It is  
	 an award that organizations in Thailand in 18 years to receive the award.
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Management Team

No. Name - Surname Position Telephone e-mail

1 Mr. Chatchai Sirilai President 0-2202-1780 chatchai.s@ghb.co.th

2 Mr. Kamonpop Veerapala Senior Executive Vice President,

Finance and Accounting Business Unit

0-2202-1965 kamonpop@ghb.co.th

3 Mr. Witthaya Saenphakdee Senior Executive Vice President, Marketing Business Unit 0-2202-2526 witthaya@ghb.co.th

4 Ms. Chatravee  Chirakunmethaphat Senior Executive Vice President, Branch Business Unit 0-2202-1092 chatravee@ghb.co.th

5 Ms. Somjit Rotthong Senior Executive Vice President, Information Technoligy Unit 0-2202-1656 somjit@ghb.co.th

6 Ms. Orada Chareonsilp Bank Inspector 0-2202-2053 orada@ghb.co.th

7 Mr. Vichai Viratkapan Bank Inspector 0-2202-1898 vichai.v@ghb.co.th

8 Mr. Pongsak Kumnuansiri Executive Vice President, Credit  Analysis Gruop and 

Acting Senior Executive Vice President, Credit Business Unit 

0-2202-1179 pongsak.k@ghb.co.th

9 Ms. Thidaporn Mekingthong Executive Vice President, Support Group and

Acting Senior Executive Vice President, Operation Unit

0-2202-2448

0-2202-2255

thidaporn@ghb.co.th

10 Mr. Saksit Jittanoon Executive Vice President, Execution Group and

Acting Senior Executive Vice President, Debt Restructuring Unit 

0-2202-6381 saksit@ghb.co.th

11 Mr. Tuantong Treenuparb Executive Vice President, Digital Development Group 0-2202-1778 tuantong@ghb.co.th

12 Mr. Songdet Daramas Executive Vice President, Retail Customers Operating Group 0-2202-1147 songdet@ghb.co.th

13 Mr. Popkorn Charoenlarp Executive Vice President, Risk Management Group 0-2202-1619 popkorn@ghb.co.th

14 Mr. Apirat Aroonvilairat Executive Vice President, Operating Techonology Group and 

Acting Senior Vice President, IT Operating Department  

0-2202-1514 apirat@ghb.co.th

15 Mr. Chaiyaporn Chulamanee Executive Vice President, Legal Group 0-2202-2024 chaiyaporn@ghb.co.th

16 Mr. Danai  Sangsrichantara Executive Vice President, Regional Branch Group 3  0-2202-1618 danai@ghb.co.th

17 Mr. Narongpol Prapanirin Executive Vice President, Strategic Planning Group 0-2202-1967 narongpol@ghb.co.th

18 Mr. Woranat Sukhotsmith Executive Vice President,  Audit Business Group 0-2202-2061 woranat@ghb.co.th

19 Ms. Porta Yimtraiporn Executive Vice President, Metropolitan Brance Group 0-2202-1446 porta@ghb.co.th

20 Ms. Paninee Manosan Executive Vice President, Credit and Social Policy Group 0-2202-2343 paninee@ghb.co.th

21 Ms. Karuna  Muantoei Executive Vice President, Human Resources Management Group 0-2202-1911 karuna@ghb.co.th

22 Ms. Sudjittra Kumdee Executive Vice President, Communications and

Corporate Image Group and Acting Senior Vice President,

Corporate Communications Department

0-2202-2181-2 sudjittra.k@ghb.co.th

23 Ms. Oranuch Phongprayoon Executive Vice President, Debt  Management Group 0-2202-1558 oranuch.p@ghb.co.th

24 Mr. Chana Jirarustanarangsee Bank Inspector and Acting Executive Vice President,

Regional Branch Group 2

0-2202-1535 chana@ghb.co.th

25 Ms. Kanjanika Srirattanatri Senior Vice President, Deposit Products Development

Department and Acting Executive Vice President

Marketing and Development Group 2

0-2202-1123 kanjanika@ghb.co.th

26 Ms. Ranee Pachsong Senior Vice President, Accounting Department and

Acting Executive Vice President, Finance and Accounting Group

0-2202-1713 ranee@ghb.co.th



A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0

Government Housing Bank280

No. Name - Surname Position Phone number e-mail

27 Ms. Saowakon Chusri Senior Vice President, North Brance (Uptown) Department  

and Acting Executive Vice President, Regional Branch Group 1

0-5330-4948 saowakon@ghb.co.th

28 Mr. Sornpong Durongkavarojana Senior Vice President, Digital Services Banking and

Acting Executive Vice President, Marketing and Development 

Group 1

02-202-1747 sonpong@ghb.co.th

29 Ms. Khwanjai Sakdamin Senior Vice President, Office of the President 0-2202-1313 khwanjai@ghb.co.th

30 Mr. Jedsada Meesuwan Senior Vice President, IT Audit Department 0-2202-1798 jedsada@ghb.co.th

31 Ms. Rawaeo Eksuwan Assistant Senior Vice President, Head Office Internal Audit 

Department and Acting Senior Vice President, Head Office 

Internal Audit Department 

0-202-2165 rawaeo.e@ghb.co.th

32 Ms. Angkana Chantarasiri Senior Vice President, Branch Audit Department 0-2202-1108 angkana.c@ghb.co.th

33 Ms. Hathaitip Luangthanaponkul Senior Vice President, Strategic Planning Department 0-2202-1301 hathaitip.l@ghb.co.th          

34 Ms. Suwatana Timmas Senior Vice President, Corporate Assessment Department 0-2202-1898

0-2202-2130

suwatana@ghb.co.th

35 Mr. Nitichai Soongtrong Senior Vice President,

Research and Information Services Department

02-202-2110 nitichai@ghb.co.th

36 Mr. Nisit Aunvijit Senior Vice President, Human Resources Department 0-2202-2146 nisit@ghb.co.th

37 Ms. Saipin Suntiphun Senior Vice President, Learning and Development Department 0-2202-1051 saipin@ghb.co.th

38 Ms. Suparat Sodsong Senior Vice President,

Corporate Social Responsibility Department

0-2202-2524 suparat@ghb.co.th

39 Mr. Kninruch Dabbaransi Senior Vice President, Risk Management Department 0-2202-2038 kninruch@ghb.co.th

40 Mr. Chitpol Sriteeraviroj Senior Vice President, Credit Review Department 0-2202-1262 chitpol@ghb.co.th

41 Ms. Narumon Rungrueng Assistant Senior Vice President, Metropolitan Support

Department and Acting Senior Vice President,

Metropolitan Support  Department

02-202-2667 narumon.r@ghb.co.th

42 Mr. Wanchai Pongboonchoo Senior Vice President,

Bangkok Metropolitan Branch Department 1

0-2202-2212 wanchai.p@ghb.co.th

43  Ms. Chanakarn Chitboriboon Assistant Senior Vice President, Bangkok  Metropolitan Branch  

Department 2 and Acting Senior Vice President, Bangkok  

Metropolitan Branch Department 2

0-2202-2039 chanakarn.c@ghb.co.th

44 Mr. Pongsakorn Tulanont Senior Vice President,

North Branch (Downtown) Department 

0-55301-716 

ext 111 

pongsakorn@ghb.co.th 

45 Mr. Sanya Sriratana Senior Vice President,

Northeastern Branch (Uptown) Department 

0-2645-9000 

ext 6740

sanya.r@ghb.co.th

46 Mr. Isara Naowasiri Senior Vice President,

Northeastern Branch (Downtown) Department   

0-2202-1627 isara.n@ghb.co.th

47 Mr. Manop Chanchaum Senior Vice President, Eastern Branch Department 0-3806-9286 manop@ghb.co.th

48 Ms. Supornpat Sangaram Senior Vice President,

Central and South Branch (Uptown) Department 

0-3442-9353-60 supornpat.s@ghb.co.th

49 Ms. Tanitta Sangthaworn Senior Vice President, 

Western and South Branch (Downtown) Department 

0-7421-1237-42 tanitta@ghb.co.th

50 Mr. Sompong Narksuetrong Senior Vice President, Digital Technology Department 02-202-1415 sompong.n@ghb.co.th 

51 Ms. Luckana Supasirisun Senior Vice President, IT Development Department 0-2202-1659 luckana@ghb.co.th

52 Mr. Apirat Wongmaneeroj Senior Vice President, Digital Development Department 0-2202-2646 apirat.w@ghb.co.th
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53 Mr. Sirapong Suwannasri Senior Vice President,

Loan Products Development Department

0-2202-1624 sirapong@ghb.co.th

54 Ms. Vanitharat Boonsuphanith Assistant Senior Vice President, Customer Relationship 

Department and Acting Senior Vice President,

Customer Relationship Department 

0-2202-1982 vanitharat.b@ghb.co.th

55 Ms. Chintana Songsiri Senior Vice President, Deposit and Alliances Department 0-2202-1756 jintana.s@ghb.co.th

56 Mr. Sanea Khamsanga Senior Vice President, Retail Credit  Analysis Department 0-202-1177 sanea@ghb.co.th

57 Ms. Usanee Boosayakomut Senior Vice President, Project Loan Analysis Department 0-2202-1842 usanee@ghb.co.th

58 Ms. Waraporn Poosanarat Senior Vice President, Government-Policy and

Social-Development Loans Department

0-2202-1616 warapron@ghb.co.th

59 Ms. Atchara Munutsar Senior Vice President, Credit Support Department  0-2202-1614 atchara@ghb.co.th

60 Ms. Lavan Wongvivat Senior Vice President,

Bangkok Metropolitan Debt  Management Department

0-2202-1739 lavan@ghb.co.th

61 Mr. Eakasit Chareonreun Assistant Senior Vice President, Regional Debt Management 

Department  and Acting Senior Vice President,

Regional Debt  Management Department  

0-2202-2955 eakasit.c@ghb.co.th

62 Mr. Thawat Bunyaphaluk Senior Vice President, Case Management Department 02-202-1326 thawat.b@ghb.co.th 

63 Mr. Amnat Phonsiri Senior Vice President, NPA Development Department 0-2202-2220 amnat@ghb.co.th

64 Mr. Akarapol Ringrod Senior Vice President,

Legal Execution and Deficit Loan Department

0-2202-1299 akarapol.r@ghb.co.th

65 Mr. Krisda Pattamapalin  Senior Vice President, Compliance Department 0-2202-1251 krisda@ghb.co.th

66 Mr. Nuntawut Suksawang Senior Vice President, Legal Department 0-2202-1235 nuntawut@ghb.co.th

67 Mr. Chainarong Sawatdeewongsa Senior Vice President,

Office and Branch Adminstration Department 

0-2202-1479 chainarong.s@ghb.co.th

68 Mr. Pisan Kongsup Senior Vice President, Procurement Department 0-2202-1434 pisan.k@ghb.co.th

69 Ms. Piyawan Anongjanya Senior Vice President, Cash Management Department 02-202-1503 piyawan@ghb.co.th

70 Ms. Prawrat Ratanamongkolkasem Senior Vice President, Treasury Department 02-202-2180 prawrat@ghb.co.th

71 Mr. Niwat Swangvun Assistant Senior Vice President, Collateral Appraisal

Department and Acting Senior Vice President,

Collateral Appraisal Department

02-202-1323 niwat@ghb.co.th

72 Mr. Monchai Teeravorakul Senior Vice President, Loan Documents Department  0-2202-1148 monchai@ghb.co.th

73 Mr. Korapol Chinpat Senior Vice President,

Debt Collection and Loan Management Department

02-018-6505 korapol.c@ghb.co.th

74 Mr. Peeyus Taechatakrantham Senior Vice President,

Secondary Mortgage Management Support Department

02-018-6517 peeyus.t@ghb.co.th

75 Mr. Nigorn Archankul Bank Inspector 0-2202-1520 nigorn@ghb.co.th

76 Mr. Chokchai Julasinthanaporn Bank Inspector 0-2202-2373 chokchai@ghb.co.th

77 Ms. Pratanporn Sampaongoen Bank Inspector 02-645-9000

ext 6670

pratanporn.s@ghb.co.th
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1 Donmuang 174/9-11 Wiphawadi 78,
Wiphawadi Rangsit Road, Sanambin,
Don Muang, Bangkok 10210

02-533-6341-2,
02-996-6961

02-533-6343

2 Sukhapiban 1 30/435 Nawamin 82 Road, Nawamin,
Bueng Kum, Bangkok 10230

0-2510-3617-8, 
0-2519-5000, 
0-2947-8005-7

Loan 0-2510-3617-8
ext. 118
Finance 0-2509-3830

3 Fashion Island B Floor Fashion Island,
Room no ED047, 587, 589/7-9 Ramintra Road, 
Kunnayao, Bangkok 10230

0-2947-5554, 
0-2508-7133,
0-2508-7158, 
0-2508-7160,
0-2508-7172

0-2508-7305

4 Bang Khen 251/20-23 Phahonyothin Road, Anusawaree, 
Bang Khen, Bangkok 10220

0-2551-0523-4, 
0-2552-7702 

0-2972-8580,
0-2972-8581

5 Plearnary Mall 2nd Floor Plearnary Mall
244 Room B211 Watcharapol Road., Tha Rang, 
Bang khen, Bangkok 10230

0-2136-8026-9 0-2136-8026-9
ext. 105

6 Rangsit 821, Rangsit - NakornNayok Road,
Tambon Prachathipat, Amphoe Thanyaburi, 
Pathum Thani 12130

0-2996-1353-9, 
0-2996-1353-8

Loan 0-2996-1356 
Finance 0-2996-1353-8
ext. 111

7 Pathum Thani 34/1, 34/3 PathumThani-Bangkok Road, 
Bangprok, Muang, Pathum Thani 12000

0-2593-6044-50 0-2593-6051

8 Big C Rangsit Klong 6 Big C Rangsit Klong 6,
158/17 Moo 4 Rangsit-NakornNayok Road, 
Rangsit, Thanyaburi, Pathum Thani 12110

0-2577-0556-8, 
0-2577-0576

0-2577-0556-8
ext. 302 
0-2577-0576
ext. 302

9 Lam lukka 11/5-6 Lam lukka Road, Klong Song,
Kukot, Lam lukka, Pathum Thani 12130

0-2531-1289,
0-2531-1319,
0-2531-5114, 
0-2531-4843

-

Head Office
63 Rama IX Road, Huaykhwang, Bangkok 10310

Tel. 0-2645-9000  Fax. 0-2645-9001

website : www.ghbank.co.th

G H Bank Directory

Bangkok Metropolitan Branch 1
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10 Big C Navanakorn GCR119 Big C Navanakorn 1st Floor
98/196 Moo 13, Phaholyothin Road,
Klong 1, Klong Luang, Pathum Thani 12120

0-2520-4117-19
-

11 Ladprao 2326 Soi Ladprao 114, Ladprao Road, 
Wan Thong Lang, Bangkok 10310

0-2934-1070-6 0-2934-3344

12 Phahonyothin G Floor, AIS Tower, Shop 4,
1291/1 Phahonyothin Road (Soi 9),
Phyathai, Bangkok 10400

0-2357-1126-9 0-2357-1126-9
ext. 108

13 Shinnawatra 3 L004 Shinnawatra 3 Lobby
(next to Isuzu Tripetch, near Thansettakij 
Building and Central Ladprao),
1010 Vipavadee Rangsit Road, Jatujak,
Bangkok 10900

0-2512-2147-50 0-2512-2147-50
ext. 106

14 Pearl Tower, Bangkok 1177 Phahonyothin Road, Phyathai, 
Bangkok 10400

0-2023-7556-8 0-2023-7556-9 
ext. 110

15 Future Park Rangsit 2nd Floor, Future Park Rangsit, 
94 Phaholyothin Road, Prachathipat, 
Thanyaburi, Pathum Thani 12130

0-2567-4104 , 
0-2958-5062-4, 
0-2557-8062, 
0-2533-0846

-

16 Wongsawang Town
Center

Wongsawang Town Center  (Big C
Wongsawang) D204-205, 2nd Building D 
(Wongsawang Intersection) 888
Wongsawang Road, Bang Sue,
Bangkok 10800

0-2587-6247-8

-

17 Rama VI 1557 Phiboonsongkram Road, Bang Sue, 
Bangkok 10800

0-2585-9295,
0-2587-0474-6, 
0-2913-2261-3, 
0-2585-9141

0-2913-2260 

18 Convent 38 Chalanttip building, 1st Floor,
Convent Road, Silom, Bang Rak,
Bangkok 10500

0-2237-8997-9 
0-2632-0592-4 
0-2632-1138, 
0-2632-1140

0-2632-1137

19 Tesco Lotus Rama 4 2 Floor Room 2003 Tesco Lotus Rama 4 
3300 Rama 4 Road, Klongtun, Klongtoey, 
Bangkok 10110

0-2249-3852-3, 
0-2249-4365,
0-2249-3852-3, 
0-2249-3940

0-2249-3941

20 Bangyai 52/63-64 Bangyai City Soi 7,
Kanchanaphisek Road, Sao Thong Hin, 
Bangyai, Nonthaburi 11140

0-2595-0330-3, 
0-2903-2022-4

Loan -2595-0333 
Finance 0-2595-0330 
ext. 20
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21 Central Plaza Westgate 2nd Floor Central Plaza Westgate
Room 228, 199, 199/1, 199/2 Moo 6,
Saotonghin, Bank Yai, Nonthaburi 11140

02-1942837-8, 
02-1942753,
02-1942919-20,
02-1942996 

02-1942837-8, 
02-1942753, 
02-1942919-20,
02-1942996 ext. 105

22 Ha-Yaek Pak Kret 99/169 Tiwanon Road, Pak Kret,
Nonthaburi 11120

0-2584-0322-3, 
0-2964-2201-3

Loan 0-2584-0321 
Finance 0-2964-2204

23 Pure Place Rajchapruek Summakorn Place 62/32 Moo 1, Rajchapruek, 
Aomkred, Pakkred, Nonthaburi 11120

0-2194-8490-3 0-2194-8490-3
ext. 107

24 Chaeng Watthana 431 Muangthong Thani (Bond Street)
Bangpood, Pakkred, Nonthaburi 11120

0-2961-0023-4, 
0-2961-0063-4, 
0-2961-0045, 
0-2961-0059,
0-2961-0079

Loan 0-2961-0023 
ext. 40
Finance 0-2961-0023
ext. 41

25 The Government Complex 
Commemorating
His Majesty the King’s 80

120, 1st Fl. Building B, Government Complex 
Commemorating His Majesty the King’s 80, 
Chaeng Watthana Road, Lak Si,
Bangkok 10210

0-2143-8971-3 0-2143-8974

26 Buddhamonthon 9 Moo 6, Soi Pongsirichai,
Boromratchachonnani Road, Salathamsop, 
Taveewattana, Bangkok 10170

0-2889-7070-6, 
0-2889-6635-6

0-2889-7077,
0-2889-7075

27 Supreme Complex 2nd Floor Supreme Complex
1024 Samsen Road, Thanon Nakhon Chai Si, 
Dusit, Bangkok 10300

0-2241-9261-4 0-2241-9261-4
ext. 301

28 St.Louis 3 26 Soi Sathon 11 (St.LouisSoi 3),
South Sathon Road, Yannava, Sathon,
Bangkok 10120

0-2212-6127,
0-2212-6678-9,
0-2212-6991

Loan 0-2212-6126 
Finance 0-2211-0641

29 Charoen Nakorn 257/6 Riverside Plaza, 3rd Floor,
Charoen Nakorn Road, Samre,
Thonburi, Bangkok 10600

02 4698190-5
Finance ext. 101-103 
Loan ext. 202-204

Fax. Ext.105

30 The Mall Bangkapi 3522 The Mall Bangkapi 1st Floor,
Ladpraw Road, Klong Jun, Bangkapi,
Bangkok 10240

02-375-8365,
02-734-4296

02-734-4296
ext. 105

31 The Mall
Ngamwongwan

5th Floor The Mall Ngamwongwan, 
430 Bangkaen, Muang Nonthaburi,
Nonthaburi 11110

0-21214588-9, 
0-21214628,
0-21214784-5

0-21214588-9
ext. 105
0-21214628 
ext. 105
0-21214784-5
ext. 105
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1 Ratchadamnoen 97 Deves Insurance, 1st floor, Building 2, 
Ratchadamnoen Klang Road, BavornNives, 
Pranakorn, Bangkok 10200

0-2282-9821-5, 
0-2282-9842

Loan 0-2282-9840 
Finance 0-2282-9841

2 Makro Charansanitwong 2nd Floor Makro Charansanitwong 521/27 
Charansanitwong 37 Road, Bangkunsri, 
Bangkoknoi, Bangkok 10700

0-2412-5650-3 0-2412-5650-3
ext. 106

3 NongKhaem 1085, 1087 Moo 2, Phetkasem Road, 
NongKhangphlu, NongKhaem, Bangkok 10160

0-2420-5793,
0-2420-6009,
0-2420-6583,
0-2420-7475-7

0-2431-1340

4 The Mall Bangkae 3rd Floor Plaza area, The Mall Bangkae, 518 
Moo 1, Phetkasem Road, Bangkae Nuea, 
Bangkae, Bangkok 10160

0-2454-9430, 
0-2454-7152,
0-2454-2680,
0-2454-2706

0-2454-9430 ext. 3

5 Samrong 2222/3-4 Moo 4, Sukhumvit Road,
Teparak, Muang (Poo Jao Saming Prai), 
Samut Prakarn 10270

0-2384-3483-5, 
0-2384-7636,
0-2757-7429-31

Loan 0-2384-2579 
Finance 0-2384-7637

6 Siam Square 388, 6 Floor Siam Square One, Rama 1 Road, 
Pathum Wan, Bangkok 10330

0-2115-1322-27, 
0-2252-3647-49

Loan
0-2115-1322-27
ext. 302
Finance
0-2115-1322-27
ext. 301

7 Sukhumvit 1, 2nd Vasu Building, Sukhumvit Road, Soi 25
Klongtoey, Wattana, Bangkok, 10110

0-2260-6345-7, 
0-2661-6120-2

0-2260-6348

8 Central Plaza Rama 9 5th Floor, 9/9 Central Plaza Rama 9,
Ratchadaphisek Road, Huaykwang, 
Bangkok 10310

0-2160-3426-9 0-2160-3426-9
ext. 104 
0-2160-3482-3

9 New Petchaburi 2445/2 Thararom Business Tower, 1st floor, 
Phetchaburi Tat Mai Road, Bang Kapi, 
Huay Khwang, Bangkok 10310

0-2318-1051,
0-2318-9956,
0-2319-7310-1, 
0-2718-2247-8

0-2718-2249

10 Huamark Town Center G Floor, Huamark Town Center 177
Ramkhamhaeng Road, Ramkhamhaeng 
Soi 29, Huamark, Bangkapi, Bangkok 10240

0-2314-0334-6 0-2314-0337
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11 Paradise Park 2nd Paradise Park, 61 Sri Nakarin Road, 
Nong Bon, Prawet, Bangkok 10250

0-2780-2271-6 0-2780-2271-6

12 Sukhapibarn 3 58/75 Moo 4, Ramkamhang Soi 146, 
Saphan Sung, Bangkok 10240

0-2372-0551-2,
0-2373-0518-9,
0-2373-3348,
0-2728-0794-5

0-2728-0796

13 Meanburi Seangsomboon Shopping Plaza 10/1 Moo 13
Sihaburanukit Road, Meanburi, Bangkok 10510

0-2517-9001-3 0-2517-9004

14 Sammakorn Place 
Ramkamhang 110

2nd Floor, Sammakorn Place, 
86  Ramkhamhaeng Soi 110
 Saphan Sung, Bangkok 10240

0-2372-3531-2, 
0-2372-3522

0-2372-3515

15 Ladkrabang 125 Romklao Rd., Khlong Sam Prawet, 
Ladkrabang, Bangkok 10520

0-2915-2631-5,
0-2915-2651-2

0-2915-2653

16 Rama II 96/10-12 Chaiyakul Tower, Rama II Road, 
Soi 30, Bang Mod, Chom Thong, 
Bangkok 10150

0-2867-1350-6 0-2867-1355

17 Thepharak 44/4 Moo 9 Thepharak Road.,
(In front of Mooban Suankaosan)
Bangpla, Bangpli, Samut Prakarn 10540

0-2706-6112-21 0-2706-6119

18 Big C Samut Prakarn 3rd Floor, Big C Supercenter (Samutprakarn) 
498/1 Sukhumvit Road, Paknam,
Muang, Samut Prakarn 10270

0-2389-1602-4 0-2389-1605

19 Si-Yaek Ban Khaek 121 Isaraphab Road, Somdet Chao Phraya, 
Klongsan, Bangkok 10600

0-2861-4917-8 0-2861-4910-9

20 Seacon Bangkae 3rd Floor, Seacon Bangkae
607 Phetkasem Road, Bangwah,
Phasricharoen, Bangkok 10160

0-2458-2960-3 0-2458-2963

21 Bunsiri 10/1-3 Bunsiri Road, San Chao Pho Suea 
(Samranraj), Phra Nakhon, Bangkok 10200

0-2622-1241-6 Loan 0-2622-1840 
Finance 0-622-1247

22 Central Plaza Pinklao 4th Floor, Central Plaza Pinklao,
7/222 Borommaratchachonnani Road, 
Arun Amarin, Bangkoknoi, Bangkok 10700

0-2433-7834-7 0-2433-7834-7 
ext. 105

23 Maitreejit 60,62,64 Soi Phra Kaeo, Mitphan Road,
Pom Prap Sattru Phai, Bangkok 10100

0-2623-3034-,8 
0-2623-3043-6 

0-2623-3039
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24 Big C Rachadamri 4th Floor, Big C Supercenter (Rachadamri) 
97/11 Rachadamri Road, Lumpini,
Pathum Wan, Bangkok 10330

0-2250-4790-3 0-2250-4790-3
ext. 108

25 Suksawat Big C Supercenter (Suksawat) 2nd Floor, 94
Moo 18 Suksawat Road, Bangpueng,
Prapradaeng, Bangkok 10130

0-2463-7322-6 0-2463-7322-5
ext. 107

26 Central Plaza Rama 3 4th Floor Central Plaza Rama 3,
79 Sathupradit Road, Chongnonsri, Yannava,
Bangkok 10120

0-2164-0089-92 0-2164-0089-92
ext. 120

27 King Kaeo 12/18 Soi King Kaeo 44, King Kaeo Road, 
Rajtewa, Bang Pli, Samut Prakarn 10540

0-2175-2029-33, 
0-2738-8706

Loan
0-2175-2029-33 ext. 4 
Finance
0-2175-2029-33 ext. 5

28 Mega Bangna 1st Floor, Mega Bangna,
39 Bangna-Trad Road, km.9
(cross East Outer Ring Road), Bang Kaeo, 
Bangplee, Samut Prakarn 10540

0-2105-1167-70 0-2105-1167-70
ext. 107

29 Big C Bangpakok 3rd Floor, Big C Supercenter (Bangpakok),
Moo 1, Suksawat Road, Bangpakok, 
Ratburana, Bangkok 10140

0-2428-1424 0-2428-1425

30 Big C Bangna Big C Supercenter (Bangna)
611 Thepparat, Bangna Nua, Bangna, 
Bangkok 10260

0-2744-3493 0-2744-3493
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1 Chiang Mai 260 Super Highway Road,  Wat Ket, Muang, 
Chiang Mai 50000

0-5324-5276-78, 
0-5324-6469-71

0-5330-4927

2 Sun Kampang 72/2 Moo 7, Sun Kampang, Chiang Mai 50130 0 5333-0102-5 0-5333-0102-5
ext. 106

3 Central Plaza Chiang Mai 
Airport

380-381 3th Floor, Central Plaza Chiang Mai,
Mahidol Road., Haiya, Muang, 
Chiang Mai 50100

0-5390-3767-68 0-5390-3768

4 Suthep 120/70 Moo 10 Liap Klong Chonlaprathan Road,  
Suthep, Muang, Chiang Mai 50200

0-5328-3701-06 0-5328-3706

5 Sun Sai 399 Moo 5 Nongharn, Sun Sai,
Chiang Mai 50290

0-5335-4264-69 0-5335-4264-69

6 Mae Hong Son 2 Soi 5 Khun Lum Prapas Road, Jongkam, 
Muang, Mae Hong Son 58000

0-5361-1843-6 0-5361-1845 

7 Chiang Rai 881/1-3 Uttarakit Road, Wiang, Muang, 
Chiang Rai 57000

0-5360-0746-51 0-5360-0746-51

8 Mae Sai 130 Moo 3 Phaholyothin Road,
Wiang Phang Kham, Mae Sai, Chiang Rai 57130

0-5373-4357-60 0-5373-4357-60 
ext. 102

9 Central Plaza Chiang Rai Room 229/1, 2nd Floor,
99/9 Moo13, Phahonyothin Road, Robwieng, 
Muang, Chiang Rai 57000

0-5317-9731-5 0-5317-9730

10 Phayao 963,963/2 Phaholyothin Road, Wiang, 
Muang, Phayao 56000

0-5441-0261-9 0-5441-0272

11 Nan 179-180 Moo 6, Yuntarakitkosol Road,
Dootai, Muang, Nan 55000

0-5477-1362-3, 
0-5477-2804-7

0-5477-1362-3
ext. 108

12 Lampang 435 Lampang-Ngao Super Highway Road, 
Wiang, Muang, Lampang 52000

0-5423-0035-42 0-5422-5150

13 Lamphun 23/9 Lamphun-Pasang Road, Naimuang, 
Muang, Lamphun 51000

0-5353-5178-83 0-5353-5178
ext. 103

14 Phrae 164/3-5 Yantarakitkoson Road, Naiwiang, 
Muang, Phrae 54000

0-5462-1490-5 0-5462-1490
ext. 105

15 Tak 4/9 Phaholyothin Road, Rahaeng,
Muang, Tak 63000

0-5552-1046 0-5552-1046
ext. 102

16 Mae Sod 31/38-40 Intarakiri Road, Mae Sod, Mae Sod, 
Tak 63110

0-5553-5612-5 0-5553-5612-5 
ext. 104
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Government Housing Bank 289

Northern Branch (Downtown)

No. Branch Address Telephone Fax

1 Phitsanulok 839, 839/1-2 Mitraphab Road, Naimuang, 
Muang, Phitsanulok 65000

0-55378-100-5 0-55378-100-5
ext. 116

2 Uttaradit 294/5, 294/6 Borom-Ard Road, Tha-It, 
Muang, Uttaradit 53000

0-55440-435-8 0-55440-435-8 
ext. 107

3 Sukhothai 109/4 Singhawat Road, Thani, Muang,
Sukhothai 64000

0-55622-008-11 
0-55610-495-6

0-55622-008-11 
ext. 105

4 Pichit 31/79-81 Sra Luang Road, Nai Muang Muang, 
Pichit 66000

0-56616-185-90 0-56616-185-90 
ext. 105

5 Petchabun 9/14 Saraburi-Lomsak Road, Sadiang, Muang, 
Phetchabun 67000

0-56711-655-9 0-56711-655-9 
ext. 119

6 Beung Sam Pun 18 Moo 10 Saraburi-Lomsak Road,
Beung Sam Pun, Petchabun 67160

0-56731 - 844-6 0-56731-844-6
ext. 300

7 Nakorn Sawan 867/125 Moo 9 Sawanvithi Road,
Nakorn Sawan Tok, Muang,
Nakorn Sawan 60000

0-56372-183,
0-56228-040,
0-56229-501,
0-56226-182 

0-56226-182
ext. 128 
0-56221-415,
0-56224-637

8 Kamphaeng Phet 610, 612 Charoensuk Road, Naimuang, Muang, 
Kamphaeng Phet 62000

0-55773-151-6 0-55773-151-6 
ext. 105

9 Chai Nat 302 Phahonyothin Road, Ban Kluay, Muang, 
Chai Nat 17000

0-56411-370-1 0-56413-038

10 Uthai Thani 90/19 Terbsiri Road, Uthai-mai,  Muang,
Uthai Thani 61000

0-5652-4445 - 8 0-5652-4445-8 
ext. 102

11 Lopburi 99/5 Moo 1 Paholyothin Road, Thasala, 
Muang, Lopburi 15000

0-36784-455-7 0-36784-455-7 
Accounting ext. 101 
Finance ext. 102 
Loan ext. 201-203 

No. Branch Address Telephone Fax

1 Khon Kaen 632 Srichan Road, Naimuang, Muang,
KhonKaen 40000

0-4327-0400-10 0-4327-0401-10 
ext. 123

2 Chumphae 2/8-9 Chumphae-Phu Kiew Road, Chaisor, 
Chumphae, Khon Kaen 40130

0-4331-3461-4 0-4331-3461-4 
ext. 201

3 Pon 121/14-15 Mitraparb Road, Muang Pon, Pon, 
Khon Kaen 40120

0-4341-8702-5 0-4341-8702-5 
ext. 105

Northeastern Branch
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Government Housing Bank290

No. Branch Address Telephone Fax

4 Thanon Mitraparb 
Khon Kaen

433/20-21 Moo 2 Mitraparb Road, Sila, Muang, 
Khon Kaen 40000

0-4346-5020-28 0-4346-5029

5 Central Plaza Khon Kaen Room 351, 3rd Floor,
Central Plaza Khon Kaen,
99, 99 /1, Sri Chan Road,
Nai Muang, Muang, Khon Kaen 40000

0-4328-8236,
0-4328-8378,
0-4328-8424,
0-4328-8393

0-4328-8236
ext. 105

6 Mahasarakham 51, 51/1, 53/1 Rim Khlong Somthawilrart Road,  
Talad, Muang, Mahasarakham 44000

0-4371-1206-9, 
0-4371-1396-9

0-4371-1206-9 
ext. 105

7 Roi Et 389, 391 Jangsanit Road, Naimuang, Muang, 
Roi Et 45000

0-4351-2715-9,
0-43515-3615

0-4351-2715-9 
ext. 106

8 Udon Thani 596/7, Thahan Road, Mak Khaeng, Muang, 
Udon Thani 41000

0-4212-2331-9 0-4212-2331-9 
ext. 208

9 Central Plaza
Udon Thani

Room 321, 3th Floor, Central Plaza Udon Thani 
277/1-3, 271/5 Prajak Silapakom Road.,
Mak Khaeng, Muang, Udon Thani 41000

0-4292-1496-7,
0-42921-3712

0-4292-1496-7 
ext. 111

10 Loei 18/10-11 Maliwan Road, Gudpong, Muang, 
Loei 42000

0-4283-3573-6 0-4283-3573-5 
ext. 206

11 Nong Bua Lamphu 264/4-5 Visai-udonkij Road, Nong Bua,
Muang, Nong Bua Lamphu 39000

0-4231-2951-3 0-4231-2977

12 Nong Khai 644 Moo 4, Sadej Road., Pho Chai, 
Muang, Nong Khai 43000

0-4242-1670-7 0-4242-1670-7 
ext. 105

13 Sakon Nakhon 389 Koo Muang Intersection - ITU Road, 
Thatchuengchum, Muang, 
Sakon Nakhon 47000

0-4271-4766-73 0-4271-4766-73 
ext. 114

14 Sawang Dan Din 903/5-6 Nittayo Road, Sawang Dan Din, 
Sakon Nakhon 47110

0-4272-1837-8, 
0-4272-2461-2

0-4272-1837-8 
ext. 105

15 Kalasin 20/10-11 Pradit Road, Kalasin, Muang,
Kalasin 46000

0-4381-2729-34 0-4381-2729-34 
ext. 106

16 Mukdaharn 44/32 Phitakphanomket, Mukdaharn, Muang, 
Mukdaharn 49000

0-4261-5411-4 0-4261-5411-4 
ext. 114

17 Nakhon Phanom 381/17-18 Mahasitthichok Road, Naimuang, 
Muang, Nakhon Phanom 48000

0-4251-2590-5 0-4512-5905 
ext. 105

18 Bueng Kan 405/4 Bueng Kan-Porncharoen Road, 
Bueng Kan, Muang, Bueng Kan 38000

0-4243-2424 0-4240-3245



A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 0

Government Housing Bank 291

Northeastern Branch (Downtown)

No. Branch Address Telephone Fax

1 Nakhon Ratchasima 517/143-145 Mitraparb-Nongkhai Road, 
Naimuang, Muang, Nakhon Ratchasima 30000

0-4424-8201-7 0-4424-8208

2 Bua Yai 154 Niwet Rat Road, Bua Yai,
Nakhon Ratchasima 30120

0-44913-921-2,
0-4491-3933-4

0-4491-3921-2
ext. 107
0-4491-3933-4
ext. 107

3 Central Plaza
Nakhon Ratchasima

Room 338, 3rd Floor,
Central Plaza Nakhon Ratchasima,
990, 998 Mitraparb-Nongkhai Road, Naimuang, 
Muang, Nakhon Ratchasima 30000

0-4422-9457-62 0-4422-9457-62 
ext. 105

4 Thanon Chom Phon 704/14-17 Chom Phon Road,
Naimuang, Muang, Nakhon Ratchasima 30000

0-4426-9205-7 0-4425-8151
ext. 105

5 Pakchong 199 Mitraparb Road, Pakchong, 
Nakhon Ratchasima 30130

0-4431-6395-8 0-4431-6395-8 
ext. 103

6 Chaiyaphum 171/8-12 Airport Road, Naimuang, Muang, 
Chaiyaphum 36000

0-4483-0959 - 64 0-4483-0959-64 
ext. 105

7 Phukieo 83,83/1 Moo 2, Chaiyaphum-Phukieo Road, 
Pakpung, Phukieo, Chaiyaphum 36110

0-4486-1845-6,
0-4486-1756-7

0-4486-1845-6
ext. 100

8 Buriram 18/20 Thani Road, Naimuang, Muang,
Buri Ram 31000

0-4461-6972-5 0-4461-6972-5 
ext. 107

9 Nangrong 601, 603 Prajuntaket Road,
Nangrong, Buri Ram 31110

0-4462-4205-8 0-4462-4205-8 
ext. 104

10 Ubon Ratchathani 263 Upaleesarn Road, Naimuang, Muang, 
Ubon Ratchathani 34000

0-4526-5801-8 0-4526-5801-8 
ext. 114

11 Central Plaza
Ubon Ratchathani

Room 333, 3rd Floor,
Central Plaza Ubon Ratchathani, 311 Moo 7 
Jaeramae, Muang, Ubon Ratchathani

0-4542-2381-4 0-4542-2381-4 
ext. 104

12 Srisaket 983/48-49 Kuangheng Road, Muangtai, 
Muang, Srisaket 33000

0-4561-7742,
744, 745, 747, 748

0-4561-7742,
744, 745, 747, 748 
ext. 111

13 Amnat Charoen 219-219/1 Chayangkul Road, Bung, Muang, 
Amnat Charoen 37000

0-4551-1367-70 0-4551-1367-70
ext. 104

14 Surin 233/1 Tesaban 1 Road, Naimuang, Muang, 
Surin 32000

0-4451-1967-970 0-4451-1967-970
ext. 110, 108

15 Yasothon 55/3 Rattanakhet Road, Naimuang, Muang, 
Yasothon 35000

0-4571-4592-3,
0-4571-4896-8

0-4571-4592-3 
ext. 212
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Government Housing Bank292

Eastern Branch

No. Branch Address Telephone Fax

1 Chachoengsao 153 Chachoengsao-Bangpakong Road, 
Namuang, Muang, Chachoengsao 24000

0-3881-2682-7 0-3881-2682-7
ext. 199

2 Panomsarakarm 1319/1-2 Moo 1, Panomsarakarm,
Chachoengsao 24120

0-3855-2973-6 0-3855-2976

3 Prachinburi 147/1 Radsadorn-damri Road, Namuang, 
Muang, Prachinburi 25000

0-3720-0343-5, 
0-3721-4841-4

0-3720-0343

4 Industrial Estate 304 525/18-19 Moo 8, Thatoom, Srimahapo, 
Prachinburi 25140

0-3721-8883-6 0-3721-8886

5 Sa Kaew 97/133-134 Soi Somboon Chokh Muang Kaew,  
Suwannasorn Road, Sa Kaeo, Muang Sa Kaew,
Sa Kaew 27000

0-3724-7215-8 0-3724-7215-8 
ext. 120

6 Chonburi 39/3 Moo 4, Sukhumvit Road, Samed,
Muang, Chonburi 20000

0-3838-1824-7 0-3838-1824-7
ext. 118

7 Amata Nakorn 700/17 Moo 1, Klong Tamru, Muang Chonburi, 
Chonburi 20000

0-3845-7569-72 0-3845-7569-72 
ext. 106

8 Panas Nikom 156/1-2 Sri Kunchorn Road,
 Panas Nikom, Chonburi 20140

0-3846-2963-4, 
0-3846-3189-90

0-3846-2963-4
ext. 333

9 Ban Bueng 88/25-26 Ban Bueng, Chonburi 20170 0-3844-5681-2, 
0-3844-5685

0-3844-5685
ext. 207

10 Sri Racha 126/1-3 Sukhumvit Road, Sri Racha, 
Chonburi 20110

0-3877-2032-42 0-3877-2038

11 Pattaya 8/51 North Pattaya Road, Naklua,
Bang Lamung, Chonburi 20150

0-3837-0501-2,
0-3842-7671-3, 
0-3837-0518-21 

0-3837-0521

12 Central Festival
Pattaya

4th Floor Central Plaza Pattaya Beach,
333/99 Moo 9, Nongpruer, Bang Lamung,
Chonburi 20150

0-3804-3580-82 0-3804-3583

13 Boonsampan 78/164-165 Moo 5, Soi Khao Noi, Nong Prue, 
Bang Lamung, Chonburi 20150

0-3818-6060-2 0-3818-6077-8

14 Sattaheep 507/30 Moo 2 Sukhumvit Road, Sattaheep,
Chonburi 20180

0-3843-7586-7, 
0-3843-7590

0-3843-7590

15 Saha Pathana Group 
Industrial Park

399/63-64 Moo 11,Tung Songkla Road,
Nongkam, Sri Racha, Chonburi 20230

0-3848-0585-7,
0-3848-0858-63

0-3848-0588

16 Bor Vin 128/415-6 Moo 3, Pakruam-huayprab Road,
Bor Vin, Sri Racha, Chonburi 20230

0-3817-3049-54 0-3817-3049-54 
ext. 106

17 Rayong 141/7-10 Sukhumvit Road, Choengnoen, 
Muang, Rayong 21000

0-3861-2603, 
0-3880-0464-8

0-3880-0464
ext. 109

18 Nikom Pattana 239/23 Moo 1, Nikom Pattana,
Rayong 21180

0-3863-7086-9 0-3863-7086-9 
ext. 105
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Government Housing Bank 293

No. Branch Address Telephone Fax

19 Central Plaza
Rayong

Central Plaza, Rayong 99,99/1 Room 262,
2nd Floor, Bangna-Trad Highway Road, 
Choengnoen, Muang, Rayong 21000

0-3894-2984-7 0-3894-2984
ext. 105

20 Pluakdang 296/22 Pluakdang Rongnumtan Road,
Pluakdang, Rayong 21140

0-3802-5916-8, 
0-3802-5907

0-3802-5907
ext. 106

21 Ban Chang 67/40-41 Moo 3 Sukhumvit Road, Pla,
Ban Chang, Rayong 21130

0-3860-5550-4, 
0-3860-5565-7

0-3860-5567

22 Chanthaburi 1/71 Phrayathung Road, Wat Mai, Muang,
Chanburi 22000

0-3931-3342-43,
0-3931-3362-63,
0-3931-3406-07,
0-3931-3430-31,
0-3931-3346-47

0-3931-3343
ext. 5

23 Trad 308/4-5 Moo 2 Sukhumvit Road,
Wang Kra Chae, Muang, Trad 23000

0-3953-2712-5 0-3953-2715

No. Branch Address Telephone Fax

1 Samut Sakhon 48 Moo 8 Seithakit 1 Road, Tha-Sai,
Muang, Samut Sakhon 74000

0-3481-5773-82 0-3481-5775
ext. 107

2 Samut Songkhram 13/94 Ekachai Road,  Soi 2, Mae Klong,
Muang, Samut Songkhram 75000

0-3471-1308-10 0-3471-1313

3 Nakorn Pathom 364/7 Thaesa Road, Prapratone,
Muang, Nakorn Pathom 73000

0-3425-7951,
0-3425-7920,
0-3425-7292,
0-3425-7321, 
0-3425-7655

0-3425-7971
ext. 104

4 Salaya Buddhamonthon 
Sai 4

236-237 Moo 9 Buddamonthon Sai 4 Road,
Kratumlon, Sampran, Nakorn Pathom 73220

0-2441-5201-4 0-2441-5201-4 
ext. 107

5 Central Plaza Salaya 3rd Floor 321 Borom Ratchachonni Road, 
Bangtoey, Sampran, Nakorn Pathom 73210

0-2429-6874-7 0-2429-6874-77 
ext. 104

6 Ratchaburi 7 Khathathonbodi Road, Namuang,
Muang, Ratchaburi 70000

0-3231-5462-7 0-3231-5462-7 
ext. 106

7 Ban Pong 37/127-128 Pakrad Road, Banpong,
Ratchaburi 70110

0-3220-0628-30 0-3220-0628-30 
ext. 112

8 Kanchanaburi 20/26-29 Soi Thanakan Hospital,
Saeng-xuto Road, Ban Tai, Muang, 
Kanchanaburi 71000

0-3451-6758-64 0-3451-6758-64 
ext. 104

9 Nakhon Chai Si 79/8 Taiyawas, Nakhon Chai Si,
Nakhon Pathom 73120

0-3430-0716,
0-3430-0718-9,
0-3430-0755-7

-

Central and Southern (Uptown) Branch
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No. Branch Address Telephone Fax

10 Prachuab Khiri Khan 49 Prachuap Khiri Khan Road,
Prachuap Khiri Khan, Muang,
Prachuab Khiri Khan 77000

0-3255-1115-20, 
091-5416424

0-3255-1118 
0-3255-1115-20
ext. 5

11 Hua Hin 178/12-13 Phetkasem Road, Hua Hin,
Prachuab Khiri Khan 77110

0-3253-2122, 
0-3253-2075-6, 
081-7538592

0-3253-3348
ext. 111

12 Chumphon 7/2 Moo 5 Chumphon-Ranong Road,
Wangphai, Muang, Chumphon 86000

0-7757-6566-69, 
087-0845311

0-7757-6566-69 
ext. 100

13 Phetchburi 2/85-87 Phetkasem Road, Raisom, Muang, 
Phetchaburi 76000

089-1348622, 
0-3242-4255-8 

0-3242-4225-8
ext. 130,106

14 Ranong 4/51 Phetkasem Road, Bangrin, Muang,
Ranong 85000

0-7782-1756-7,
0-7782-1718-9

0-7782-1719

15 Saraburi 158/10 PichaironnarongSongkhram Road, 
Pakprew, Muang, Saraburi 18000

0-3622-0325-7,
0-8135-70338

0-3622-0325
ext. 105

16 Phra Nakorn Si
Ayutthaya

6/6-9 Narasuan Rd., Pratuchai,
Phra Nakhon Si Ayutthaya,
Phra Nakhon Si Ayutthaya 13000

0-3524-5167-72 0-3524-5167
ext. 107

17 Thanon Rojana 481, 481/1-2 Moo 2, Wang Noi-Rojana Road, 
Samreun, Bang Pa-in, 
Phra Nakhon Si Ayutthaya 13160

0-3533-2271-6, 
0-8548-54047

0-3533-2271-6 
ext. 105

18 Sing Buri 612-613 Nai Chan Nuad Kheo Road,
Bang Phutsa, Muang, Sing Buri 16000

0-81-375-6779, 
0-3651-2762-3

0-3651-2762
ext. 105

19 Ang Thong 54/83 Ang Thong By pass Road, Saladaeng, 
Muang, Ang Thong 14000

0-3561-3507-9,
0-3561-0038, 
0-3561-1845

0-3561-1845, 
0-3561-3507-9 
ext. 105, 302

20 Supanburi 38/10-12 Naenkaeo Road, Tha Pi leang,
Muang, Supanburi 72000

0-3552-2512-5, 
0-8548-54031

0-3550-1340
ext. 122

No. Branch Address Telephone Fax

1 Surat Thani 31/10 Surat- Punpin Road, Wat Pradoo, 
Muang, Surat Thani 84000

0-7720-0350, 
0-7720-0917-8 
0-7720-0412

0-7720-0412
ext. 207

2 Central Plaza
Surat Thani

3rd Floor 333 Central Plaza Leangmuang 
Thakub-Airport, Watpradoo Road, Muang,
Surat Thani 84000

0-7760-2793-6 0-7760-2793

3 Phuket 59/45-47 Bangkok Road, Talard Nua,
Muang, Phuket 83000

0-7621-8191-3, 
0-7621-4532, 
0-7622-3601-2

0-7621-8191-3

4 Talang 59/11-12 Moo 5 Thepkasattri Road,
Sri Soonthorn, Talang, Phuket 83110

0-7661-7018-21 0-7661-7019
ext. 107

West and Southern (Downtown) Branch
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Government Housing Bank 295

No. Branch Address Telephone Fax

5 Chalong 18/52-53 Moo 8 East Chaofa Road, Chalong, 
Muang, Phuket 83000

0-7638-4632-5 0-7638-4632-5 
ext. 105

6 Phang Nga 17/30-31 Sirirart Road, Taichang, Muang, 
Phang Nga 82000

0-7641-4434-6 0-7641-4437

7 Krabi 1/6-7 Ruamchit Road, Paknam, Muang,
Krabi 81000

0-7563-0483-5 0-75630-483-5
ext. 118 

8 Nakhon Si Thammarat 543 Ratchadamnoen Road, Naimuang,
Muang, Nakhon Si Thammarat 80000

0-7534-2214,
0-7534-6950-1 

0-7534-6950-1 
ext. 106

9 Central Plaza
Nakhon Si Thammarat

327 3th Floor Moo 7, Nasarn, Praprom,
Nakhon Si Thammarat 80000

0-7539-2862-5 0-7539-2862-5 
ext. 111

10 Thungsong 6/1 Chaichumpon Road, Pakpraek,
Thungsong, Nakhon Sri Thammarat 80110

0-7541-1363,
0-7541-2424,
0-7535-5319,
0-7541-2334,
0-7541-1579,
0-7535-5317

0-7541-2424 

11 Trang 59/16-18 HuayYot Road, Tabtiang,
Muang, Trang 92000

0-7522-2868-9 0-7522-2868-9
ext. 6

12 Satun 24, 26 Bureevanich Road, Piman, Muang,
Satun 91000

0-7472-3894-5,
0-7472-3927-8

0-7472-3894-5
ext. 5

13 Phatthalung 4-6 Pien Yindee Road, Khuha Sawan, 
Muang, Phatthalung 93000

0-7461-2803-7 0-7461-2803-7
ext. 6

14 Songkla 9/71-72 Moo 2, Kanjanavanich Road,
Kaoroobchang, Muang, Song Kla 90000

0-7433-3836-9, 
0-7459-2655, 
-07459-2657

0-7433-3836-9 
ext. 110

15 Had Yai 843 Petchakasem Road, Had Yai,
Songkla 90110

0-7424-5161, 
0-7424-5674, 
0-7434-5526-30

0-7434-5526-30 
Finance ext. 119 
Loan ext. 126

16 Thanon Rad Uthid 61/5 Rad Uthid Road Had Yai,
Songkla 90110

0-7425-5937- 40 0-7425-5940

17 Central Festival
Had Yai

Central Festival Had Yai, 3rd Floor
334 Kanjanvanich Road, Kho Hong,
Had Yai, Songkla 90110

0-7433-9690-3 0-7433-9690-3 

18 Sadao 198/10-11 Kanjanavanich Road, Sadao,
Songkla 90120

0-7455-7015-6, 
0-7455-7020

0-7455-7021

19 Yala 215/3-4 Siroros Road, Sateng, Muang,
Yala 95000

0-7322-3551-5 0-7322-3551-5 
ext. 108

20 Betong 42, 46 Saritdej Road, Betong,
Yala 75110

0-7323-5303-8 0-7323-5303-7 
ext. 105

21 Pattani 60/1-2 Yarang Road, A-No-Roo, Muang, 
Pattani 94000

0-7333-4095-6, 
0-7333-4531

0-7333-4532
ext. 115

22 Narathiwat 57/3-4 Suriyapradit Road, Bangnak,
Muang, Narathiwat 96000

0-7351-6101-4 0-7351-6104
ext. 200
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No. Branch Address Telephone Fax

1 OSS Bang Lamung Bang Lamung District Office,
Na Glua, Bang Lamung, Chonburi 20150

0-3822-3556-7 0-3822-3557

2 OSS Ka-bin Buri Ka-bin Buri District Office, Ka-bin Buri, 
Prachinburi 25240

0-3728-0242
 -

3 OSS Fang Fang District Office, Chotana Road, Wiang,
Fang, Chiang Mai 50110

0-5338-2832 0-53382-833

4 OSS Nakhon Nayok 74/143-144 Moo 7, Suwan Road, Ban Yai, 
Muang, Nakhon Nayok  26000

0-3732-0915-7,
089-832-0535

0-3732-0915-7
ext. 106

No. Branch Address Telephone Fax

1 The Mall Thapra 2nd Floor, The Mall Thapra 0-2477-7238 0-2477-7238

2 Big C Chaengwattana 1st Floor, Plaza zone, opposite Telewiz shop 0-2575-2259 0-2982-5894

3 Big C Onnuch 2nd Floor, Big C Supercenter (Onnuch) 0-2311-3960 0-2311-3961

4 Big C Keha Romklao 1st Floor, Big C Supercenter (Keha Romklao) 0-2329-9201-6 0-2329-9206

5 Imperial World Samrong G Floor, Imperial World Samrong 0-2394-0374-5 0-2394-0374

6 IT Square 1st Floor, IT Square (Laksi-Chaengwattana
intersection)

0-2576-0590-1 0-2576-0592

7 Amphawa 2/1 Multi-purpose Building, 
Amphawa District Office,
Puangsomboon Road, Amphawa,
Samut Songkram 75110

0-3475-1734-5 0-3475-1734

One Stop Service

Banking Counter

Remark : Open Monday - Friday


